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KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

“A customer is the king and the most important visitor on our premises.”

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION – OUR PRIDECUSTOMER SATISFACTION – OUR PRIDECUSTOMER SATISFACTION – OUR PRIDECUSTOMER SATISFACTION – OUR PRIDECUSTOMER SATISFACTION – OUR PRIDECUSTOMER SATISFACTION – OUR PRIDE

Your Company maintains high levels of transparency in its interactions with customers and this has helped it to 

increase customer satisfaction and loyalty. It aims to maintain high levels of customer service and its customer centric 

approach has been a key driver of its growth.
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KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

KEY PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

BRANCHES

FY 21-22          |        FY 20-21

75            |          42

FY 21-22          |        FY 20-21

373              |            275

NET PROFIT

FY 21-22         |        FY 20-21

  12.83 Cr.        |         17.68 Cr.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

FY 21-22          |        FY 20-21

90.54%            |          81.60%

DISBURSEMENT

FY 21-22          |        FY 20-21

134.52 Cr.         |       212.08 Cr.

NON PERFORMING ASSET

FY 21-22          |        FY 20-21

1.08%           |         0.81%

CUMULATIVE DISBURSEMENT

|         FY 21-22       FY 20-21

NUMBER                 7997  |  6553

AMOUNT        745.47 Cr.              |      610.95 Cr.

ASSET UNDER MANAGEMENT

|         

AMOUNT       |   

FY 21-22       FY 20-21

491.31 Cr. 451.22 Cr.

EMPLOYEES
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KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

EXPANDING FOOTPRINT ACROSS INDIA
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KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala is a visionary and founder of the 
Khandwala Group. He is a Commerce Graduate having 
experience of over three decades in Capital Market 
activities. He is a dominant figure in Gujarat Capital Market 
and has contributed greatly to the Group's rise. With his 
support in the business of housing finance, he is taking up 
the Company to the new heights.

Shri. Vimal Khandwala is a Commerce Graduate and has 
deep operational knowledge of more than 20 years in 
Capital Market activities. Mr. Khandwala keeps providing 
the group with the much needed controls for efficient 
business operations and with his support the business of 
the Company is operating in an organized manner.

Shri. Padmanabh Vora, holds a Bachelor's degree in 
Commerce and is a Chartered Accountant by profession. 
Mr. Vora is an eminent person in banking and financial 
markets. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and Associate of Indian Institute of 
Bankers and has over 40 years experience in finance, 
banking and management. He had been a Chairman of 
National Housing Bank, the Regulatory body for Housing 
Finance Companies in India for 5 years (1996 – 2001). He 
evidently has an eminent background and experience which 
is suitable for NBFC's, mainly housing finance.

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala

Managing Director and Chairman

Shri. Vimal Khandwala

Managing Director

Shri. Padmanabh Vora

Independent Director

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Smt. Bhavna Desai

Independent Director

Shri. Kartik Mehta

Non- Executive Director

Smt. Purvi Bhavsar

Non- Executive Director

 

Smt. Bhavna Desai is a Bachelor in Commerce from Mumbai 
University having over two decades of experience in shares 
and security market activities. She was associated as a partner 
with a firm M/s G. B. Desai which is engaged in the business 
of dealing with securities and presently, she is associated with 
Companies like Godawari Power and Ispat Limited, Godawari 
Green Energy Limited, Ardent Steel Limited and Hirra Ferro 
Alloys Limited in the capacity of Independent Women 
Director.

Shri. Kartik Mehta is a qualified Chartered Accountant from 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and a member of 
the Institute of Cost Accountant of India. He is also qualified 
Certified Financial Planner. He is a Career banker with more 
than 27 years of experience in the banking and the financial 
services industry in India. He has worked across various 
functions including corporate finance, treasury management, 
retail banking and distribution, agriculture credit and priority 
sector and micro finance during his banking career. Over the 
last couple of years, he has been associated as a Micro Finance 
practitioner and has extensively worked in the western 
geographies of India.

Smt. Purvi Bhavsar has won several awards and accolades during 
her professional career including the “Leading women in Telecom” 
for the year 2010. She has over 25 years of diverse experience in 
the financial services and telecom industries. Starting her career 
with Kotak Mahindra Finance Ltd. She has worked in various 
functions including corporate finance, retail, banking, channel 
management, distribution and sale with Apple Industries, HDFC 
Bank, ICICI Bank and Vodafone. Ms. Bhavsar was one of the 
selected few within ICICI who was identified for a fast track career 
development. Prior to working in Micro Finance, she was also the 
regional head in Mumbai looking after the liability business of 
more than 5000 crores in her territory and handling over fifty 
branches and leading a team of over 500 employees.
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KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

A.  COMPANY DETAILS

      CIN: U65922GJ2015PLC085079

      Reg. No.: DOR-00145 dated August 12, 2020 issued by the Reserve Bank of India in lieu of 

      COR No. 10.0145.16 dated October 27, 2016 issued by the National Housing Bank

      LEI No.: 335800358RJYD5ZDXQ31

      Website:www.kifshousing.com

B.  REGISTERED & CORPORATE OFFICE ADDRESS

      Registered Office:B-81, Pariseema Complex, C. G. Road, Ellisbridge, 

      Ahmedabad - 380006, Gujarat, India

      Corporate Office:C-902, Lotus Corporate Park, Graham Firth Compound, 

      Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai- 400063

C.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS

      Shri. Rajesh Khandwala, Chairman & Managing Director

      Shri. Vimal Khandwala, Managing Director

      Shri. Padmanabh Vora, Independent Director

      Smt. Bhavna Desai, Independent Director

      Shri. Kartik Mehta, Non- Executive Director

      Smt. Purvi Bhavsar, Non- Executive Director

D.  DETAILS OF COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Shri. Padmanabh Vora, Chairman

Shri. Vimal Khandwala, Member

Smt. Purvi Bhavsar, Member

Shri. Kartik Mehta. Member

Smt. Bhavna Desai, Member

CSR Committee

Shri. Vimal Khandwala, Chairman

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala, Member

Shri. Padmanabh Vora, Member

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Asset Liability Committee

Shri. Vimal Khandwala, Chairman

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala, Member

Shri. Padmanabh Vora, Member

Shri. Avinash Srivastava, Member

Shri. Gundopant Salokhe, Member

IT Strategy Committee

Shri. Padmanabh Vora, Chairman

Shri. Vimal Khandwala, Member

Shri. Gundopant Salokhe, Member

Shri. Avinash Srivastava, Member

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Shri. Padmanabh Vora, Chairman

Shri. Kartik Mehta, Member

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala, Member

Shri. Vimal Khandwala, Member

Smt. Purvi Bhavsar, Member

Smt. Bhavna Desai, Member

Risk Management Committee

Shri. Vimal Khandwala, Chairman

Shri. Avinash Srivastava, Member

Shri. Binu Pillai, Member

Shri. Gundopant Salokhe, Member

Smt. Tejal Gala, Member

Customer Grievance Redressal Committee

Shri. Vimal Khandwala, Chairman

Shri. Kushal Khandwala, Member

Shri. Avinash Srivastava, Member

Shri. Binu Pillai, Member

Shri. Dharmendra Doshi, Member

Shri. Gundopant Salokhe, Member

Investment Committee

Shri. Vimal Khandwala, Chairman

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala, Member

Shri. PadmanabhVora, Member

Shri. Kartik Mehta, Member

Wilful defaulter Identification Committee

Shri. Vimal Khandwala, Chairman

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala, Member

Shri. Kushal Khandwala, Member

Shri. Avinash Srivastava, Member

Shri. Harish Dwivedi, Member 

Wilful defaulter Review Committee

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala, Chairman

Shri. Vimal Khandwala, Member

Shri. PadmanabhVora, Member

Smt. Bhavna Desai, Member

E.  KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

     Shri. Deepak Kumar Ajmera, Chief Financial Officer (resigned with effect from March 07, 2022).

     Smt. Tejal Gunjan Gala, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer. 
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KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

F.  BANKS

G.  STATUTORY AUDITORS

      M/s Manubhai& Shah LLP, Chartered Accountants

      FRN: 106041W/W100136

H.  INTERNAL/ OPEARTIONAL AUDITORS

      M/s Sanjay Vastupal & Co, Chartered Accountants

      FRN: 109187W

I.    SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

      M/s Kiran Doshi & Co., Company Secretaries

      COP No: 9890

J.   REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT

      NSDL Database Management Limited (“NDML”)

      CIN: U72400MH2004PLC147094

K.  DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

      Vistra ITCL (India) Limited 

      CIN: U66020MH1995PLC095507 

National Housing Bank AU Small Finance Bank Limited

State Bank of India South Indian Bank

Federal Bank Limited Bank of Baroda

IDBI Limited Canara Bank

Karur Vysya Bank Limited Punjab National Bank

11 



KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The Company's gross income for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 increased to Rs. 65.35 crore as 
compared to Rs. 58.16 crore in the previous financial year thereby registering an increase of 12%. The profit 
before tax of the Company is Rs. 16.19 crore during the year. The net profit for the year is Rs. 12.83 crore Asset 
Under Management (AUM) were at Rs. 491.31 crore as at March 31, 2022 as against Rs. 451.22 crore as at 
March 31, 2021.

DIVIDEND
 
In view of the planned business growth, your Directors deem it proper to preserve the resources of the 
Company for its activities and therefore, do not propose any dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 
2022. The Directors also inform that the Company has not declared any interim dividend during the year.

ACCOUNTING METHOD

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other provisions of the Act. The details of the accounting 
treatment followed during the financial year are mentioned in Notes to Financial Statement.

Dear Members,

th
The Board of Directors of your Company have great pleasure in presenting the 7  Annual Report together with 
the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The summary of financial performance of the Company for the year are as under:

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Total Revenue from Operations
 

65.35
 

58.16
 

  
Total Expenditure 49.16

 

36.03
 

Profit / (Loss) before provision for tax

 

16.19

 

22.13

 

Tax Expense

 

3.36

 

4.45

 

Net Profit / (Loss) after tax

 

12.83

 

17.68

 

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

 

0.22

 

0.01

 

Total Comprehensive Income

 

13.05

 

17.69

 

Earnings / (Loss) per Share (Basic & Diluted)

 

0.51

 

0.71

 

(Rupees in Crores except EPS)

DIRECTORS' REPORT 
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KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 
THE COMPANY 

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred during and at 
end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate on the date of this report.

CHANGE  IN  NATURE  OF  BUSINESS
 
There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

PUBLIC  DEPOSITS

In accordance with the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, your Company is a non-deposit taking Housing 
Finance Company and had declared that it has not and shall not accept deposit as per the terms and conditions 
of the registration provided by National Housing Bank.

IMPACT  OF  COVID -19

The year gone by (FY 21-22) has been a mixed bag for us in terms of hits & misses. The stress on cash flows of 
borrowers caused by the pandemic also renewed demand for restructuring. The restructured book is expected 
to reduce slightly, driven by recoveries and slippages. Your Company had made improvement in cash flows 
through loan repayment from its borrowers, monetization of assets and further reduction in overhead 
expenditure. Pandemic's hard impact on the affordable buyer class and growing demand for additional space in 
homes due to Work from Home are the key reasons for the change in homebuyer's trend.

The Company referring to its 'Business Continuity Plan' and 'Risk Management Framework' managed to 
minimize the impact of the pandemic on its employees and ensured that the Company remains operational. The 
Company had implemented 'work from home policy' to ensure that employees stay safe and business remains 
operational. Our primary focus is the health and safety of our staff and ensuring the continuity of our 
operations. Pursuant to Notifications issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) in respect of COVID-19 - 
Regulatory Package, the Company gave borrowers an option to defer their EMI's/ Moratorium.

Despite all economic challenges faced by the Company, your Company continued to drive business/operations 
improvement through structured plans and digitization wherever possible. This enabled the Company to 
maintain its profitable growth even in the prevailing situation/conditions.

However, since opening up of the economy, all have seen their collection efficiencies gradually returning to 
pre-COVID levels. Adapting to the restrictions of the imposed lockdowns, Banks, NBFCs and HFCs are 
ramping up their digital initiatives in order to keep up the loan book growth and to attend to the customer 
requirements.

REVIEW  OF  BUSINESS  &  OPERATIONS  OF  THE  COMPANY

Your Company is registered as a Housing Finance Company ("HFC") with National Housing Bank ("NHB") 
and Reserve Bank of India to carry out the housing finance activities in India. KHFL continues to focus on 
affordable housing segment, catering specially to the aspirations of low and middle-income Indian families 
who dream to own their homes. It is engaged in on-lending business for Retail housing loans to customers 
belonging to Middle Income Group (MIG) & Low Income Group (LIG). Company's 100% portfolio is retail 
and organic i.e. NIL bought portfolio and NIL builder loan.

The Business profile of KHFL is majorly tilted towards formal, salaried category as compared to informal and 
self- employed segment, which is low risk customer profile with an average ticket size of Rs. 9.04 Lakhs hence 
over all NPA risk for KHFL remains low.

13 



KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

FOIR & LTV Ratios Band

Average FOIR and LTV of all customers is 42% and 54% respectively.

Our product wise yield in home loan sector is 12.80% and Non Home Loan sector is 15.41%.

We received subsidy for 27% of Home Loan portfolio as on March 31, 2022.

Penetration towards direct sourcing with a healthy mix of Business Associates who made our presence strong 
in every hook & corner of the city is our driving force. Conscious Profile & Product mix of the portfolio helped 
us to keep our delinquency in control.

Your Company has recorded an income of Rs. 65.35 crore as against Rs. 58.16 crore in the previous year and 
the profit after tax is Rs. 12.83 crore.

HOLDING  COMPANY

The Company does not have any holding Company, subsidiaries, Associates or Joint Ventures.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 
FUND 

Since your Directors have neither declared any interim dividend during the year under review nor 
recommended any final dividend, there is no unpaid dividend of earlier years which has been transferred or due 
to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund during the year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year under review, your Company has transferred Rs. 2.98 crore to Statutory Reserve as required 
under section 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987 equivalent to 20% of profit after tax or deduction 
claimed u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961, whichever is higher.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, there has been no change in authorized, subscribed and paid-up Capital of your 
Company.

The capital structure of the company is as follows: 

Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)

Authorized Share Capital (250,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) 

as on March 31, 2022

 
250,00,00,000

 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid- up Capital as on March 31, 2022

  

(249,986,452 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)

  

249,98,64,520

 

Less -Share issue cost 

  

47,50,000

 

Total share capital after IND AS adjustments 249,51,14,520

14 



KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Sr. No. Name of the Directors DIN Designation Appointment Date Tenure

1 Shri. Rajesh Parmanand Khandwala 00477673
Chairman & Managing 

Director (Executive)   
November 16, 2015 

November 16, 2015 

5.5 years

5.5 years

5 years

5 years

5 years

2 Shri. Vimal Parmanand Khandwala 00477768 Managing Director 
(Executive) 

3 Shri. Padmanabh Pundrikray Vora 00003192 Independent Director 
(Non-Executive)

March 04, 2016

4 Smt. Bhavna Govindbhai Desai 06893242 Independent Director 
(Non-Executive)

December 01, 2020 1.4 years

5 Shri. Kartik Shailesh Mehta 02083342 Non-Executive Director 

Non-Executive Director 

March 04, 2016

March 04, 20166 Smt. Purvi Jayesh Bhavsar 02102740

There was no appointment and resignation during the year under review.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, Smt. 
Purvi Bhavsar is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and the Director is eligible for 
re-appointment.

All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they satisfy the fit and proper criteria as prescribed under 
the applicable regulations and that they are not disqualified from being appointed as Directors in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director under Section 149(7) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (Act) that they meets the criteria of independence laid down in the Act and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements), Regulations 2015 as amended.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications, 
experience and expertise and both the Independent Directors of the Company have registered their names with 
the data bank created for Independent Directors

The details on the number of board/committee meetings held are provided in the Report of the Directors on 
Corporate Governance, which forms part of this report.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder, 
following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company-

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala - Managing Director
Shri. Vimal Khandwala - Managing Director
* Shri. Deepak Kumar Ajmera - Chief Financial Officer 
Smt. Tejal Gala - Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

* During the year under review, Shri. Deepak Kumar Ajmera resigned from the post of Chief Financial Officer 
with effect from March 07, 2022.

Details of managerial remuneration as required under Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are forming part of MGT -9 in Annexure I.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of the Annual return as on March 31, 2022 as Annexure I forms part of 
this report.

DIRECTORS
The Composition of Board are as under:-
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KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES 
PURSUANT  TO  SECTION  188  OF  THE  COMPANIES  ACT,  2013 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 188 of the Act and rules made thereunder, the transactions 
entered with related parties are in the ordinary course of business. Some of the transactions are on an arm's 
length pricing basis and some are not at arm's length basis, the details of which are included in the notes 
forming part of the financial statements. The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties as 
prescribed in Form No. AOC-2 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed to this report in 
Annexure II.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions can be accessed at https://www.kifshousing.com/policies.html.

EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES, AND INDIVIDUAL 
DIRECTORS:

Pursuant to provisions of section 134(3)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Nomination, Remuneration & 
Evaluation Policy of the Company, the Board of your Company has carried out an annual evaluation of its own 
performance and that of its Committees as well as reviewed the performance of the Directors individually for 
financial year 2021-2022. The performance evaluation of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a 
whole, was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Independent Directors also carried out the 
evaluation of the Chairman of the Company, considering the views of Non-Executive Directors and also 
assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and 
the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. The Directors also 
carried out performance evaluation of the Managing Directors of the Company.

The evaluation was carried out through a rating based structured questionnaires prepared in accordance with 
guidance note issued by ICSI on performance evaluation, it covered various parameters which were different 
for different categories of Directors, in all it included questions/pointers with respect to appropriate expertise 
and experience, integrity, clear mission statements, policies, and strategy formulation and execution, effective 
organization structure, ensuring that there is management focus on key functions, working relationships, 
product/service knowledge, personal qualities, leadership, financial planning / performance, external 
relations, knowledge and skill, participation at Board/ Committee Meetings etc. 

The Directors have expressed their satisfaction with the parameters of evaluation, the implementation and 
compliance of the evaluation exercise done. 

GENERAL MEETING

th
The 6  Annual General Meeting of your Company was held on July 01, 2021. 

During the year under review, an Extra-ordinary General Meeting was held on November 11, 2021.

BOARD MEETINGS

The size of the Board is commensurate with the size and business of the Company. During the year under 
review, the Board Meetings were held on June 03, 2021, August 02, 2021, September 29, 2021, October 12, 
2021, November 11, 2021, December 27, 2021, January 12, 2022, January 25, 2022, February 09, 2022, 
March 07, 2022 and March 17, 2022. 

The Extract of Annual Return is also available on the website of the Company at 
https://www.kifshousing.com/annualreturn.html.
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Sr. No. Name of the Directors DIN Designation

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala 00477673
Chairman & Managing Director 

(Executive) 111

112

113

044

035

036

Shri. Vimal Khandwala 00477768

Shri. Padmanabh Vora 00003192
Independent Director 

(Non-Executive)
Independent Director 

(Non-Executive)Smt. Bhavna Desai

 

06893242

Shri. Kartik Mehta

 

02083342 Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive DirectorSmt. Purvi Bhavsar 02102740

Managing Director 
(Executive) 

No. of Meetings 
Attended out of 11

COMMITTEES  OF  THE  BOARD

The Board has constituted the various Committees with specific terms of reference to focus on specific issues 
and ensure expedient resolution of diverse matters. These inter alia includes Audit Committee, , Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Asset Liability Management 
Committee, Investment Committee and IT Strategy Committee, 

The Committees constituted on the Management level includes Risk Management Committee Customer 
Grievance Redressal Committee, Wilful Defaulter Identification Committee and Wilful Defaulter Review 
Committee.

Board level:

Management level:

Audit Committee

Customer Grievance Redressal Committee

Risk Management Committee

Wilful Defaulter Identification Committee

Wilful Defaulter Review Committee

 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Asset Liability Management Committee

Investment Committee  

IT Strategy Committee 

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met four times on June 03, 2021, September 29, 2021, 
November 11, 2021and February 09, 2022.

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

The attendance of the Board Members are as follows:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

17 



Sr. No. 
Name of the 
Committee Members

Position Designation

1

2

3

04

04

03

4 02

5 03

Shri. Vimal Khandwala

Shri. Padmanabh Vora
Independent Director 

(Non-Executive)

Independent Director 
(Non-Executive)Smt. Bhavna Desai

 
Shri. Kartik Mehta

 

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive DirectorSmt. Purvi Bhavsar

Managing Director 
(Executive) 

No. of Meetings 
Attended out of 04

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met thrice on June 03, 2021, 
August 02, 2021 and March 07, 2022.

Sr. No. 
Name of the 
Committee Members

Position Designation

1

2

3

03

03

03

014

005

6 01

Shri. Vimal Khandwala

Shri. Padmanabh Vora
Independent Director 

(Non-Executive)

Independent Director 
(Non-Executive)

Smt. Bhavna Desai

 
Shri. Kartik Mehta

 

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive DirectorSmt. Purvi Bhavsar

Managing Director 
(Executive) 

No. of Meetings 
Attended out of 03

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala Chairman & Managing Director 
(Executive) 

Sr. No. 
Name of the 
Committee Members

Position Designation

1

2

3

01

01

01

Shri. Vimal Khandwala

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala

Shri. Padmanabh Vora
Independent Director 

(Non-Executive)

Managing Director 
(Executive) 

No. of Meetings 
Attended out of 01

Chairman

Member

Member

Chairman & Managing Director 
(Executive) 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR)

During the year under review, the CSR Committee met once on June 03, 2021.

The Composition of Committee and the attendance of the Members at the meeting were as under:-

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

The Composition of Committee and the attendance of the Members at the meetings were as under:
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The attendance of the Members at the meeting were as under:-

Sr. No. 
Name of the 
Committee Members

Position Designation

1

2

3

04

04

04

014

045

6 04

Shri. Vimal Khandwala

Shri. Padmanabh Vora
Independent Director 

(Non-Executive)

Chief Operating Officer

Chief Financial Officer

*Shri. Avinash Srivastava

 
#Shri. Deepak Kumar Ajmera

 
Shri. Gundopant Salokhe

Managing Director 
(Executive) 

No. of Meetings 
Attended out of 04

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala Chairman & Managing Director 
(Executive) 

Chief Information and Technology Officer

* inducted on November 11, 2021

# resigned on March 07, 2022

Investment Committee

During the year under review, Investment Committee met once on January 12, 2022

Sr. No. 
Name of the 
Committee Members

Position Designation

1

2

3

01

01

01

004

Shri. Vimal Khandwala

Shri. Padmanabh Vora
Independent Director 

(Non-Executive)

Managing Director 
(Executive) 

No. of Meeting 
Attended out of 01

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala Chairman & Managing Director 
(Executive) 

Shri. Kartik Mehta Non-Executive Director

Chief Financial Officer#Shri. Deepak Kumar Ajmera

Shri. Gundopant Salokhe Chief Information and Technology Officer

Sr. No. 
Name of the 
Committee Members

Position Designation

1

2

3

02

02

02

024

Shri. Vimal Khandwala

Shri. Padmanabh Vora
Independent Director 

(Non-Executive)
Managing Director 

(Executive) 

No. of Meetings 
Attended out of 02

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Information Technology Strategy Committee

During the year under review, IT Strategy Committee met two times on September 03, 2021 and March 02,
2022 and the attendance of the Members at the meeting was as under:

# resigned on March 07, 2022

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Asset Liability Management Committee 

During the year under review, the Asset Liability Management Committee met four times on  June 03, 2021, 
September 29, 2021, November 11, 2021 and February 09, 2022.

19 



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, 
the Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of directors comprising Shri. Vimal 
Khandwala, Shri. Rajesh Khandwala and Shri. Padmanabh Vora. Mr. Vimal Khandwala is the Chairman of the 
Committee.

The role of the CSR Committee is to review the CSR Policy, indicate activities to be undertaken by the 
Company towards CSR and formulate a transparent monitoring mechanism to ensure implementation of 
projects and activities undertaken by the Company towards CSR Activities. 

KHFL was required to spend Rs. 32,66,940/- (rounded off to Rs. 32,67,000/-) towards CSR activities during 
the year under review. Your Company approved the same and incurred CSR Expenditure of Rs. 18,00,000/- 
towards Tata Memorial Hospital for treatment of cancer patients,  Rs. 6,67,000/- was spent towards Hunger 
Free Palghar - an initiative by Govardhan Annakshetra, ISKON for free food distribution and Rs. 8,00,000/- 
was spent towards Bhaktivedanta Hospital & Research Institute for purchasing of necessary medical 
equipments for the treatment of patients.

Details of the composition of the CSR Committee and the CSR Policy have been provided in the Annual report 
on Corporate Social Responsibility disclosed in "Annexure III" which forms an integral part of this Board's 
Report.

The Company's CSR Policy can be accessed at https://www.kifshousing.com/policies.html

REMUNERATION  OF  DIRECTORS:

As required in theMaster Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve 
Bank) Directions, 2021 issued by RBI dated February 17, 2021, the details of all pecuniary relationship or 
transactions of the non-executive directors vis-à-vis the Company are mentioned below:

During the year under review, sitting fees have been paid to Shri. Padmanabh Vora, Independent Director, 
Smt. Bhavna Desai, Independent Director, Shri. Kartik Mehta, Non-Executive Director and Smt. Purvi 
Bhavsar, Non-Executive Director for attending the Board and Committee Meetings. Details of the sitting fees 
have been provided in the Extract of annual return.

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala and Shri. Vimal Khandwala, Managing Directors do not receive any remuneration or 
sitting fees from the Company.

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AS REQUIRED UNDER RULE 5 (2) OF THE 
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) 
RULES 2014  

Being a listed Company, provisions of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are now applicable to your Company.

Disclosure as to Remuneration is attached herewith as Annexure IV and forms part of this report.
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STATUTORY AUDITORS

In terms of Section 139 of the Act, M/s Manubhai & Shah LLP (FRN: 106041W/ W100136), Chartered 
th

Accountants, were appointed as statutory auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the 6  
thAGM of the Company till the conclusion of the 11  AGM. The statutory auditors have confirmed they are not 

disqualified from continuing as auditors of the Company.

M/s Manubhai & Shah LLP (FRN: 106041W/ W100136), the Statutory Auditors of the Company have 
audited the books of accounts of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and have issued the 
Auditors Report thereon. The annual accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

As per the provisions of the NHB Notification No. NHB.HFC.CGDIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 and newly notified 
Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2021, partner of the audit firm is being rotated every three years.

Your Directors confirm that the Statutory Audit Report for Financial Year 2021-22 does not contain any 
qualifications or reservations or adverse remarks.

In terms of the Master Circular - Housing Finance Companies - Auditor's Report (NHB) Directions, 2016, the 
auditors have also submitted an additional report for FY 2021-22. There were no comments or adverse 
remarks in the said report.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any instance of frauds committed in the 
Company as per Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Your Company has an adequate system of internal control procedures which commensurate with the size and 
nature of business. Detailed procedural manuals are in place to ensure that all the assets are safeguarded, 
protected against loss and all transactions are authorised, recorded and reported correctly. The internal control 
systems of the Company are monitored and evaluated by internal auditors and their audit reports are 
periodically reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board.

Further, the Company has policies and procedures in place for Internal Financial Control ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis Report, for the year under review, is presented in Annexure V forming 
part of this Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, your Company had appointed M/s 
Kiran Doshi & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries (CP. No.: 9890) as Secretarial Auditors to conduct the 
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2021-22. 

Your Company has provided all assistance and information to the Secretarial Auditors for conducting their 
audit. The report of Secretarial Auditors in the prescribed Form MR-3 does not contain any audit observations, 
and accordingly, explanations or comments by the Board are not required to be provided. The MR-3 is 
annexed in Annexure VI of this report.
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INTERNAL AUDITOR

Your Company has appointed Sanjay Vastupal & Co.Chartered Accountants holding Firm Registration No.: 
109187W to carry out the financial and operational audit of the Company. 

The Company has outsourced and has in place external system which is designed to ensure operational 
efficiency, accuracy and promptness in financial reporting and compliance with laws and regulations. The 
internal control system is supported by an Internal Audit team outsourced which is responsible for 
independently evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of all internal controls, risk management, 
governance systems and processes and is manned by team of qualified personnel. 

The Internal Audit team during the course of its audit also ascertains the extent of adherence to regulatory 
guidelines, legal requirements and operational processes and provides timely feedback to the Management for 
corrective action. Internal Audit Reports are obtained on a quarterly basis, which are reviewed by the Audit 
Committee and discussed with the Management.

The Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee periodically review various risks associated with 
the business of the Company and ensure effectiveness of the internal controls in the Company. The Company's 
internal control system commensurate with the size and the nature of its operations.

The Financial and Operational Audit Report does not contain any qualifications or reservations or adverse 
remarks.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Your Company is in the lending business hence it faces various risks in its scale of operations. The Company 
has in place a Risk Management framework so that risks that the Company faces are identified, controlled and 
priced in a manner that the Company can continue its operations in a profitable and sustainable manner. 

The Risk Management Policy is to identify and mitigate elements of risk which in the opinion of the Board 
may impact the Company and helps to promote risk awareness amongst employees and to integrate risk 
management within the corporate culture. 

Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the Company. The assessment is 
periodically done and examined by the Board of Directors of the Company and has delegated responsibility of 
overseeing Risk Management Framework to the Audit Committee. In order to monitor the Risk in the business 
and operations, the Risk Management committee was duly constituted as per the provisions under the 
Companies Act, 2013 and National Housing Bank Guidelines. Your Company follows the best practice for 
management of credit risk, market risk and operational risk and has put in place a comprehensive Risk 
Management Policy envisaging a robust risk management programme.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

In compliance with the provisions of the Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made 
thereunder, the Whistle-Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy is formulated as part of the Vigil Mechanism 
established by the Company for Directors and Employees to report genuine concerns, to provide a secure 
environment and to encourage employees to report unethical, unlawful or improper practices, acts or activities 
in the Company and to prohibit managerial personnel from taking any adverse action against those employees 
who report such practices in good faith.
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KHFL is committed to developing a culture where it is safe for all employees to raise concerns about any 
wrongful conduct. The Company believes in conducting its affairs in a fair and transparent manner by 
adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior.

The Whistle-Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy aims to provide a channel to the Directors and employees to 
report genuine concerns and grievances about victimization, unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud, 
violation of the Codes of Conduct or policy. This Policy provides for adequate safeguards against 
victimization of Directors and employees and also provides direct access to the Chairman of the Audit and 
Risk Management Committee. The Whistle-Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism is uploaded on the website of 
the Company at https://www.kifshousing.com/policies.html.

PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS, LOANS & GUARANTEES UNDER SECTION 186 OF 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

As the Company is a Housing Finance Company, the disclosure regarding particulars of the loans made, 
guarantee given and security provided in the ordinary course of business are exempted under the provisions of 
Section 186(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

However, your Company has not given any loan or provided any guarantee or any security or made any 
investment during the year under review. 

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company is committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of all it's employees including women 
employees and it has a policy which provides for protection against sexual harassment of women at workplace 
and redressal of such complaints through the active Internal Complaint Committee to redress any complaints 
received in timely and systematic manner.

During the year under review, no such complaints were received.

The policy along with all other required details is placed on the notice board of the Company, the same can be 
accessed at https://www.kifshousing.com/policies.html.

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT

Your Company has appointed M/s. NSDL Database Management Limited as the Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent.

The shares of your Company had been admitted for dematerialization with National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) with International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the Company is 
INE0CP101016.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board members and designated employees of the 
C o m p a n y.  T h e  C o d e  o f  C o n d u c t  i s  p o s t e d  o n  t h e  w e b s i t e  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y  a t 
https://www.kifshousing.com/policies.html. For the year under review, all Directors and members of 
management have affirmed their adherence to the provisions of the Code.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS  AND  OUTGO

Conservation of energy

The Company's operations call for nominal energy consumption cost and there are no major areas where 
conservation measures could be applied on. However, the Company is making continuous efforts to conserve 
energy and optimize energy consumption practicable by economizing the use of power.

Technology Absorption

The Company has always been using the latest technology available in the industry. Accordingly, efforts are 
made to maintain and develop the quality of the product to meet the expectation of market.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outflow

a) Foreign Exchange earnings - NIL
b) Foreign Exchange outgo - NIL

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring compliance with the provisions of Section 134(1)(c) 
read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the preparation of annual accounts for the year ended 
March 31, 2022 and states that-

(I) In the preparation of the annual financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the
            applicable Accounting Standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 
            departures, if any;

(ii)       Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgement 
            and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
            the Company at the end of the financial year and of the Profit and Loss of the Company for that period;

(iii)      The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting             
            records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
            the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv)      The Directors have ensured preparation of annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v)       The Company has laid down internal financial controls. The Company has also assessed the adequacy
            of the Company's internal controls over financial reporting as of March 31, 2021 and have found them
            to be adequate and

(vi)      The Directors have revised and reviewed proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
            all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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SANCTIONS

Loans Sanctioned during the year were Rs. 209.23 crore as against Rs. 289.51 crore in the previous year. 
Cumulative Sanction as on March 31, 2022 was Rs. 946.21 crore as against Rs. 656.70 crore in the previous 
year.

DISBURSEMENTS

Loan Disbursement during the year was Rs.134.52 crore as against Rs. 212.08 crore in the previous year. 
Cumulative Disbursements as on March 31, 2022 were Rs. 745.47 crore as against Rs. 610.95 crore in the 
previous year.

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT (AUM)

As on March 31, 2022, Company had Home Loan & Loan against property AUM of  Rs. 491.31 crore with a 
growing customer base of 6443.

NON-PERFORMING ASSETS (NPA)

62 Loan accounts out of 6443 loan accounts (1.08% gross NPA) were identified as Non-Performing Assets as 
on March 31, 2022. As per region wise analysis, Maharashtra had 27 cases which is 0.51% of the portfolio, 
Gujarat had 14 cases which is 0.22%, Rajasthan had 5 cases which is 0.14% and Madhya Pradesh had 16 cases 
which is 0.22% of the portfolio.

COLLECTION/ RECOVERY

KHFL has a Collection and Recovery team headed by the experienced team members. Collection in the low-
income housing segment is quite challenging but highly important. The Company has a robust collection 
management in-house team and also entire sales contributes to the collection drive across all the regions, 
supervised by regional officers and the head office of the Company. The team manages the life cycle of 
transactions and monitors the portfolio quality. KIFS's highly robust collection structure regularly monitors all 
the loan accounts - from the zero bucket accounts to 3rd bucket (collection of instalments in standard accounts) 
to NPAs. Company's internal process controls are set up whereby information on cheque bounces and returns 
are received on real-time-basis. 

The Company is further streamlining this process through Collection mobilization to ensure unified approach 
and control on recovery. And if essential legal measures are taken against the defaulting customers with the 
help of the legal team who handles SARFAESI matters as well.

PRADHAN MANTRI AWAS YOJANA (PMAY)

Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY) is an initiative by Government of India in which affordable housing is 
provided to the Urban poor. KIFS Housing had signed the MOU with the Government of India for the Credit 
linked subsidy Scheme (CLSS) under the Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana for EWS, LIG and MIG segments. 
KIFS Housing been into affordable housing sector has successfully availed various schemes under the 
government initiative - CLSS, KIFS has been an active contributor to the scheme during the year and availed 
subsidy for customers under the scheme in order to reduce the burden of Home loan amount. During the 
financial year 2021-22 KIFS Housing has received the claims  of  Rs. 10.17 crore for 422 cases.
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Institution Date Amount (in Rs.) Nos. 

NHB –
 

PMAY
 

20 -05 -2021
 

64,15,305
 

32
 

NHB – PMAY 30 -07 -2021 22,53,597 9

NHB – PMAY 29 -09 -2021 7,38,20,089 303

NHB –
 

PMAY

 

04 -02 -2022

 

15,74,587
 

6

 

NHB –

 

PMAY

 

22 -02 -2022

 

1,76,85,837

 

72

 

Total 10,17,49,415 422

The Subsidy received under the scheme is credited in the respective customers loan account by way of 
prepayment.

WILFUL  DEFAULTERS

Pursuant to the policy circular 74 and 83 by National Housing Bank, during the year Company had no wilful 
defaulters/customers. In compliance to policy circulars, the Company is a member of four Credit information 
Company namely CIBIL Information Bureau (India) Limited, Equifax Credit Information Services Private 
Limited, CRIF High Mark Credit information Services Private Limited and Experian Credit Information 
Company of India Private Limited.

GRIEVANCE  REDRESSAL  SYSTEM

The Company focuses on customer experience, we also strive to ensure transparency in our operations and 
communication. All customer complaints received across branches/ front channels are managed through a 
centralized complaints management system for tracking and timely resolution. We continue to take steps to 
ensure customer satisfaction.

The Company has a well-defined grievance handling mechanism. It ensures that the redressal is not only 
prompt but satisfactory to the customer. For this the redressal team is well trained and undergoes continuous 
coaching to ensure that they are not only clear in their redressal but are also patient and sensitive with 
customers who may not be tech savvy and require extra support.

The Company has a Grievance redressal Policy with escalation mechanism wherein complaints are escalated 
to the level of Branch heads, Head of Operations. Complaints forwarded by regulatory and supervisory 
authorities are tracked separately.

REPORT ON LEGAL AND TECHNICAL RISK 

The Company's primary function is to advance loans to customers by taking land or building as the primary 
security. Any legal defects in the underlying collateral may pose legal, financial and operational loss to the 
Company. The Company has high expertise and dedicated Operations team and is led by an experienced Head 
having significant experience in the retail asset and mortgage sector. KIFS has a robust process to undertake 
legal due diligence of the property documents involving in-house lawyers along with HOD's with expertise 
and experience of the sector. To ensure compliance with regional and local laws, detailed State-laws are 
studied and are placed in order to review and make note of the changes therein. The Company also engages 
subject matter consultants for independent due diligence in case of very specific regional matters and in some 
cases for cross valuation, end-to-end root cause and analysis. Legal opinions are taken and search for 
encumbrances are done through empanelled advocates.
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TOTAL BORROWINGS

A.   Debentures

During the year under review, no NCD's were issued.

Below are details of existing NCD's-

Sr. No.
 
 

Name of the 
Debenture 

Holders
 

Quantity
Face value 

(Rs.) Issue Price Tenor BSE Listing Date
 

 

1
 

Canara Bank
 

125
 

12.50 crore
 

3 Years
 

August 17, 2020
 

2

 

Bank of Baroda

 

250

 

25.00 crore

 

3 Years

 
September 14, 
2020

 

3

 

#Punjab National 
Bank

 

100

 

10,00,000.00
 

*6,66,666.664-

 

10,00,000.00

 

10.00 crore

 

1.5 Years

 

November 25, 
2020

 

Total debt issued

 

Rs.

 

47.50 crore

Your Company has been prompt and regular in making payment of principal and interest on the NCDs and the 
same has been reported to BSE Limited, the Trustees and Depositories. During the year under review, the 
NCDs were paid/redeemed by your Company on their respective due dates and there were no instances of any 
NCDs which have not been claimed by the investor or not paid by the Company after the date on which the 
NCDs became due for redemption. Hence, the amount of NCDs remaining unclaimed or unpaid beyond due 
date is nil. The NCDs are listed on BSE Limited.

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Housing Finance Companies issuance of Non-
Convertible Debentures on Private Placement basis (NHB) Directions, 2014 and Master Direction - Non-
Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

B. Loan Assets 

Loan Assets as at March 31, 2022 are of Rs. 491.31 crore against Rs. 451.22 crore as at March 31, 2021.

C. Refinance from National Housing Bank

During the year under review, your Company has not received refinance from NHB.
 
D. Bank Term Loan 

KHFL received sanctions and Disbursements from various banks during the year.

Total loan received from Banks in FY 21-22 amount to Rs. 70.00 crore which included Rs. 50.00 crore from the 
State Bank of India, Rs. 10.00 crore from IDBI Bank Limited and Rs. 10.00 crore from the Federal Bank 
Limited.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

Pursuant to the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve 
Bank) Directions, 2021 issued by RBI dated February 17, 2021, every Housing Finance Company shall, 
maintain a minimum capital ratio on an ongoing basis consisting of Tier-I and Tier-II capital which shall not be 
less than 13% as on March 31, 2020, 14% as on March 31, 2021 and 15% as on March 31, 2022. 

The capital adequacy ratio maintained by your Company as at March 31, 2022 is 90.54% as compared to 
81.60% as on March 31, 2021, which is far above than the minimum required level of 15% as on March 31, 
2022.

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

# The non - convertible debentures issued to Punjab National Bank were fully redeemed on May 10, 2022.

*The face value post partial redemption on August 31, 2021 reduced from Rs. 10,00,000 to Rs. 6,66,666.664.
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CREDIT RATING

Following ratings are allotted to your Company for borrowings mentioned below: 

Rating Agency  Instrument Rating type Amount Rating(s) assigned

Acuite Ratings & 
Research Limited 

 
 Bank Loans

 
Long Term

 
292.50 crore #ACUITE A-/ Outlook: Stable

#ACUITE A-/ Outlook: Stable

 

Acuite Ratings & 
Research Limited

 

Non-Convertible Debentures 

Non-Convertible Debentures 

Long Term
 

37.50 crore
 

Brickwork Ratings 
India Private Limited

Long Term

 

35.00 crore

 

*BWR BBB+/ Outlook Stable 

 

 

STATUTORY, REGULATORY AND OTHER COMPLAINCES

The Company has complied with the applicable statutory provisions including inter alia the Companies Act, 
2013 and Rules made thereunder, the Income Tax Act, 1961, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial 
Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 and all other various circulars, 
notifications, directions and guidelines issued by NHB from time to time and all other laws as may be 
applicable to the Company. The Company has finalized its financial statements for the year under review as per 
the Accounting standards issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

NOMINATION, REMUNERATION & EVALUATION POLICY 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated a policy on Nomination and Remuneration 
of Directors/KMP/Senior Management Personnel, following are the salient features of the Policy: 

Ÿ        Scope & functions
Ÿ  Appointment criteria for the Board and Other Employees/Composition of Board
Ÿ  Nomination process & Disqualifications
Ÿ  Removal& Retirement
Ÿ  Remuneration criteria for the Board and the Employees
Ÿ  Evaluation criteria of the Board and the Employees

The detailed policy can be accessed at https://www.kifshousing.com/policies.html

INTERNAL GUIDELINES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the financial year under review, your Company adhered to all Internal Guidelines on Corporate 
Governance in accordance with the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance 
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 issued by RBI dated February 17, 2021, which lay down the 
Corporate Governance practices. 

The policy on Internal Guidelines on Corporate Governance can be accessed at 
https://www.kifshousing.com/policies.html.
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#External credit rating “A- STABLE” assigned to Non-convertible Debenture and long term Bank facilities has 
been reviewed by Acuite on February 04, 2021.

*External  credit rating  “BBB + STABLE”  assigned to Non-convertible has  been reviewed by  Brickworks on 
July 30, 2021. The balance amount of Rs. 2.50 crore was neither raised nor shall be raised, hence the amount for 
rating of NCD  was reduced to Rs. 35.00 crore from Rs. 37.50 .crore

https://www.kifshousing.com/policies.html


HUMAN  RESOURCES  DEVELOPMENT
 
The Human Resource team of your Company continued to remain focused on five key measures to drive 
business outcomes, namely-building critical skills and competencies, strengthening the current and future 
leadership bench, incorporating organisational design and change management, driving digital business 
transformation and enhancing employee experience.

The pandemic by itself forced the Company to quickly pivot when it comes to organisational business goals 
and cost optimization making them one of the main priority during the year in order to effectively adapt to 
today's fast-changing conditions.

The HR played a role of dedicated COVID Response Taskforce to agilely tackle the emerging situations 
during the pandemic and played a vital role, covering several fronts, such as ensuring the health of the 
workforce, implementing safety protocols for our employees who needed to operate out of our 
branches/offices, leading the communications between the business and the employees, developing work-
from-home policies as required, and in helping our staff cope with and adjust to their newly altered work 
environment.

PROVISIONS  NOT  APPLICABLE
 
Ÿ Disclosure under section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable as the Company does not 

have any Holding or Subsidiary Company.
Ÿ Maintenance of cost records under the provisions of Section 148(1) of Companies Act, 2013 are not 

applicable. 

GENERAL  DISCLOSURES

Your Directors make the following disclosures with respect to transactions/ events during the year under 
review:

1.  There was no issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
2.  There was no issue of Shares (Including Sweat Equity Shares) to employees of the Company under any   
     Scheme.
3.  No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the
     going concern status and the Company's operations in future.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation to all employees for their hard work, 
spirited efforts, dedication and loyalty to KIFS Housing. The employees have worked based on principles of 
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wish to place on record their appreciation to shareholders, referral associates, National Housing Bank, the 
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For and on behalf of 
Board of Directors of KIFS Housing Finance Limited,

Rajesh Khandwala
Managing Director & Chairman

DIN: 00477673

Date: May 27, 2022
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE-I TO BOARDS REPORT

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2022

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder, the extract 
of the annual return for FY 2021-22 is given herewith in the prescribed Form No. MGT-9.

1. Registration and other details 

1 CIN U65922GJ2015PLC085079 

2
 

Registration Date
 

November 16, 2015
 

3
 

Name of the Company
 

KIFS Housing Finance Limited (converted to a Public 
Limited Company on February 24, 2020)  

 

4

 

Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Non-Government Company Limited by Shares 

5
 

Address of the Registered Office and Contact Details  B- 81, Pariseema Complex, C. G. Road, 
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad-380006  Gujarat, India.

Phone: 022-61796409 

6
 

Whether Listed Company Yes / No
 

Yes, It’s a Debt Listed Company   
 

7 Name, Address and Contact
Details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 

 NSDL Database Management Limited
Address: Kamala Mills Compound, 4th
Floor, Trade World, A Wing, Times Tower,
Lower Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400013 

 

2. Principal Business activities of the Company 

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company are given below:  

 
Sr. No. Name and Description of Main Products / Services  NIC Code of the 

Product / Service 
%  to Total Turnover of the 
Company  

1 Residential mortgage loan services 99711310 100%

3. Particulars  of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies

Sr.
No.

Name and Address of the Company CIN / GLN
Holding / 
Subsidiary /
Associate  

% of 
Shares
Held  

Applicable 
Section 

NIL
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c.

24,99,86,452 24,99,86,452 24,99,86,452 24,99,86,452
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KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Sitting fee for attending Board / 

Committee meetings

Particulars of Remuneration

Commission -

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Others

Total (B)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall ceiling as per the Act NA

Shri. Padmanabh 
Pundrikray Vora

Shri. Kartik 
S. Mehta

Shri. Purvi 
J. Bhavsar

Shri. Bhavna 
Govindbhai Desai

Amount

Name of Directors

Non-Executive Director

b.  Remuneration to Other Directors (Non-Executive Directors)

2.60,000 50,000 70,000 90,000 470000

470000

(Amount in Rs) 
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VIII.  Penalties / Punishment / Compounding of Offences: NIL 

For and on behalf of 

Board of Directors of KIFS Housing Finance Limited,

Rajesh Khandwala
Managing Director & Chairman

DIN: 00477673

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

sd/-

VIII.  Penalties / Punishment / Compounding of Offences: NIL 

For and on behalf of 

Board of Directors of KIFS Housing Finance Limited,

Rajesh Khandwala
Managing Director & Chairman

DIN: 00477673

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

sd/-
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(a)  Name (s) of the related party and nature of relationship  KIFS International LLP
 

(b)  Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
 

Lease Deed for property at Vadodara for Branch Office 
of the Company 

 

 

 Continuing and Ongoing

  

(d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any           

 NA

 

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 
transactions 

 
The rent was waived by KIFS International LLP 
considering that KIFS Housing Finance Limited is a 
group entity    

  

(f)  Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any

 

June 03, 2021

 

(g)  Amount paid as advances, if any

 

NA

 

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general 
meeting as required under first proviso to section 188  

 

NA

 

 

[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length and not 
at arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis

ANNEXURE - II

FORM NO. AOC-2
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(a)  Name (s) of the related party and nature of relationship  KIFS Trade Capital Private Limited
 

(b)  Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
 

Lease Deed for property at Mumbai (Corporate Office) 

of the Company
 

 
 Continuing and Ongoing

  

(d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any           

 NA

 

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 
transactions 

 
  

(f)  Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any

 

June 03, 2021

 

(g)  Amount paid as advances, if any

 

NA

 

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general 
meeting as required under first proviso to section 188  

 

NA

 

 

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis

The rent was waived by KIFS Trade Capital Private 
Limited  considering that KIFS Housing Finance 
Limited is a group entity   



The fee was waived by KIFS Trade Capital Private 
Limited since KIFS Housing Finance Limited is a 
group entity.    

(a)  Name (s) of the related party and nature of relationship  KIFS Trade Capital Private Limited
 

(b)  Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
 

IT related services  
 

 Continuing and Ongoing
  

(d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any           

 NA

 

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 
transactions 

 
  

(f)  Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any

 

June 03, 2021

 

(g)  Amount paid as advances, if any

 

NA

 

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general 
meeting as required under first proviso to section 188  

 

NA

 

 

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis

(a)  Name (s) of the related party and nature of relationship  KIFS Trade Capital Private Limited
 

(b)  Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
 

 
 

 –

  

(d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any:           

 As stated by the broker in the engagement letter, it is 
not mandatory to charge the brokerage or commission.

 

 
  (e)  Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

 

June 03, 2021

 

 
NA

 

Acting as Broker for investment in Mutual Fund

(f)  Amount paid as advances, if any:

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

(a)  Name (s) of the related party and nature of relationship  KIFS International LLP
 

(b)  Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions  Lease Deed for property at Ahmedabad for Regional 

Office of the Company
 

 
 Continuing and Ongoing

  

(d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any           

 NA

 

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 
transactions 

 
The rent was waived by KIFS International LLP 
considering that KIFS Housing Finance Limited is a 
group entity    

  

(f)  Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any

 

June 03, 2021

 

(g)  Amount paid as advances, if any

 

NA

 

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general 
meeting as required under first proviso to section 188  

 

NA

 

 

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis
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ANNEXURE-III

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ("CSR") ACTIVITIES

1. Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company. 

The Companies  Act,  2013 ("Act") has  made  it  compulsory  for  Companies  to  carry  out Corporate Social 
Responsibility Activities. The Government of India, on February 27, 2014, notified provisions and 
corresponding rules pertaining to CSR. Corporate Social Responsibility is a Company's sense of 
responsibility towards the community and environment in which it operates. It is the continuing commitment 
by business to behave ethically and contribute to economic development of the society at large. KIFS is 
committed to remain a responsible corporate entity mindful of its social responsibilities and to make a positive 
impact in the society.

The CSR Policy applies to the formulation, execution, monitoring, evaluation and documentation of CSR 
activities in the target locations in and around the Company's office.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation/ Nature of Directorship  
Number of meetings of 
CSRCommittee held 

during the year   

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee attended

during the year  

1 1

1

1

1

1

1

Shri. Vimal Khandwala  

Shri. Rajesh  Khandwala  

Shri. Padmanabh Vora

Chairman/ Managing Director  

Member/  Managing Director  

Member/  Independent  Director  

2

3

Sr. No. Financial Year 
Amount available for set-off 
from preceding financial year 
(in Rs.) 

Amount required to be set – off for 
the financial year, if any (in Rs.) 

1 2021-2022  NIL NIL

3. Web - link for composition of CSR Committee, CSR policy and CSR projects disclosed on the 
website: https://www.kifshousing.com/policies.html

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of 
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: Not Applicable 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial 
year, if any: 

6. Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) : Rs. 16, 33,46,981/-
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7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) : Rs. 32,66,940/-(Company 
has spent amount of Rs. 32,67,000/- as against 2% of average profit i.e. Rs. 32,66,940/-)

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: 
NIL

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b+7c): Rs. 32,66,940/-

8.  (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount
Spent for the

Financial Year.
(in Rs.)

Company has 
spent amount of 
Rs. 32,67,000/- 
as against 2% of 
average profit i.e. 

Rs. 32,66,940

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR Account 

as per section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Date of Transfer Name of the fund Amount Date of transfer

Name of 

the 

Project

Item 

from the

list of 

activities

in 

Schedule 

VII to 

the Act

Local 

area

(Yes/No)

Location 

of the 

project.

Project

duration

Amount

allocated

for the

project

(in Rs.)

Amount 

spent in 

the 

current 

financial 

Year 

(in Rs.).

Amount 

transferred 

to Unspent 

CSR 

Account for 

the project 

as per 

Section 

135(6) 

(in Rs.).

Mode of 

Implemen

tation -

Direct

(Yes/No).

Mode of 

Implementation - 

Through 

Implemen

ting

Agency

Sr. No

1

1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

CSR 

Registration 

No

NameDistrictState

Not Applicable as there no ongoing projects for the financial year

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
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1

 

2

 

3

 

4

 

5

 

7

 

8

 

9

 

10

 

11

 

Sr. No.
 Name of 

the Project

 Item from the
list of

activities
in Schedule

VII to the Act  

 

 

 

Local
area
(Yes/
No) 

 

 Location of the
project. 

 Amount
allocated
for the
project
(in Rs.)

 

 

 

 

Amount
spent in

the current
financial
Year (in

Rs.).     

 

Amount 
transfer
red to 

Unspent
 CSR 

Account
for the 
project 
as per 

Section 
135(6) 

(in Rs.).

 

 
Mode of 
Impleme
ntation - 

Direct

(Yes/No)

 Mode of Implementation - 
Through Implementing Agency 

 

 

   

State

 

District

     

Name

 

CSR 
Registration No 

1

 
Treatment 
of Cancer 
Patients

 

promoting 
health care 
including 
preventive 
health care

 
Yes

 
  

18,00,000/-

 

18,00,000/-

 

NIL

 

No

 
Tata

Memorial
Centre  

 

2
  

“The 
Hunger 
Free 
Palghar” - 
Govardhan 
Annakshetra 

Eradicating hunger  Yes
 

Maharashtra

Maharashtra

Maharashtra

 Mumbai 
City 

Mumbai 
City 

Mumbai 
City 

 6,67,000/-
 

6,67,000/-
 

NIL
 

No
 International

Society
for Krishna

Consciousness   

3 

Purchase of
Medical
Equipment
for the
treatment
of patients     

  

promoting
health care
including
preventive
health care   

 
Yes
  

8,00,000/-
 

8,00,000/-
 

NIL
 

No
 

Bhaktivedanta
Hospital 

and
Research
Institute

  

CSR00001287

CSR00005241

CSR00001017



(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: None

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable  

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 32,66,940/-

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sr. No Particulars Amounts (in Rs.)

Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5)

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 
previous financial years, if any

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

32,66,940/-1

2

3

4

5

32,67,000/-

60/-

Nil

Nil

9.  (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sr. No.
Preceding 
Financial 

Year  

Amount
transferred
to Unspent

CSR
Account
under

section 135
(6) (in Rs.)       

Amount
spent in

the
reporting
Financial
Year (in 

Rs.)    

Amount transferred to any
fund specified under Schedule

VII as per section 135(6), if any.  

Name of
the Fund 

Amount
(in Rs) 

Date of 
transfer 

NIL

Amount 
remaining 
to be spent 

in 
succeeding 
financial 

years 
(in Rs.)

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial 
year(s):

1 NIL

Status 
of the 

project - 
Comple

ted /
Ongoing

Cumulative 
amount 
spent at 

the end of 
reporting 
Financial 

Year. 
(in Rs.)

Amount 
spent on 

the 
project in 

the 
reporting 
Financial 

Year 
(in Rs)

Total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 
project 
(in Rs.)

Project 
duration

Financial 
Year in 
which 

the 
project 

was 
commenced

Name 
of the

 Project

Project 
ID

Sr. 
No
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: None

a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s):  Nil 
b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Nil 
c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, 
their address etc.: Nil
d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the 
capital asset): Nil 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5): None 

For KIFS Housing Finance Limited,

Date: May 27, 2022
Place: Mumbai

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Rajesh Khandwala
Managing Director & Chairman

DIN: 00477673

sd/-

Vimal Khandwala
( Chairman of CSR Committee)

Managing Director
DIN: 00477768

sd/-
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Shri. Rajesh Khandwala, Chairman & Managing Director – Nil

Shri. Vimal Khandwala, Managing Director - Nil

Shri. Padmanabh Vora, Independent Director - Nil

Smt. Bhavna Desai, Independent Director - Nil

Shri. Kartik Mehta, Non- Executive Director - Nil

Smt. Purvi Bhavsar, Non- Executive Director - Nil

Shri. Rajesh Khandwala, Chairman & Managing Director – Nil

Shri. Vimal Khandwala, Managing Director - Nil

Shri. Padmanabh Vora, Independent Director - Nil

Smt. Bhavna Desai, Independent Director - Nil

Shri. Kartik Mehta, Non- Executive Director - Nil

Smt. Purvi Bhavsar, Non- Executive Director - Nil

Key Managerial Personnel other than Directors

Shri. Deepak Kumar Ajmera - Chief financial officer - 22%

Smt. Tejal Gunjan Gala - Company Secretary -14%

16%

The Company had 372 employees on the rolls as on 
March 31, 2022

The ratio of the remuneration of 
each director to the median 
remuneration of the employees 
for the financial year 2021-22

The percentage increase in 
remuneration of each Director, 
Chief Financial Officer and 
Company Secretary in the 
financial year 2021-22

The percentage increase in 
the median remuneration of 
employees in the financial 
year 2021-22

The number of permanent 
employees on the rolls of 
Company

Requirements DisclosuresSr. No.

1

2

3

4

ANNEXURE-IV
DISCLOSURE AS TO REMUNERATION 

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees and other details in 
terms of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is as follows:

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 48 



Average percentile increase 
already made in the salaries of 
employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year 
and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof 
and point out if there are any 
exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial 
remuneration.

The median percentage increase made in the salaries of 
employees other than the Key Managerial Personnel was 
14% while the median increase in the salaries of the Key 
Managerial Personnel was 15%. The increase in the 
remuneration is in line with the Company's Performance 
appraisal policy. 

Affirmation that the remuneration is 
as per the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy of the 
Company

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is as per the 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

5

6

Details of employee remuneration as required under the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with 
Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
forms part of this report. However, as per the second proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
second proviso of  Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, the Report and Financial Statements are being sent to the Members of the Company excluding 
the said statement. Any Member interested in obtaining a copy of the said statement may write to the Company 
Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.
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ANNEXURE V

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

We are on a journey called PROGRESS.

Indian Economic Review

According to the economic survey 21-22, Investment, as measured by Gross Fixed Capital Formation (GFCF) 
is expected to see strong growth of 15 per cent in 2021-22 and achieve full recovery of pre-pandemic level. It 
notes that inflation has reappeared as a global issue in both advanced and emerging economies. The surge in 
energy prices, non-food commodities, input prices, disruption of global supply chains, and rising freight costs 
stoked global inflation during the year.

It is not just about the immediate disruptions and uncertainty caused by repeated waves of the pandemic, but 
also the longer-term uncertainty about the post-Covid world due to accelerated shifts in technology, consumer 
behaviour, supply-chains, geo-politics, climate change and a host of other factors. Not only are these 
individual factors difficult to forecast, the impact of their interactions are fundamentally unpredictable.

The Survey pointed out that the last two years have been difficult for the world economy on account of the 
COVID-19 pandemic. Repeated waves of infection, supply-chain disruptions and more recently, global 
inflation have created particularly challenging times for policy-making. In conclusion, it is quite optimistic 
that overall macro-economic stability indicators suggest that the Indian Economy is well placed to take on the 
challenges of 2022-23 and one of the reasons that the Indian Economy is in good position is its unique 
response strategy.

COVID Impact

Housing Finance companies and Non-Bank Finance Companies have been impacted by COVID-19 by way of 
operational disruptions, subdued collections and requirement of creating additional provisions to meet the 
post-COVID uncertainties.

Vaccine rollout in major world economies has raised hopes of higher economic growth. However, the bounce 
back will also be largely dependent on controlling the pandemic in low-income and emerging market 
economies. The future of global economic growth will depend on three major factors: the evolution path of the 
health crisis, including whether the new COVID-19 strains prove susceptible to vaccines or they prolong the 
pandemic; the effectiveness of policy actions to limit persistent economic damage; and the evolution of 
financial conditions across countries and the adjustment capacity of their economies.

Industry Overview 

The housing credit market in India has soared over the years to 23 trillion in Fiscal year 2021, clocking a 
CAGR of 18% over the years from fiscal 2014 to fiscal 2021. The contribution of housing credit to the 
country's GDP was 11.4% in fiscal 2021.

As per ICRA, the overall housing portfolio of banks/HFCs stood at 24 lakh crore at September 30, 2021, of 
which HFCs contributed around 33%.

The report said the stress on cash flows of borrowers caused by the pandemic also renewed demand for 
restructuring. The industry's outstanding restructured portfolio increased to around 2.3 per cent of assets 
under management (AUM) as of September 30, 2021.
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As the second wave of COVID pandemic hit at the beginning of fiscal 2022, the government along with RBI 
announced scheme of measures with the purpose to inject liquidity and ease the burden of priority sectors.

HFCs are likely to witness a growth of 8-10 per cent in fiscal year 2022 due to rise in economic and higher 
demand. The second wave of the pandemic impacted disbursements collection efficiency of the HFC industry, 
and the industry's on-book portfolio remained flat at end of first quarter of fiscal 2022 vis-à-vis fourth quarter 
of fiscal 2021. However, the collection efficiency started bouncing back by the end of June 2021 and improved 
further in the second quarter of the financial year 2022.

Nevertheless, despite nil sequential growth in Q1 FY2022, aforementioned favourable factors provide hope 
for better growth prospects in FY2022 with an estimated growth rate of 8-10 per cent. The collection 
efficiency for the industry has returned to pre-COVID levels.

Financial Performance of KHFL

Despite an extremely challenging year due to the ongoing pandemic, the Company ably navigated the difficult 
macroeconomic environment and ended FY 2021-22 on strong financial footing. The Company's balance 
sheet stood at 617.85 Crores as at end of FY 2021-22. Total loan book stood at Rs. 491.31 Crores. The 
Company's revenues for the year ended March 31, 2022 were Rs. 65.35 Crores and profits for the year were 
Rs.12.83 Crores. Asset quality remained stable with Gross NPAs of 1.08% and Net NPAs of 0.62%. Total 
provisions stood at Rs. 8.77 Crores, almost 4 times the regulatory requirement and equivalent to a healthy 
1.79% of loan book. The Company is also one of the best capitalized amongst peers with capital adequacy 
ratio of  90.54% on a standalone basis.

Operational Highlights

Despite challenging macro-economic conditions, the Company's focus on building a strong balance sheet 
through FY 2021-22 yielded results with augmented capital adequacy levels, stable asset quality, high 
provision buffers and comfortable liquidity on its balance sheet.

As at March 31, 2022, on a standalone basis, the product-wise break-up of loans consisted 86% as housing 
loans and 14% as non-housing loans. The Company's asset quality is stable with a high provision buffer. Gross 
NPAs at a consolidated level were at 1.08% and Net NPAs at 0.62% of total loan assets managed. Total 
provision buffer of Rs. 8.77 Crores at a consolidated level, represents 1.79% of loan book.

Branch Network

Your Company had expanded its footprint with focus on affordable housing finance business, with a total of 
75branches/offices as on March 31, 2022.

Resource Mobilization

Share Capital

Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)

Authorized Share Capital (250,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) as on March 31, 2022

Issued, Subscribed and Paid - up Capital as on March 31, 2022 (249,986,452 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)

Less - Share issue cost

Total share capital after IND AS adjustments

250,00,00,000

249,98,64,520

47,50,000

249,51,14,520
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Borrowed  Funds
During the year, Your Company received the total loan from Banks in FY 2021- 2022 amounting to Rs. 70.00 
crore which included Rs. 50.00 crore from the State Bank of India, Rs. 10.00 crore from IDBI Bank Limited 
and Rs. 10.00 crore from the Federal Bank Limited.

Credit Rating

The Company has been assigned the following ratings:

#External credit rating "A- STABLE"assigned to Non-convertible Debenture and long term Bank facilities 
has been reviewed by Acuite on February 04, 2021.

*External credit rating "BBB+ STABLE" assigned to Non-convertible Debentures has been reviewed by 
Brick works on July 30, 2021. The balance amount of Rs. 2.50 crore has neither been raised nor shall be raised, 
hence the amount for rating of  NCD was reduced to Rs. 35.00 crore from Rs. 37.50 crore.

Human Resource

KHFL believes that its competitive advantage lies in its people. The Company's people bring to the stage 
multi-sectoral experience, technological experience and domain knowledge. The Company always takes 
decisions in alignment with the professional and personal goals of employees, achieving an ideal work-life 
balance and enhancing pride in association. The Company's employee count stood at 372 as of March 31, 
2022.

NHB Guidelines and Prudential Norms 

KIFS Housing has complied with the guidelines issued by NHB regarding accounting guidelines, prudential 
norms for asset classification, income recognition, provisioning, capital adequacy, concentration of credit, 
credit rating, Know Your Customer (KYC) guidelines and Anti Money Laundering (AML) Standards, Fair 
Practices Code, grievance redressal mechanism, valuation of properties, recovery of dues, channel partners 
and real estate and capital market exposures. KIFS Housing had no investment in excess of the limits 
prescribed by NHB with any one company or any single group of companies. KIFS Housing has not made 
investment in any of the promoter group companies during the year. 

The Company is making extra provision beyond NHB norms.

Rating Agency Instrument Rating type Amount Rating(s) assigned

Acuite Ratings &

Research Limited

Acuite Ratings &

Research Limited

Brickwork Ratings

India Private Limited

Bank Loans

Non-Convertible Debentures

Non-Convertible Debentures

Long Term

Long Term

Long Term

292.50 crore

37.50 crore

35.00 crore

#ACUITE A-/ Outlook: Stable

#ACUITE A-/ Outlook: Stable

*BWR BBB+/ Outlook Stable
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Risk Management 

KHFL has a Risk Management framework approved by the Board of Directors. Risk Management Framework 
provides the mechanism for risk assessment the Company has an Asset Liability Management (ALM) policy 
approved by the Board. During the year, the Risk Management Committee reviewed the risks associated with 
the business of Company, its root causes and the efficacy of the measures taken to mitigate the same. The 
observations of the Risk Management Committee if any, on the key risks associated with the business and 
ALM are reported to the board from time to time.  KIFS Housing manages various risks like financial risk, 
operational risk, marketing risk, external risk and regulatory risks associated with the mortgage business. The 
Board of Directors also reviews the key risks associated with the business and ALM of the Company, the 
procedures adopted to assess the risks, efficacy and mitigation measures.

Internal Audit Control, Internal Financial Control  and their Adequacy

KIFS Housing has an adequate system of internal control in place which has been designed to provide a 
reasonable assurance with regard to maintaining of proper accounting controls, monitoring of operations, 
protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses, compliance with regulations and for ensuring reliability of 
financial reporting. KIFS Housing has robust internal audit programme, where the internal auditors, an 
independent firm of chartered accountants, conduct a audits with a view to not only test adherence to laid down 
policies and procedures but also to suggest improvements in processes and systems which are further 
discussed with the management and appropriate measures and actions are taken thereafter. Internal audit 
observations and recommendations are reported to the Audit Committee, which monitors the implementation 
of such recommendations

The Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The Company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that- 

- Pertains to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
     and dispositions of the assets of the Company
- Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
     statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures
     of  the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of Management and Directors of
     the Company and
- Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
     disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Information System Audit

In terms of the Information Technology Framework for HFCs dated 15 June 2018, HFCs are required to have 
an information system audit at least once in 2 years. 

During the year under review, a system audit was conducted by M/s. Gattani Jajoo and Company, Chartered 
Accountants, an empanelled audit firm. The areas audited were IT General Controls, Cyber Security Controls 
and Information Security. Necessary continuous improvement actions have been taken in line with the audit 
observations.
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Form No. MR–3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

ANNEXURE VI
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[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members,
KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
B-81, Pariseema Complex, C. G. Road, 
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad Gujarat- 380006.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adhe rence  t o  good  co rpo ra t e  p r ac t i ce s  by  KIFS Hous ing  F inance  L imi ted (CIN: 

stU65922GJ2015PLC085079) (hereinafter called 'the Company') for the year ended on 31  March, 2022 (the 
'audit period'). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit; we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
st

the Company for the financial year ended on 31  March, 2022 according to the provisions of:
 
1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') and the Rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder [Not Applicable 
during the Audit period]

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings[Not 
Applicable during the Audit period]

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 
[Applicable Limited to the extent of Listed Debt Securities];

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011[Not Applicable during the Audit period];

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2009 [Not Applicable during the Audit Period];

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client [Not Applicable during the Audit 
period];



(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. [Applicable Limited to the extent of Listed Debt Securities];

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008.    
[Not Applicable during the Audit period]; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 [Not 
Applicable during the Audit period]; 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 [Not Applicable 
during the Audit period];

(a) Master Direction Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2021, issued by Reserve Bank of India.

(b) The National Housing Banking Act, 1987;

(c) The Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 as amended from time to time.

(d) National Housing Bank Circulars, Notifications and guidelines as applicable.

6. We further report that based on the information received and records maintained by the Company, in our 
opinion the Company has complied with the provisions of:

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above.

7. We further report that –

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors, Women Director and Independent Director.The changes in the composition of the Board 
of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions 
of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and where the same were given at shorter notice than seven days, prior 
consent thereof were obtained and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company and at Committees were carried through 
on the basis of majority and views of the members are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that –

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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8.We further report that during the Audit Period:

(a) Mr. Rajesh P. Khandwala (DIN:00477673) was re-appointed as Managing Director of the Company for the 
th rd th

period of 5 years with effect from 4 March, 2021 till 03 March, 2026 at the 6  Annual General Meeting dated 
st 

1 July, 2021.

(b) Mr. Vimal P. Khandwala (DIN:00477768) was re-appointed as Managing Director of the Company for the 
th rd th

period of 5 years with effect from 4 March, 2021 till 03 March 2026 at the 6  Annual General Meeting dated 
st 

1 July,2021.

th
(c) Mr. Deepak Kumar Ajmera, CFO of the Company resigned from the post w.e.f 7  March, 2022. As on the 

st
financial year end dated 31  March, 2022, the office of CFO is vacant and the Company is in process to fill the 
same.

FOR KIRAN DOSHI & CO
Company Secretaries

CP. No. : 9890 ACS No: 23985
Peer Reviewed Firm: 1977/2022
UDIN No.: A023985D000408523

Place: Mumbai 
Date:  May 27, 2022.

KIRAN P. DOSHI
(Proprietor)

Sd/-

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed to this report as Annexure – 1 and 

forms an integral part of this report.



KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 57

Annexure I
To
The Members,
KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
B-81, Pariseema Complex, C. G. Road, 
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad Gujarat- 380006.

1. Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. Maintenance of secretarial record is the 
responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we 
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

FOR KIRAN DOSHI & CO
Company Secretaries

CP. No. : 9890 ACS No: 23985
Peer Reviewed Firm: 1977/2022
UDIN No.: A023985D000408523

Place: Mumbai 
thDate: 27  May, 2022.

KIRAN P. DOSHI
(Proprietor)

Sd/-



To  
The Members of KIFS Housing Finance Limited

Report on the financial statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KIFS Housing Finance Limited('the Company'), 

stwhich comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity andthe Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to thefinancial statements, includinga summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (herein after referred to as 'thefinancial statements').

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind 
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,of the state of affairs of the Company  as at 

st31 March 2022, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
thefinancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
thefinancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinionon these matters. We have determined that the matters described below to be the Key Audit Matters to 
be communicated in the Report:

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Key Audit Matters How was the matter addressed in our auditSr. No.

Impairment of Loans as at Balance Sheet 
Date (Expected Credit Losses):
(Refer Note No. 7 &39 to the financial 
statements)

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide 
for impairment of its loans designated at 
amortised cost using the expected credit loss 
(ECL) approach. ECL involves an estimation 
of probability weighted loss on loans 
receivable over their life, considering 
reasonable and supportable information about 
past events, current conditions and forecast of 
future economic conditions which could 

We have performed fol lowing audit 
procedures:

(a) Assessed Company's accounting policies 
for impairment of loans and their compliance 
with Ind AS.
(b) Assessed Company's policies with respect 
to moratorium pursuant to the Reserve Bank 

th
of India circular dated 27 March, 2020 (“RBI 
circular”) allowing lending institutions to 
offer moratorium to borrowers.
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Key Audit Matters How was the matter addressed in our auditSr. No.

impact the credit quality of the Company's 
loan receivables.

In the process, significant degree of judgment 
has been applied by the management for;

(a) Staging of the loan receivable (i.e., 
classification in significant increase in 
credit risk (“SICR”) and default 
categories)

(b) Grouping of borrowers based on 
category of loans.

(c) Estimation of life of loans under 
various stages for each category, 
recoverable amounts in case of 
defaults etc.

(d) Determining macro-economic factors 
impacting the credit quality of loans

(e) Estimation of losses for loans 
receivable with no / minimal historical 
defaults.

(f) D e t e r m i n a t i o n  o f  w h e t h e r 
restructuring of principal / interest to a 
borrower under regulatory directions 
resulting in restructuring conclusion 
u n d e r  I n d  A S  i s  s u b j e c t  t o 
interpretation / judgment. 

In financial year 2021-22,the Company 
hascontinued additionalfloating provision 
made in financial year 2020-21 on account of 
Covid-19 amounting to Rs 36.35 lakhs.

Since the loan receivable form major portion 
of Company's assets and due to the 
significance of judgments used in classifying 
loans into various stages as stipulated in Ind 
AS 109 and determining related impairment 
provision requirements as accentuated by 
Covid-19 pandemic, this is considered to be 
area of key focus of overall Company audit 
and thus a key audit matter.

(c)  Evaluated reasonableness of management 
estimates by understanding the process of 
ECL estimation and related assumptions and 
tested the controls around data extraction and 
validation.
(d) Assessed the criteria for staging of 
financial assets based on their past-due status 
to check compliance with the requirement of 
Ind AS 109. Tested a sample of stage 1 assets 
to assess whether any SICR or loss indicators 
were present requiring them to be classified 
under stage 2 and stage 3.
(e) Tested the ECL model, including 
assumptions and underlying computation. 
Assessed the floor / minimum rates of 
provisioning applied by the Company for 
loans receivable with inadequate historical 
defaults.
(f) Assessed the additional considerations 
applied by the management for staging of 
loans as SICR or default categories in view of 
factors caused by Covid-19.
(g)  Tested a  sample  of  exposures ,  the 

appropriateness of determining exposure at 

default (“EAD”), calculation of probability of 

default (“PD”) and Loss given default (“LGD”) in 

calculation. 

Information Other than the financial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
informationcomprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report 
including Annexures to Board's Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report 
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any formof assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informationand, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information,we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with 
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance, changes in equityand cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financials Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statementsas a wholeare free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's reportthat includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guaranteethat an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when itexists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in theaggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken onthe basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintainprofessional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Ÿ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Ÿ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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Ÿ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Ÿ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Ÿ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, includingthe 
disclosures, and whether thefinancial statements represent the underlying transactions andevents in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements 
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our 
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the plannedscope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in the internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevantethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships andother matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those mattersthat were of 
most significance in the audit of thefinancial statements of the current period and aretherefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law orregulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, wedetermine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverseconsequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the 
CentralGovernment of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a 
statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are 
in agreement with the books of account;
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(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaidfinancial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

st
(e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,2022 taken on 

strecord by the Board of Directors, none of the director is disqualified as on 31  March, 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; 

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controlsrefer to our separate report in “Annexure B”;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,we report that,in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company 
to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 
(i)    The Company does not have any pending litigations which can have an impact on its financial  

position in its financial statements.
(ii)     The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses;
(iii)     There are no such amounts, required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company.
(iv)  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the 

notes to accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any 
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

    (b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
the notes to accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, 
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

  (c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under h (iv) (a) and (b) 
above, contain any material misstatement.

(v)    During the current year,the Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend.

For Manubhai & Shah LLP      
Chartered Accountants       
FRN: 106041W/ W100136

CA. Laxminarayan Yekkali       
Partner        
Membership No.: 114753

Place: Mumbai�������
Date: May 27, 2022
UDIN: 22114753AJSZXZ5071��

sd/-
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(i) (a) i. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets;

             ii. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.
 

(b)    The Company has a program of verification to cover all items of property, plant and equipment in a 
phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and 
the nature of its property, plant and equipment. In our opinion, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c)    According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records, the Company does not have anyimmovable properties (other than immovable 
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of 
the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in Property, Plant and Equipment.

(d)   The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of use assets) or 
intangible assets during the year.

(e)    No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 
st31 March 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 

1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii)     (a) The Company is in the business of providing loans and does not have any physical inventories. 
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

       (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned 
working capital limits in excess of Rs.five crores in aggregate, from banks or financial institutionson 
the basis of security of Loans. Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the quarterly 
returns/ statements filed by the Company with the said banks / financial institutions are in agreement 
with books of accounts maintained.

        
(iii)    (a)  The Company is primarily engaged in lending activities and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(a),of 
                   the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company  beinga Non-Banking Financial Company ('NBFC'), registered under RBI, Act 
1934., in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
investments made, security given and the terms and condition of the grants of loans and advances 
in the nature of loans, during the year areprimafacienot prejudicial to the interest of the 
Company.The Company has not provided any guarantees during the year.

(c) In respect of loans given and advances in the nature of loans, the Company has stipulated the 
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest. However, given the nature of business 
of the Company being NBFC, there are some cases during the year and as at March 31, 2022 
wherein the amounts were overdue vis-a- vis stipulated terms. 

(d) In respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans provided by the Company, there is no 
overdue amount for more than ninety days as at March 31, 2022 except for the following cases:

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of 
our report of even date)

ANNEXURE – A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Number of Cases       Principal Amount overdue     Interest amount overdue           Total Amount due

               62       528.59         42.66            571.25

Rs. in Lakhs
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According to the information and explanation made available to us, reasonable steps are taken by the 
Company for recovery of the principal and interest.

(a) The Company is primarily engaged in lending activities and hence reporting under clause 
3(iii)(e),of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not granted any loans 
or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or 
period of repayment during the year.

(I) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, 
investments, guarantees and securities given in respect of which provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable. 

(ii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits 
from the public as per the provisions of section 73, 74, 75 and 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

(iii) We are informed that maintenance of cost records prescribed by the Central Government of India under 
section 148(1) of the Act, is not applicable in respect of Company's business.

(iv) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the Company 
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed 
statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Excise Duty, 
Custom Duty, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with 
the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the Company 
examined by us, in our opinion, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Excise Duty, Custom Duty, Goods and Service Tax, Cess 

stand other material statutory dues, as applicable were in arrears as at 31  March 2022 for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the Company 
examined by us, there are no dues of Income Tax,Service Tax, Sales Tax, Excise Duty, Custom 

stDuty, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other statutory dues as at 31  March 2022 
which have not been deposited on accounts of any disputes.

   (v) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961  (43 of 
1961).

(vi) (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and interest on loansfrom financial 
institution, bank, and dues to debenture holders.

 (b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other 
lender.

 (c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has utilized 
the term loans obtained from banks during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained, 
other than temporary deployment pending application of proceeds. 

 (d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company,funds raised on short-term basis 
do not seem to have used during the year for long term purposes.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting 
requirements of clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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 (f)  The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting 
requirements of clause 3 (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(I) (a)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not 
raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year.

     (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

(ii)(a) To the best of our knowledge, no material fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the year nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

(b)  No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government, during the year and up to the date of this report

(c) As represented by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company 
during the year.

(iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, reporting as per clause3 (xii) of the Order is not required.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the 
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as 
required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(v)   (a) In our opinion the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business.

 (b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company, in 
determining nature, timing and extent of our audit procedure.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or 
persons connected with them. Accordingly, reporting as per clause 3(xv) of the Order is not required.

(xvi)  (a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934, hence reporting requirement of clause 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

       (b) The Company is a registered Housing Finance Company (HFC) and holds a valid Certificate of 
Registration from National Housing Bank and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi) (b)of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

        (c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 
Reserve Bank of India and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

           (d)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no CIC in the group.
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(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding 
financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of 
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and 
when they fall due. 

(xx)(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) requiring a transfer to a 
Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section 
(5) of Section 135 of the said Act. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, no amount is remaining unspent towards 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) ongoing project, which was required to be transferred to special 
account in compliance with provision of sub- section (6) of Section 135 of the said Act.
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ANNEXURE – B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 2(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” 
section of our report of even date, 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KIFS Housing Finance 
stLimited(“the Company”) as of 31 March,2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the 

Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Companyare responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by ICAI (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards 
on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reportingwas established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 

st31  March, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To 
The Board of Directors of 
KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Background
Pursuant to the Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company(Reserve Bank) Directions, 
2021 (“the Directions”) which became effective from February 17, 2021, we have examined the matters 
specified in the Paragraph 70 of the said directions in respect of KIFS Housing Finance Limited 

st
(the“Company”) for the year ended 31  March 2022.

Management's Responsibility
The Management is responsible for the design and implementation of the internal procedures, systems, 
processes and controls to ensure compliance with the Directions on an ongoing basis. This responsibility also 
includes reporting non-compliances, if any, to the National Housing Bank (“the Bank”), Board of the 
Company and its Audit Committee.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to report on the matters specified in Paragraph 70 of the Directions based on our audit. We 
conductedour audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI). Those involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
compliance with the Directions. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the information and records, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the Company's 
compliance with the Directions in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
report. We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit Reports and 
Certificates issued for Special Purpose by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Conclusion
Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company as produced for our examination and the 
information and explanations provided to us, we report that: 

(1) The Company had applied for registration as required under Section 29A of the National Housing Bank 
Act, 1987and has been granted the certificate of registration dated October 27, 2016. In Financial Year 
2019-20, the Company has been converted from private limited to public limited (through revised 

th
certificate of incorporation dated 24 February, 2020) and thus, it has applied to Reserve Bank of India for 

th
fresh certificate of registration vide their application letter dated 27  February, 2020. The fresh certificate 

th
of registration is received dated 12 August, 2020.

(2) The Company is meeting the required Net Owned Fund as prescribed under Section 29A of the National 
Housing Bank Act, 1987.

(3) The Company has complied with Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

(4) The total borrowings of the Company are within the limits prescribed under paragraph 27.2 of the 
Directions.

Report on Compliance with the Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company   

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021
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(5) The Company has complied with the prudential norms on income recognition, accounting standards, asset 
classification, loan-to-value ratio, provisioning requirements, disclosure in the balance sheet, investment 
in real estate, exposure to capital market, engagement of brokers and concentration of credit / investments 
as specified in the Directions.

(6) The capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the return submitted to the National Housing Bank has been 
correctly determined and such ratio is in compliance with the minimum capital to risk weighted asset ratio 
as prescribed by the Directions.

(7) The Company has furnished to the Bank within stipulated period the schedule II return for the half year 
thended on 30 September, 2021 as specified in Directions. The Company has furnished provisional 

stSchedule II return to the Bank for the half year ended on 31 March, 2022 as at the date of our report.

(8) The Company has furnished to the National Housing Bank within stipulated period the schedule III returns 
on Statutory Liquid Assets as specified in the Directions.

(9) The Company has complied with the requirements relating to opening of new branches / offices or closure 
of existing branches / offices as specified in the Directions.

(10) The Company has not given any loans against security of shares, loans against security of single product 
(Gold / Jewellery) and loans against Company's own shares. 

(11) The Board of Directors of the Company has passed a resolution for non-acceptance of any public deposits.

st(12) The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the year ended and as at31  March 2022.

Restriction of use
This report is issued pursuant to the requirement as per Paragraph 70 of the Directions and should not be used 
by anyother person or for any other purpose. We neither accept nor assume any duty or liability for any other 
purpose or to any other party to whom our report is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior 
consent in writing.
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 Rs. In Lakhs

 Particulars  Note No.  March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021

 As at

 ASSETS

 (1) Financial Assets 
  
 (a) Cash and cash equivalents                                        4                             19.35                               7.32

 (b) Bank balance other than (a) above                           5                         4,045.79                       3,793.58 

 (c) Derivative financial instruments                                                                -                                    - 
 
 (d) Receivables

    (i) Trade receivables                                                   6                               -                                    - 
   
    (ii) Other receivables                                                 6.1                            3.88                           103.72 

 (e) Loans                                                                        7                     48,254.26                      44,392.96 

 (f) Investments                                                               8                       7,799.03                      11,413.65 

 (g) Other financial assets                                               9                          125.44                             96.75

 Total Financial Assets                                                                         60,247.75                      59,807.98

 (2) Non-Financial Assets

 (a) Current tax assets (Net)                                                                           94.70                            - 

 (b) Deferred tax assets (Net)                                                                       365.19                         313.49

 (c) Property, Plant and Equipment                                 10                         893.45                          385.32 

 (d) Other intangible assets                                               11                          30.41                             2.52 

 (e) Intangible assets under development                       11.1                         33.08                            22.23 

 (f) Other non-financial assets                                          12                        120.10                          120.38 

 Total Non-Financial Assets                                                                    1,536.93                          843.94 

 Total Assets                                                                                           61,784.68                      60,651.92 

 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

 LIABILITIES

 (1) Financial liabilities

 (a) Payables

    Trade Payables                                                          13
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I) Total outstanding dues to micro 

       enterprises and small enterprises                                                              1.03                            -

    ii) Total outstanding dues to creditors other 

         than micro enterprises and small enterprises                                     183.71                         316.16 



 Other Payables                                                            13.1

    i) Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises 
       and small enterprises                                                                                  -                                 - 

    ii) Total outstanding dues to creditors other than 
        micro enterprises and small enterprises                                                        4.29                      4.63 

 (b) Debt securities                                                        14                             3,899.55               4,715.48

 (c) Borrowings (other than debt securities)                 15                            26,144.08             25,058.65 

 (d) Subordinated liabilities                                                                               -                               - 

 (e) Other financial liabilities                                        16                              1,229.25               1,578.58 

 Total Financial Liabilities                                                                         31,461.91              31,673.50 

 (2) Non-Financial Liabilities

 (a) Current tax liabilities (Net)                                                                         -                              14.03 

 (b) Provisions                                                               17                                  98.13                   114.34 

 (c) Other non - financial liabilities                               18                                374.82                   305.57 

 Total Non-Financial Liabilities                                                                     472.95                   433.94

 (3) Equity

 (a) Equity share capital                                                 19                            24,951.14            24,951.14 

 (b) Other equity                                                             20                             4,898.68              3,593.34 

 
 Total Equity                                                                                                29,849.82             28,544.48 

 Total Liabilities and Equity                                                                      61,784.68             60,651.92 

 The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements 1 to 98

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
  KIFS Housing Finance Limited

 As per our report of even date 
 For Manubhai & Shah LLP
 Chartered Accountants
 ICAI Firm Reg. No. 106041W/W100136
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 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
  KIFS Housing Finance Limited

 CA. Laxminarayan P. Yekkali
 Partner

 M. No. 114753

 Rajesh P. Khandwala
 Chairman and Managing Director

 DIN: 00477673

 Padmanabh Vora
 Director

 DIN: 00003192

 Tejal Gala
 Company Secretary
 M. No. ACS-54456

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2022

As per our report of even date 
For Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No. 106041W/W100136

(I) Interest Income                                                                             21                     5,761.19                     5,100.49

(ii) Fees and commission income                                                      22                          67.73                        159.03

(iii) Net gain on fair value changes                                                   23                        285.10                        131.25

(iv) Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under 

       amortised cost category                                                                                               -   -                                                            

(v) Other operating revenue                                                              24                         421.19                       425.45

(I)  Total Revenue from Operations                                                                          6,535.21                    5,816.22

(II) Other Income                                                                                                            -   -                                                             

(III) Total Income (I - II)                                                                                           6,535.21                    5,816.22                                                                         

Expenses :

(i) Finance cost                                                                                  25                      1,926.91                    1,355.15

(ii) Impairment on financial instruments under amortised cost        26                         526.19                       339.97

(iii) Employee benefits expense                                                        27                      1,851.00                    1,473.72

(iv) Depreciation and amortisation expenses                                 10,11                       186.75                       119.88

(v) Other expenses                                                                             28                        424.98                       314.23

(IV) Total expenses                                                                                                    4,915.83                    3,602.95

(V) Profit before tax (III - IV)                                                                               1,619.38                    2,213.27

Tax Expense :

Current tax                                                                                                                    397.69                       525.00

Excess provision of tax for earlier year                                                                          (2.10)                           -

Deferred tax                                                                                                                  (59.22)                       (80.00)

(VI) Total tax expense                                                                                                 336.37                       445.00

(VII) Profit for the Year (V - VI)                                                                             1,283.01                    1,768.27

(VIII) Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                                                         29.84                            1.15

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                    (7.51)                          (0.29)

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                                                                   -  -                                                                  

Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                               -  -                                                                  

(IX) Total Comprehensive Income (VII + VIII)                                                   1,305.34                   1,769.13

(X) Earnings per Equity Share (for continuing operations):  30

Basic (Rs.)                                                                                                                        0.51                           0.71

Diluted (Rs.)                                                                                                                     0.51                           0.71

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements 1 to 98

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 Rs. In Lakhs

 Particulars  Note No.  March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021

For the year ended

sd/-

sd/-

sd/-sd/-

Revenue from operations
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 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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 Partner
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 Rajesh P. Khandwala
 Chairman and Managing Director
 DIN: 00477673

 Padmanabh Vora
 Director
 DIN: 00003192

 Tejal Gala
 Company Secretary
 M. No. ACS-54456

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2022

As per our report of even date 
For Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No. 106041W/W100136

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Particulars

Balance as at 
01 April 2020 

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due 

to Prior Period 
errors

Restated balance as at 
01  April 2020

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital 

during the 
current year

Balance as at
31 March 2021

24,951.14 24,951.14- - -Equity Share Capital

B. Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus

Statutory reserve
Retained 
earnings

Other 
comprehensive 
income (OCI)

Items of OCI

Total

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

Balance as at April 1, 2020 573.08 1,251.13
1,768.27 1,768.27

1,824.20-
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
-

-

-
Profit for the year
Transfer from retained earnings
Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans

437.10 (437.10)

0.86

0.86

0.86

Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,010.18                  2,582.30 3,593.34

Profit for the year

Transfer from retained earnings
1,283.01 1,283.01

297.55
22.33 22.33

(297.55)

Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,307.73 �                     3,567.76 �                         23.19 �               4,898.68

Retained earnings
This represents surplus in profit and loss account after appropriations.

Statutory Reserve
As required by section 45-IC of the RBI Act 1934, the company maintains a reserve fund and transfers there in 
a sum not less than twenty per cent of its netprofit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and 
before any dividend is declared. The company cannot appropriate any sum from the reserve fund except for the 
purpose specified by Reserve Bank of India from time to time. Till date RBI has not specified any purpose for 
appropriation of Reserve fund maintained under section 45-IC of RBI Act,1984.

Other comprehensive income - Employee benefits
This represents remeasurement gain/(loss) on post employement benefit obligations.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements (Note No. 1 to 98)

Particulars Balance as at 
01 April 2021 

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due 

to Prior Period 
errors

Restated balance as at 
01  April 2021

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital 

during the 
current year

Balance as at
31 March 2022

24,951.14 24,951.14- - -Equity Share Capital

Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2022

Particulars

A. Cash flow from operating activities

For the Year ended 
March 31, 2022

For the Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Profit before tax

Operating profit before working capital changes                                                               (1,787.05)                             (1,203.47)

1,619.38 2,213.27

Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization                                                                                          186.75                                  119.88
Net gain on fair value changes                                                                                         (285.10)                               (131.25)
Interest income on loans                                                                                                (5,761.19)                            (5,100.49)
Interest expenses on borrowings                                                                                     1,926.91                               1,355.15
Impairment on financial instruments                                                                                 526.19                                  339.97

Movement in working capital :
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities                                                                (730.24)                                 435.82
Increase/(decrease) in provisions                                                                                        (16.21)                                   47.12
Increase/(decrease) in other non-financial liabilities                                                            99.09                                  136.36
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables                                                                                (131.76)                                 281.07
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables                                                                               99.84                                   148.66
(Increase)/decrease in loans                                                                                            (4,361.33)                          (11,484.52)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets                                                                        (28.69)                                  (3.64)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-financial assets                                                                     0.28                                  (50.13)

Movement in working capital - total (5,069.02)           (10,489.27)

Interest income on loan received                                                                                       5,735.03                               5,038.61
Interest expenses on borrowings paid                                                                              (1,978.58)                             (1,086.77)

Cash used in operations (3,099.62)                       (7,740.90) 

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)                                                                                     (504.33)                                  (547.98)

Net cash used in operating activities (A)                                                                     (3,603.95)                             (8,288.89)

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (B)                                      (3,449.32)                           (10,483.25)

B.  Cash flow from investing activities :

C.  Cash flow from financing activities :

Purchase of PPE (Net)                                                                                                       (198.17)                                 (24.82)
Proceeds from / (Purchase of) Mutual Funds (Net)                                                         3,899.70                              (9,372.34)
Fixed Deposits matured / (placed) (Net)                                                                           (252.21)                             (1,086.08)

(Repayment) / proceeds from issuance of Debt Securities                                              (815.93)                                4,715.48
Proceeds from Other Borrowings                                                                                   1,085.43                               13,904.15
Repayment of lease liabilities                                                                                          (102.85)                                       -

Net cash generated from financing activities (C)                                                          166.65                               18,619.63
 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C)                                   12.03                                  (152.50)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year                                                   7.32                                    159.83
  Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year                                                             19.35                                      7.32

Notes:

(I) Components of cash & cash equivalents at the year end                                 March 31, 2022 �                March 31,2021

Cash on hand                                                                                                                         6.80                                      7.17
Balance with banks in current accounts                                                                              12.55                                      0.15
Deposits with maturity less than 3 months                                                                              -                                            -

Total             19.35                                   7.32

(ii) Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using Indirect Method prescribed under Ind AS 7.

Rs. In Lakhs 
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sd/-

sd/-

sd/- sd/-

(iii) Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising 
from financing activities are as below :

Borrowings - Non Current 

As at 
March 31, 2021  Cash flow

Fair Value
Charges

Current / Non-Current
Classification

As at 
March 31, 2022

 Borrowings - Current

20,703.63

9,070.50

1,085.43

(815.93)

-

-

-

-

21,789.06

8,254.57

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements (Note No. 1 to 98)
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2022

1. Corporate Information

KIFS Housing Finance Limited (the Company) is a public limited company domiciled in India and 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act. The Company is a non-deposit taking Housing 
Finance Company registered with the National Housing Bank (NHB) and is governed by the regulatory 
framework for Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) as issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and other 
directions, regulations and circulars issued by NHB. The Company's registered office is at B-81, Pariseema 
Complex, C.G. Road, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad, India. The principal place of business of the Company is at 
C-902, Lotus Corporate Park, Graham Firth Compound, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), 
Mumbai. The principal business is providing finance to individuals, corporates and developers for the 
purchase, construction, development and repair of houses, apartments and commercial properties in India. 
The Company also provides loans for specified purposes against the security of immovable property. The 
Board of Directors approved the financial statements on May 27, 2022.

2. Basis of Preparation & Presentation of Financial Statements

2.1 Statement of Compliance

2.2 Functional and presentation currency

2.3 Basis of measurement

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified 
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and amendments issued thereafter and the provisions of the RBI on the historical cost basis except 
for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values. The financial statements have been prepared 
on a going concern basis. 

Effective April 1, 2020, the Company adopted Ind AS and the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind 
AS 101, 'First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards', with April 1, 2019 as the transition date. The 
transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended (IGAAP).
 
The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and 
presented in the format prescribed in the Division III of Schedule III to the Act. The Statement of Cash Flows is 
prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'.
 
The Company presents its Balance Sheet in the order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement 
within 12 months after the reporting date and more than 12 months after the reporting date is presented in Note 
29. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Ind AS is initially adopted or 
a revision to an existing Ind AS requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 

The Company prepares its financial statements in Indian rupees (Rs) which is the functional and presentation 
currency. The Company presents its balance sheet in the order of liquidity. Amounts in the financial statements 
are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded off to two decimal places as permitted by Schedule III to the 
Act. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupee to two decimal places. 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial 
instruments that are measured at fair values.
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 77



In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing 
the use of unobservable inputs.
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy is based on the degree to which the 
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, 
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. 
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances 
surrounding the estimates. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. The Management 
believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company, the 
revenue can be reliably measured, and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery.

Interest income on financial instruments is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the 
amount outstanding and the effective interest rate ('EIR') applicable. The effective interest rate is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through expected life of the financial asset to the gross 
carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates the 
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider 
the expected credit losses. Penal Interest/late payment interest and cheque bounce charges are recognized on 
receipt basis. 

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are incremental 
and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other premiums or 
discounts. For financial assets measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss ("FVTPL"), transaction costs 
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss at initial recognition. 

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective
judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements are:

Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 – Inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability 
either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 – where unobservable inputs are used for the valuation of assets or liabilities.

Valuation of financial instruments
Measurement of expected credit loss
Provisions and contingencies
Income tax and deferred tax
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Measurement of defined employee benefit obligations

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Revenue Recognition

3.1.1. Interest income
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The Company calculates interest income by applying EIR to gross carrying amount of financial assets other 
than credit-impaired assets. For credit impaired financial assets, the Company calculates interest income by 
applying the EIR to the amortized cost (i.e. gross carrying amount less allowance for expected credit losses) 
of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to 
calculating interest income on a gross basis. 

Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The Company 
recognises the fee and commission income in accordance with the terms of the relevant contracts/ agreement 
and when it is probable that the Company will collect the consideration.

Other Income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognised when 
the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

An item of PPE is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from 
its continued use. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of PPE is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and its carrying amount and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation on PPE is recognised on straight-line basis over the useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation for additions/deductions during the year is calculated pro-rata to the 
period of use. Assets costing up to Rs. 5000 each is depreciated fully in the year of purchase. The residual value 
and useful life and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year-end with the effect of changes 
recognised prospectively. 

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item is expected to flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPEs are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises the 
purchase price (net of trade discounts and tax/duty credits availed) and directly attributable cost of bringing the 
asset to its working condition for its intended use. All other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-
day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and 
loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred. 

An intangible asset is recognised, only where it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will accrue to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at cost, less 
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of 
tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment. Administrative and 
other general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to acquisition of intangible assets are 
allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the intangible assets. 

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on reporting date are disclosed as 'Intangible Assets under 
Development'. 

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of intangible asset is determined as the 
difference between the sales proceeds and its carrying amount and is recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss. 

3.1.2 Dividend

3.1.3 Fee and Commission Income

3.1.4 Other Income

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.3 Intangible assets

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

PPEs not ready for the intended use on reporting date are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”.

3.4 Depreciation and amortization
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Improvements of immovable nature at the leasehold properties are depreciated over the initial lease period.
 
Intangible assets are amortized over the expected duration of benefit on a straight-line basis. Amortisation for 
additions/deductions during the year is calculated pro-rata to the period of use. Software cost related to 
computers is capitalized and amortised using the straight-line method over a period of three years. The residual 
value and useful live and method of amortisation are reviewed at each financial year-end with the effect of 
changes recognised prospectively. 

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank (including demand 
deposits) and in hand and short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 
in value. 

Statement of Cash flows is reported using indirect method whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the 
effects of the transactions of non-cash items, such as depreciation, amortisation, provisions, unrealised gains 
and losses, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts and payments and items of income 
or expenses associated with investing and financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and 
financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For calculating diluted earnings per 
share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of 
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except 
where the result would be anti-dilutive. 

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the EIR on respective financial instruments 
measured at amortised cost. The calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid or received between parties to the 
contract that are incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, 
and all other premiums or discounts. 

Goods and Services tax input credit is recognised in the period in which the supply of goods or service received 
is recognised and when there is no uncertainty in availing/utilising the credits.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any indication exists, the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is 
the higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an 
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss.
 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such 
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 

3.5 Impairment of PPE/Intangible assets

3.6 Cash and cash equivalent

3.7 Statement of cash flow

3.8 Earnings per share

3.9 Borrowing costs

3.10 Goods and Services Input Tax Credit
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3.11 Income taxes

Current Tax
Current tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the deferred tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for 
the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and 
their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax 
credits could be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the 
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rules and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are 
offset when there is legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when 
they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current 
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each 
reporting date, and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow 
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services 
rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits 
includes performance incentive and compensated absence that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months after the end of the reporting period in which employees render the related service.

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in 
which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date, based on actuarial valuation.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. All employees of the 
Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund. The Company has no obligation, other than 
the contribution payable to the provident fund. The company recognizes contribution payable to the provident 
fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service.

The costs of providing benefits under the plan is determined based on actuarial valuation at each year-end. 
Independent actuary using the projected unit credit method carries out valuation at the end of each reporting 
date. Re-measurement are recognised in other comprehensive income and is reclassified to profit or loss in a 
subsequent period. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, as reduced by the fair 
value of planned assets.

Deferred Tax

3.12 Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Long-term Employee Benefits

Provident fund

Gratuity
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3.13 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent Liability

Contingent asset

3.15 Segment Reporting

3.16 Foreign currencies

3.17 Lease

3.14 Commitments

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and if the effect of the time 
value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or 
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a 
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a 
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only be 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
company. The company does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses its existence in the financial 
statements.

The Company’s main business is financing by way of loans for the purchase or construction of residential 
houses, commercial real estate and certain other purposes. The Company operates with in India only. All other 
activities of the Company revolve around the main business. This in the context of ‘Ind AS 108 – Operating 
Segments’ reporting is considered to constitute one reportable segment.

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency are recorded on initial recognition 
using the exchange rate at the transaction date. At each Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items 
are reported at the rates prevailing at the year-end. Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary 
items or on reporting of monetary items at each Balance Sheet date at the closing spot rate are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

The Company has various lease arrangement for many assets including properties. The Company assesses 
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. At 
the commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a Right-of-Use (ROU) asset and a corresponding 
lease liability for all lease arrangements, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term 
leases) and low value leases. As a lessee, the company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the 
lease commencement date. The ROU is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the 
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct 
cost incurred and an estimate of cost to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying 
asset/site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows:
a) Loans sanctioned but not disbursed and undisbursed amount of sanctioned loans;
b) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for;
c) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid;
d) Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant inthe 
opinion of management.
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The ROU asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the 
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful 
lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In 
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-
measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments, discounted using the 
incremental borrowing cost. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the 
Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments. The lease liability is measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to 
zero. The company presents right-of-use assets as part of PPE and lease liabilities as part of ‘other financial 
liabilities’ in the balance sheet.

Loans are recognised when fund transfer is initiated or disbursement cheque is issued to the customer. The 
Company recognises debt securities, deposits and borrowings when funds are received by the Company. The 
company recognizes all other financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs and 
revenue that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities that 
are not at fair value through profit or loss are added to or deducted from the fair value of financial assets or 
financial liabilities on initial recognition. Transaction costs and revenue directly attributable to the acquisition 
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit 
or loss.

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Company will account for such 
difference as follows:

If fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability or based on 
a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss on initial recognition (i.e. day 1 profit or loss); 

In all other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to bring it in line with the transaction price (i.e. day 1  
profit or loss will be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset or liability). 

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a  
rational basis, only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market participants 
would take into account when pricing the asset or liability. 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

3.18 Financial Instruments
3.18.1 Recognition and initial measurements

For low-value assets and short-term leases, lease rentals are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on 
accrual basis.

3.18.2 Classification and subsequent measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities 
3.18.2.1 Financial Assets 

The Company classifies and measures all its financial assets based on the business model for managing the 
assets and the asset's contractual terms, either at: 

Amortised cost

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Fair Value through Profit and Loss   
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3.18.2.1.1 Amortized cost 

The Company classifies and measures Cash and Bank balances, Loans, Trade Receivable and other financial 
assets at amortised cost if 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within 
a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest. 

The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how financial assets are managed together 
to achieve a particular business objective. The Company's business model does not depend on management's 
intentions for an individual instrument, therefore the business model assessment is performed at a higher level 
of aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis. 

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognised financial assets 
are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect a new business model. The Company reassesses 
it's business model at each reporting period to determine whether the business model has changed since the 
preceding period. For the current and prior reporting period the Company has not identified a change in its 
business model.  

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI, its contractual terms should give rise 
to cash flows that meet SPPI test. For the purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at 
initial recognition. That principal amount may change over the life of the financial asset (e.g. if there are 
repayments of principal). Interest consists of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk 
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending 
risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. The SPPI assessment is made in the currency in which the financial  
asset is denominated. Contractual terms that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash 
flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or 
commodity prices, do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are SPPI. 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised 
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income and impairment loss are recognised in statement of profit 
and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

these are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual 
cash flows and 

the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest. 

Assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; and/or 

Assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or held to collect 
and sell; or 

Assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option. 

3.18.2.1.2 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

3.18.2.1.3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

Financial assets at FVTPL are 

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

3.18.2.1.4 Business Model Test 

3.18.2.1.5 Solely Payments of Principal and Interest ("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding 

3.18.2.1.6 Subsequent Measurement and Gain and Losses 

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
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Debt Instrument at FVOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income and impairment loss are recognised in 
statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on subsequent measurement is recognised in OCI and on 
derecognition the cumulative gain or loss recognised in OCI will be recycled to statement of profit and loss. 

Gains and losses on equity instruments at FVOCI are never recycled to the statement of profit and loss. 
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss as dividend income when the right of the payment has been 
established. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment. Profit or loss on sale of 
investments is determined on First in First out (FIFO) basis. 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gain and losses, including any interest or dividend 
income, are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Profit or loss on sale of investments is determined on 

The Company classifies these instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual terms of the instruments.  

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting 
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the face value and proceeds 
received in excess of the face value are recognised as securities premium. 

The Company's borrowings include debentures, borrowings from banks, etc. Borrowings are initially 
measured at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at their amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate method. 

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on the financial instruments 
that are not measured at FVTPL. ECL is required to be measured through a loss allowance at an amount 
equal to: 

A loss allowance for lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial 
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other financial instruments, ECL is 
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.
 
The Company has established policy to perform an assessment at the end of each reporting period whether a 
financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by considering the change 
in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instruments .The Company applies a 
three-stage approach to measure ECL. 

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected are 
reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively 
from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that result in 
reclassifying the Company's financial assets. During the current financial year and previous accounting period 

Equity Instrument at FVOCI 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

3.18.2.1.7 Reclassifications 

3.18.2.2 Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Equity 

Financial liabilities 

3.18.3 Impairment and write-off 

12-month ECL, i.e. loss allowance on default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 
12 months after the reporting date, (referred to as Stage 1); or 

Lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that results from all possible default events over the life of the financial 
instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3). 
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Stage 1: 12-months ECL 

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are 
not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default 
events occurring within the next 12 months is recognized. Exposures with days past due (DPD) less than or 
equal to 30 days are classified as stage 1. 

For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that 
are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized. Exposures with DPD greater than 30 days but less than or 
equal to 90 days are classified as stage 2. 

The Company determines ECL based on a probability-weighted outcome of factors indicated below to 
measure the shortfalls in collecting contractual cash flows. The Company does not discount such shortfalls 
considering relatively shorter tenure of loan contracts.  

Probability of default (PD) - The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given 
time horizon (12- month or lifetime, depending upon the stage of the asset). 

Exposure at default (EAD) - It represents an estimate of the exposure of the Company at a future date after 
considering repayments by the counterparty before the default event occurs. 

Loss given default (LGD) - It represents an estimate of the loss expected to be incurred when the event of 
default occurs.   

The measurement of ECL is calculated using three main components: (i) probability of default (PD) (ii) loss 
given default (LGD) and (iii) the exposure at default (EAD). The 12 month ECL is calculated by multiplying 
the 12 month PD, LGD and the EAD. The 12 month and lifetime PDs represent the PD occurring over the next 
12 months and the remaining maturity of the instrument respectively. The EAD represents the expected 
balance at default, taking into account the repayment of principal and interest from the balance sheet date to the 
default event together with any expected drawdowns of committed facilities. The LGD represents expected 
losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating effect 
of collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the time value of money. 

ECL is recognized on EAD as at period end. If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified due to 
financial difficulties of the borrower, then such asset is moved to stage 3, lifetime ECL under stage 3 on the 
outstanding amount is applied. 

The Company assesses when a significant increase in credit risk has occurred based on quantitative and 
qualitative assessments. Exposures are considered to have resulted in a significant increase in credit risk and 
are moved to Stage 2 when: 

Quantitative test: Accounts that are more than 30 days past due move to Stage 2 automatically. Accounts that 
are more than 90 days past due move to Stage 3 automatically.

Financial asset is assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For financial asset that have become credit impaired, a 
lifetime ECL is recognized on principal outstanding as at period end. Exposures with DPD more than 90 days 
are classified as stage 3.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower's condition is usually considered to 
be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced 
significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. 

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL – not credit impaired 

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL – credit impaired 

Methodology for calculating ECL 
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The definition of default for the purpose of determining ECLs has been aligned to the Reserve Bank of India 
definition of default, which considers indicators that the debtor is unlikely to pay and is no later than when the 
exposure is more than 90 days past due.
 
The measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date are based on 
historical experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The measurement of ECL 
involves increased complexity and judgement, including estimation of PDs, LGD, a range of unbiased future 
economic scenarios, estimation of expected lives and estimation of EAD and assessing significant increases in 
credit risk. 

Considering the prudence, the Company recognizes impairment on financial asset on higher of the provision 
required as per the directions issued by Reserve Bank of India or using expected credit loss (ECL) model as 
prescribed in Ind AS for the financial assets which are not fair valued. The expected credit losses (ECLs) is 
recognized based on forward-looking information for all financial assets at amortized cost, no impairment loss 
is applicable on equity investments. 

At the reporting date, an allowance is required for the 12 month ECLs. If the credit risk has significantly 
increased since initial recognition (Stage 1), an allowance (or provision) should be recognized for the lifetime 
ECLs for financial instruments for which the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition 
(Stage 2) or which are credit impaired (Stage 3). 

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring 
in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there is any relationship 
between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by the RBI, inflation, etc. 
with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal data. While the internal 
estimates of PG, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary 
overlays are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably. 

Impaired loans and receivables are written off, against the related allowance for loan impairment on 
completion of the Company's internal processes and when the Company concludes that there is no longer any 
realistic prospect of recovery of part or all of the loan. A write-off constitutes a de-recognition event. The 
Company has a right to apply enforcement activities to recover such written off financial assets. Subsequent 
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the income statement.  

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial 
asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A 
modification affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future 
date. The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximize collection and 
minimize the risk of default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all 
reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default has 
already happened and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in most 
of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan 
(principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal and interest 
forgiveness). 

Not all changes in terms of loans are considered as renegotiation and changes in terms of a class of obligors that 
are not overdue is not considered as renegotiation and is not subjected to deterioration in staging. 

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A 
financial liability is derecognized when obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. 

Forward looking information 

Write off 

3.18.4 Modification and derecognition of financial assets 
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3.18.5 Collateral Valuation and Repossession 
The Company physically repossess properties and engages external agents to recover funds, generally at 
auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this 
practice, the residential properties under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet 
and not treated as non–current assets held for sale. 

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amounts of the financial liability  
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when the 
company currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amount and intends either to settle 
on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

3.18.6 Derecognition of financial liabilities 

3.19 Off-setting 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 
no. Particulars

As at

March 31, 2022        March 31, 2021

Cash and cash equivalents

6.80                                7.17

12.55                               0.15In current accounts

In term deposit accounts with original maturity of 3 months or less                  

Rs. In Lakhs

Balances with banks

Total

Cash on hand

 19.35     

 12.55     

7.32 

0.15 

-                                      

-                                      

-                                      

-                                      

-                                      

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

 Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalent  

 Balance with banks in fixed deposits held as margin money

 (Refer Note 5.1)

 Total

 Total

 Total

 4,045.79

 4,045.79

3,793.58 

3,793.58 

 Represents margin money placed against term loans from banks and others.

 Trade Receivables

 Receivables considered good - Unsecured

 Receivables considered good - Unsecured

 Less - Provision for expected credit loss 

 Less - Provision for expected credit loss 

 Other ReceivablesRs. 

 3.88             

 3.88             

103.72 

103.72 

There are no dues from directors or other officers of the Company or any firm or private company in
which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

4

5

6

6.1

6.2

5.1

4.1

4.2
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

6.3 Other Receivables Ageing Schedule

Other Receivables 
(for F.Y 2021-22) Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
Payment

Rs. In 
Lakhs

Less than 
6 Months

6 Months -
1 Year

1-2
Years

2-3
Years

More than 
3 Years

Total

      Undisputed Other Receivables - 
considered good

(ii) Undisputed Other Receivables - 
which have significant increase in credit 
risk

(iii) Undisputed Other Receivables - 
Credit Impaired

(iv) Disputed Other Receivables - 
Considered Good

(v) Disputed Other Receivables - 
which have significant increase in credit 
risk

(vi) Disputed Other Receivables - 
credit impaired

Total

3.88

3.88 3.88

3.88- - - - -

- - - - -- -

- - - - -- -

- - - - -- -

- - - - -- -

- - - - -- -

- - - - -

Other Receivables 
(for F.Y 2020-21) Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
Payment

Rs. In 
Lakhs

Less than 
6 Months

6 Months -
1 Year

1-2
Years

2-3
Years

More than 
3 Years

Total

     Undisputed Other Receivables - 
considered good

(ii) Undisputed Other Receivables - 
which have significant increase in credit 
risk

(iii) Undisputed Other Receivables - 
Credit Impaired

(iv) Disputed Other Receivables - 
Considered Good

(v) Disputed Other Receivables - 
which have significant increase in credit 
risk

(vi) Disputed Other Receivables - 
credit impaired

Total

103.72

103.72

103.72

103.72

- - - - -

- - - - -- -

- - - - -- -

- - - - -- -

- - - - -- -

- - - - -- -

- - - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 
no.

Note 
no.

Particulars

Particulars

As at

As at

March 31, 2022        

March 31, 2022        

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2021

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

7 .  Loans

At amortised cost

Individual Loans

Corporate bodies - -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

Total - Gross (A)

Less: Impairment loss allowance (Expected Credit Loss)

Total - Net (A)

Secured by tangible assets

Secured by intangible assets

Covered by bank / Government gurantees

Unsecured

Total (B) - Gross

Total (A) - Gross

Total (B) - Gross

Less: Impairment loss allowance (Expected Credit Loss)

Total (B) - Net

Loans in India

Other than public sector
Public sector

Total (C - I) - Gross

Less: Impairment loss allowance (Expected Credit Loss)

Total (C - I) - Net

Loans outside India (C - II)

Total C (I+II)

 7.1       Lonas granted by the Company are secured by registered/equitable mortgage of property and Non 
            disposal undertakings in respect of life insurance policies.

49,131.48

49,131.48

(877.22)

(877.22)

(877.22)

45,122.48

45,122.48

(729.52)

(729.52)

(729.52)

48,254.26

48,254.26

48,254.26

48,254.26

44,392.96

44,392.96

44,392.96

44,392.96

49,131.48

49,131.48

49,131.48

49,131.48

45,122.48

45,122.48

45,122.48

45,122.48

8 Investments

Fair value through profit or loss

Mutual funds

Investments in India

Investment outside India

Less: Allowance for impairment loss (C)

Total - Net D = (B) - (C)

7,799.03

7,799.03

7,799.03

7,799.03

7,799.03

11,413.65

11,413.65

11,413.65

11,413.65

11,413.65

A.

B.
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No. Particulars Rs. In Lakhs

Note 
no. Particulars

As at

March 31, 2022        March 31, 2021

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

9. Other financial assets

Security Deposits

Loan to employee

Mutual fund redemption receivable

Interest Accured But Not Due on Fixed Deposits

Total

 9.1     Security deposits includes deposits placed as security against borrowings / regular deposits also.

10. Property, Plant and Equipment

11. Other Intangible assets

Gross Block

Balance as at April 1, 2020      
Additions                                        
Deductions
Balance as at March 31, 2021               
Additions                                                  
Deductions                                                   
Balance as at March 31, 2022               
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2020                     
Additions                                                   
Deductions                                                  
Balance as at March 31, 2021               
Additions                                                   
Deductions                                                  
Balance as at March 31, 2022                  
Net Block
Balance as at March 31, 2021                  
Balance as at March 31, 2022                 

No. Particulars
Leasehold

improvements
Right of use - 

Assets
Computers Furniture & 

Fixtures
Office 

Equipment Motor Vehicle Total

Gross Blocka.

a.

b.

b.

c.

c.

10.1

10.2

Balance as at April 1, 2020                   112.50                     386.90               43.83              41.35                11.41                     -                       595.98

Additions                                                    -                               -                       13.79                0.77                 3.49                     -                         18.05
Deductions                                                 -                               -                           -                   (0.57)                 -                         -                          (0.57)

Balance as at March 31, 2021               112.50                     386.90               57.62              41.55                14.90                    -                       613.46

Additions                                                   42.90                     543.29              40.98               26.31                18.00                 21.44                   692.92

Deductions                                                    -                           (7.84)                 -                    (0.50)                  -                         -                         (8.34)

Balance as at March 31, 2022               155.40                    922.35                98.60               67.36                32.90                21.44                1,298.04

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2020                     18.91                       70.61                14.79                 3.27                  2.27                    -                      109.84

Additions                                                   19.10                       76.35                16.49                4.00                   2.72                   -                       118.66
Deductions                                                    -                               -                        -                   (0.36)                  -                        -                         (0.36)
Balance as at March 31, 2021                 38.01                     146.96                31.28                 6.91                  4.98                   -                       228.14

Additions                                                   22.28                     126.84                15.70                 6.27                  4.23                 1.29                   176.61
Deductions                                                    -                               -                        -                    (0.16)                 -                        -                         (0.16)

Balance as at March 31, 2022                  60.29                    273.80                46.98                13.02                 9.21                 1.29                    404.59

Net Block
Balance as at March 31, 2021                  74.48                    239.93                26.34                34.64                 9.92                    -                       385.32

Balance as at March 31, 2022                  95.11                    648.54                51.62                54.34                23.69               20.15                    893.45

 During the Year, The Company has not revalued its plant, property and equipment (including Right of Use Assets).

 There is No Capital Work in Progress as on March 31, 2022 & March 31, 2021

                        27.01 

4.00 

50.00  

15.86  

125.44  

55.58

-

-

69.74

96.75 

4.87 

4.87 

1.14 
1.21 

10.15 

42.91 

2.35 

2.52 
30.41

12.50 

38.04 

- 
- 

- 

- 

- 
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33.08 

22.23 

33.08 

22.23 

Note 
no.

a.

b.

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2022        March 31, 2021

Rs. In Lakhs
11.1 Intangible assets under development

Software     

33.08                             22.23 

33.08                             22.23 

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

Intangible assets under development ageing schedule 
as at 31 March 2022

Intangible assets under development ageing schedule 
as at 31 March 2021

Amount in CWIP for a Period of

Amount in CWIP for a Period of

Less than 
1 Year

Less than 
1 Year

1-2 Years

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

2-3 Years

More than 
3 Years

More than 
3 Years

Total

Total

Projects in Progress

Projects in Progress

Projects temporarily suspended

Projects temporarily suspended

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11.2 During the Year, The Company has not revalued its Intangible Assets

Note 
no. Particulars

As at

March 31, 2022        March 31, 2021

Rs. In Lakhs
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Other non-financial assets 

Balance with Government Authorities                                                             14.02                              - 

Prepaid expense                                                                                                64.57                          52.47 

Advances to staff                                                                                                3.58                            4.43 

Advances to vendors                                                                                        33.07                              - 

Advances to others                                                                                             3.85                          63.48

Capital advance                                                                                                  1.01                             - 

Total                                                                                                               120.10                        120.38 

 Trade payables (Refer Note 13.2)

Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises                                                1.03                            -

Due to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises              183.71                       316.16

Total                                                                                                                184.74                       316.16 

 

Other Payables (Refer Note 13.2)

Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises                                                  -                                -

Due to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises                   4.29                          4.63 

Total                                                                                                                    4.29                          4.63 

13. 

13.1 

12. 
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 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
 Act, 2006

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining                                                1.03                       -

unpaid to any supplier
The interest amount remaining unpaid to any supplier                                                              -                 -
Interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and                                                     -                 -                                                 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 along with the 
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year
Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making                                                       -                 -
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under 
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006                                                  
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even                                                -                 -
in the succeeding years.

13.2

ii. 
iii.

iv. 

v.

13.3

13.4

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified based 
on information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Payables Aging Schedule
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(i) MSME                                                           -                          1.03                       -                             -                             -                             1.03
(ii) Others                                                           -                       173.92                     0.02                      9.77                          -                         183.71 
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME                              -                            -                            -                            -                             -                              - 
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others                               -                            -                            -                            -                             -                              - 
Total                                                                   -                       174.95                      0.02                     9.77                         -                         184.74 

(I) MSME                                                           -                           -                              -                          -                              -                             -
(ii) Others                                                           -                       300.70                    10.09                     5.37                          -                         316.16 
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME                              -                            -                            -                            -                             -                              - 
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others                               -                            -                            -                            -                             -                              - 
Total                                                                   -                       300.70                    10.09                     5.37                         -                         316.16 

(I) MSME                                                           -                           -                            -                             -                             -                             -
(ii) Others                                                           -                       4.27                           -                          0.02                         -                            4.29 
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME                              -                            -                            -                            -                             -                              - 
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others                               -                            -                            -                            -                             -                              - 
Total                                                                   -                       4.27                           -                          0.02                         -                            4.29 

(I) MSME                                                           -                           -                            -                             -                             -                             -
(ii) Others                                                           -                       4.61                          0.02                        -                            -                           4.63 
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME                              -                            -                            -                            -                             -                              - 
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others                               -                            -                            -                            -                             -                              - 
Total                                                                   -                       4.61                          0.02                       -                             -                           4.63

Trade Payables(F.Y 2021-22)

Trade Payables(F.Y 2020-21)

Other Payables(F.Y 2021-22)

Other Payables(F.Y 2020-21)

Not Due

Not Due

Not Due

Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

Less than 
1 Year

Less than 
1 Year

Less than 
1 Year

Less than 
1 Year

1 -2 Years

1 -2 Years

1 -2 Years

1 -2 Years

2 -3 Years

2 -3 Years

2 -3 Years

2 -3 Years

More than 
3 Years

More than 
3 Years

More than 
3 Years

More than 
3 Years

Total

Total

Total

Total



Sr. No. Particulars
As at

March 31, 2022        March 31, 2021

Rs. In Lakhs

Sr. No.

No.

Particulars

Interest rate

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

14. Debt Securities

At amortised cost

Non-Convertible Debentures

Secured

Unsecured

Less - Unamortised borrowing cost

Total (A)

Debt securities in India
Less - Unamortised borrowing cost
Total (B - i)
Debt securities outside India
Total (B - ii)

Total B ( i + ii )

A

B

ii 

3,916.67              4,750.00

3,916.67              4,750.00

-                              -

-                              -
-                              -

   (17.12)                  (34.52)

   (17.12)                  (34.52)

3,899.55               4,715.48

3,899.55               4,715.48

3,899.55               4,715.48

Rate of interest

0-1 years

Date of allotment

1-3 years 

Date of redemption

3-5 years

Outstanding as at
March 31, 2022

>5 years Total

9.81 % P.A. Kifs Housing Finance Limited/Series
B/2020-21
10.10% P.A. Kifs Housing Finance Limited/Series
A/2020-21
9.81 % P.A. Kifs Housing Finance Limited/Series
B/2020-21
10.05% P.A. Kifs Housing Finance Limited/Series
C/2020-21

9.81% 1 

10.10% 2 

9.81% 3 

1 

2 

10.05%4

August 31, 2020

July 30, 2020

August 31, 2020

November 10, 2020

August 31, 2023

July 30, 2023

August 31, 2023

May 10, 2022

833.34

1,250.00

833.33

1,000.00

3,916.67

3,916.672,083.341,833.33

Non Convertible Debentures14.1 

Total

Total

Details of contractual repayment of debt securities (excluding interest accrued and unamortised 
issue cost) at March 31, 2022 is given below

9 to 10% 833.33 833.34 - - 1,666.67

10% to 11% 1,000.00 1,250.00 - - 2,250.00

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 95



71 

1. 

2. 

3. 

The Company has issued 125 Series A/2020-21 Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) of a face value of Rs. 
1,000,000/- to Canara Bank repayable in 3 years at a coupon rate of 10.10%. The same is listed on BSE on 
August 17, 2020. The principal amount is to be paid at the end of tenure and Interest is payable annually. The
debentures are issued on security of hypothecations of receivables equivalent to 1.10 times. The Company has 
also provided Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P. khandwala & Mr. Vimal P. Khandwala.

The Company has issued 250 Series B/2020-21 Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) of a face value of Rs. 

1,000,000/- to Bank of Baroda repayable in 3 years at a coupon rate of 9.81%p.a.. The same is listed on BSE on 

September 14, 2020. The principal and Interest is payable annually. The debentures are issued on security of 

hypothecations of receivables equivalent to 1.25 times. The Company has also provided Personal guarantee of 

Mr. Rajesh P. khandwala & Mr. Vimal P. Khandwala.

The Company has issued 100 Series C/2020-21 Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) of a face value of Rs. 
1,000,000/- to Punjab Natioanl Bank repayable in 18 Months at a coupon rate of 10.05%p.a.. The same is listed 
on BSE on November 25, 2020. The principal amount is to be paid at the end of tenure and Interest is payable 
annually. The debentures are issued on security of hypothecations of receivables equivalent to 1.10 times. The 
Company has also provided Personal guarantee of  Mr. Rajesh P. khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala.

15  Borrowings (other than debt securities)

No. Particulars
As at

March 31, 2022        March 31, 2021

Rs. In Lakhs

At amortised cost

Term loan from banks - Secured

Term loan from National Housing Bank - Secured

Loans repayable on demand from banks - Secured

Less - Unamortised borrowing cost

Total borrowings

Borrowings in India
Less - Unamortised borrowing cost
Total (B - i)
Borrowings outside India
Less - Unamortised borrowing cost

Total B ( i + ii )

A

B

ii 

iii 

ii 

10,288.67          

12,706.03          

3,303.20       

5,657.14

15,465.70

4,014.89

26,297.90             25,137.73

-                              -
-                              

-                              

-

-

   (153.82)                  

   (153.82)                  

(79.08)

(79.08)

26,144.08               

26,144.08               

26,144.08               

25,058.65

25,058.65

25,058.65

15.1 There has not been any default in repayment of borrowings and interest during financial year ended 
        March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

Total (B - ii)
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Sr. No.

Sr. No.

Interest rate

Interest rate

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

0-1 years

0-1 years

1-3 years 

1-3 years 

3-5 years

3-5 years

>5 years

>5 years

Total

Total

1 

1 

2 

2 

10,288.67

5,657.14

4,716.46

2,579.56

2,825.66

829.73

2,746.55

2,247.85

Total

Total

Total

Total

8% - 9%

8% - 9%

6%-7%

5%-6%
6%-7%
7%-8%

1,777.17

1,613.95

1,856.21

463.90
1,305.60

237.00

1,856.21

2,006.50

3,149.87

1,239.45

4,524.00

410.40
3,481.60

632.00

4,524.00

4,524.00

2,689.04

383.62

3,970.00

410.40
3,481.60

394.00

3,970.00

4,286.00

-

-

2,355.82

674.80
3,974.40

-

2,355.82

4,649.20

7,616.08

3,237.02

12,706.03

1,959.50
12,243.20
1,263.00 

12,706.03

15,465.70

9%-10%

9%-10%

969.38

633.90

1,566.59

1,340.11

136.62

446.11

-

-

2,672.59

2,420.12

15.2 Terms of repayment

At March 31, 2022

At March 31, 2021

Term loans from banks

Term loans from banks

Term loans from NHB

Term loans from NHB

a) The Company has taken term loan from Federal Bank Ltd (TL1) of Rs. 4.75 crores repayable in 60 monthly      
instalments starting from October 29, 2018 and carry Interest @8.80 % P.a. (PY: @8.80 % P.a.) (One year   
MCLR + 0.70 %) on security of cash margin of 10.00 % of loan amount and hypothecations of receivables 
equivalent to 1.10 times and letter of comfort by promoter entity i.e. KIFS International LLP.

b) The Company has taken term loan from South Indian Bank Ltd of Rs. 5 crores repayable in 60 monthly 
instalment starting from January 29, 2019 and carry Interest @8.75 % P.a. (PY: @8.75 % P.a.) (One year 
MCLR + 0.55 %). This facility is secured by cash margin equivalent to 10.00 % of term loan in form of fixed 
deposit and paripassu charge on all current assets, book debts, and housing loan assets both present and future 
of the company with minimum cover of 1.10 times. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of 
KIFS International LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P khandwala & Mr. Vimal 
P. Khandwala.

c) The Company has taken term loan from AU Small Finance Bank Limited of Rs. 10 crores repayable in 60 
monthly instalments starting from May 3, 2019 and carry interest @8.76 % p.a. (PY: @8.95 % P.a.)(12 months' 
average of one year T-Bill + 4.85 %). This facility is secured by hypothecations of present and future loan 
receivables equivalent to 1.20 times for the loan principal outstanding.The Company has also provided 
corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P. 
khandwala & Mr. Vimal P. Khandwala. 

d) The Company has taken term loan from Federal Bank Ltd (TL2) of Rs. 5.00 crores repayable in 60 monthly 
instalments starting from May 23, 2019 and carry Interest @9.25 % P.a. (PY: @9.95 % P.a.)(One year MCLR + 
1.30 %) on security of cash marging of 10.00 % of loan amount and hypothecations of receivables equivalent 
to 1.10 times. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the holding 
enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P. Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P. Khandwala.

15.3
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e) The Company has taken term loan from Federal Bank Ltd (TL3) of Rs. 6.00 crores repayable in 60 monthly 
instalments starting from October 30, 2019 and carry Interest @9.10 % P.a. (PY: @10 % P.a.) (One year MCLR 
+ 1.00 %) on security of cash marging of 5% of loan amount and hypothecations of receivables equivalent to 
1.20 times. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the holding 
enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala.

f) The Company has taken term loan from State Bank of India of Rs.25 Crores repayable Quarterly. instalments 
and carry Interest @9.50 % P.a. (PY: @8.45 % P.a.) (One year MCLR + 1.00 %) on security of (Immovable 
property/cash collateral) equivalent to 18% of loan amount and hypothecations of receivables equivalent to 
1.25 times. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the holding 
enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala.

g) The Company has taken term loan from Karur Vyasa Bank of Rs. 15.00 crores repayable in Quarterly 
instalments and carry Interest @9.45 % P.a. (PY: @9.45 % P.a.) (One year MCLR + 0.80 %) on security of 
hypothecations of receivables equivalent to 1.20 times. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee 
of KIFS International LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P khandwala & Mr. 
Vimal P Khandwala.

h) The Company has taken refinance facility from National Housing Bank of Rs. 45.00 crores repayable in 10 
years 2 months 12 days in quarterly instalments starting from January 15, 2020 carrying Interest @6.40 % (PY: 
@5.91 % P.a.). Security against this is hypothecation of receivables equivalent to 1.25 times and bank 
guarantee equivalent to 20.00 % of loan amount sanctioned. Further the Company has also provided Corporate 
guarantee of KIFS International LLP.

i) The Company has taken term loan from Federal Bank Ltd (TL4) of Rs. 4.00 crores repayable in 60 monthly 
installments starting from February 29, 2020 and carry Interest @9.00 % P.a. (PY: @9.00 % P.a.) (One year 
MCLR + 1.00 %) on security of cash margin of 5% of loan amount and hypothecations of receivables 
equivalent to 1.20 times. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the 
holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P. Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P. Khandwala.

j) The Company has taken term loan from Federal Bank Ltd (TL5) of Rs. 10 crores repayable in 60 monthly 
installments starting from January 31, 2021 and carry Interest @9.10 % P.a. (PY: @8.90 % P.a.) (One year 
MCLR + 1.00 %) on security of hypothecations of receivables equivalent to 1.20 times.The Company has also 
provided corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. 
Rajesh P. khandwala & Mr. Vimal P. Khandwala.

k) The Company has taken refinance facility under lift scheme from National Housing Bank of Rs. 15.00 
crores repayable in 5 Years in quarterly instalments starting from July 1, 2020 carrying Interest @ 6.50 % (PY: 
@7.05 % P.a.). Security against this is hypothecation of receivables equivalent to 1.35 times. Further the 
Company has also provided Corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the holding enterprise) & 
Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P. khandwala & Mr. Vimal P. Khandwala.

l) The Company has taken refinance facility under regular refinance scheme from National Housing Bank of 
Rs. 100.00 crores repayable in 7 Years in quarterly instalments starting from April 1, 2021 carrying Interest @ 
6.55 % (PY: @6.10 % P.a.). Security against this is hypothecation of receivables equivalent to 1.20 times and 
bank guarantee equivalent to 10.00 % of loan amount sanctioned. Further the Company has also provided 
Corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P. 
Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P. Khandwala. 

m) During the year, The Company has taken term loan from Federal Bank Ltd (TL6) of Rs. 10 crores repayable 
in 60 monthly installments starting from October 30, 2021 and carry Interest @8.30 % P.a. (One year MCLR + 
0.20 %) on security of hypothecations of receivables equivalent to 1.10 times.The Company has also provided 
corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P. 
Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P. Khandwala.



n) During the year, The Company has taken term loan from IDBI Bank of Rs. 10.00 crores repayable in 60 
monthly instalments starting from January 31, 2022 and carry Interest @8.50 % P.a. (One year MCLR + 0.85 
%) on security of cash margin of 5.00 % of loan amount and hypothecations of receivables equivalent to 1.20 
times. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the holding enterprise) 
& Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P. khandwala & Mr. Vimal P. Khandwala.

o) During the year, The Company has taken term loan from State Bank of India of Rs.50 Crores repayable 
Quarterly. instalments and carry Interest @8.75 % P.a. (One year MCLR + 1.80 %) on security of (Immovable 
property/cash collateral) equivalent to 18% of loan amount and hypothecations of receivables equivalent to 
1.25 times. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the holding 
enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P. khandwala & Mr. Vimal P. Khandwala.

(p) The Company has filed statement of asset cover with security trustee & banks reconciling with books of 
Accounts.

15.3 The Company has not obtained borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of 
Current Assets.

15.4 The Company has used the Borrowings from banks & financial institutions for the specific purpose for 
which it was taken.

No.
Note

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2022        March 31, 2021

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

Other financial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings and debt securities
Employee benefits payable
Payable to Customers
Lease liability
Total

Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity
Compensated absence
Total

Statutory dues
Advance EMI
Advance from customers
Provision for expenses
Total

Authorised Capital

250,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 

(P.Y 250,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

Total

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

249,986,452 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 

(P.Y 249,986,452 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

Less - Share issue cost

Total

16 

17  

18  

19  
19.1  

19.2  

Provisions

Other non financial liabilities

Equity Share Capital

224.30

146.54

16.55

20.89

258.67

13.59

24,998.65

33.38

729.73

193.80

(47.51)

25,000.00

64.75

1,229.25

374.82

24,951.14

25,000.00

98.13

275.97

97.82

4.70

20.50

1,000.78

4.35

24,998.65

38.98

297.13

182.91

(47.51)

25,000.00

75.36

1,578.58

305.57

24,951.14

25,000.00

114.34
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Name of the Shareholder

As at
March 31, 2022
No. of shares %        

March 31, 2021
No. of shares %

19.3 Rights, preferences and restrictions :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/-. Each holder of equity 
share is entitled to one vote per share.

Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. Dividend declared and paid would be in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to receive any of 
the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The amount 
distributed will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

19.4 Details of equity shareholders holding more than 5 per cent shares :

KIFS International LLP 24,94,85,752 24,94,85,752

99.80% 99.80%

Particulars
2021-2022 2020-2021

No. of shares      No. of shares      Amount Amount

19.5 Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding:

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year
Changes in Equity share Capital during the Year

24,99,86,552
-

24,99,86,552

24,99,86,552
-

24,99,86,552

24,998.65
-

24,998.65

24,998.65
-

24,998.65Equity Shares at the end of the period

19.6 The Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale

19.7 The Company has not allotted any shares pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash or 
as bonus shares nor it has bought back any shares during the preceding 5 financial years.

19.8 The Company has not issued any convertible securities and has not issued any shares where calls are 
unpaid. The Company has not forfeited any shares

19.9 Details of shares held by the Promotors at the end of the year

20 Other equity

Promotor Name 

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

% Change during

the yearNo. of Shares      No. of Shares      % of Holding     % of total Shares  

KIFS International LLP

Retained Earnings
Statutory Reserve
Other comprehensive - employee benefits
Total

24,94,85,752 24,94,85,752

3,567.763,567.76
1,307.73

23.19
4,898.68

99.80 99.80

2,582.302,582.30
1,010.18

0.86
3,593.34

-

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

Rs. In Lakhs

 ii 

iii 

i
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Note
No. Particulars

For the year Ended
March 31, 2022        March 31, 2021

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

21   Interest Income

Interest on Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost

Interest on Loans                                                                                    5,761.19                5,100.49 

Total                                                                                                       5,761.19                5,100.49 

22   Fees and Commission Income

Fees and commission income                                                                      67.73                 159.03 

Total                                                                                                             67.73                 159.03 

23   Net gain on fair value changes

Net gain on financial instruments designated at fair value 

through profit or loss                                                                                  285.10                 131.25 

Total                                                                                                           285.10                 131.25 

23.1 Fair value changes
Realised                                                                                                      293.63                   69.72 

Unrealised                                                                                                     (8.54)                  61.53 

Total                                                                                                            285.10                131.25 

24   Other operating revenue

Interest on fixed deposits with banks                                                          219.80                195.30 

Other ancillary services                                                                               201.39               230.15 

Total                                                                                                            421.19               425.45 

25   Finance Cost

25.1 Interest on financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Interest on borrowing                                                                                 1,436.41          1,032.84 

Interest on debt securities                                                                              441.41             277.06 

Interest on lease liabilities                                                                              42.49               28.68 

Other borrowings cost                                                                                       6.60              16.57 

Total                                                                                                           1,926.91          1,355.15 

26   Impairment on financial instruments

On financial instruments measured at amortized cost                                    526.19           339.97 

Total                                                                                                               526.19           339.97 

27   Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries and wages                                                                                        1,760.99      1,407.39 
 Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds                                               80.11           58.17 

Staff Welfare expenses                                                                                         9.90            8.16 

Total                                                                                                              1,851.00      1,473.72 
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Note
No. Particulars

For the year Ended
March 31, 2022        March 31, 2021

28   Other Expenses 

Rent, taxes and energy costs                                                                        -                        (4.72)

Repair and Maintenance                                                                           83.91                   57.74

Communication cost                                                                                 27.60                   21.24 

Power & fuel                                                                                             14.20                   11.78 

Printing and Stationery                                                                             18.56                   14.86 

Advertisement expenses                                                                             5.43                     0.47

Rates and Taxes                                                                                          4.62                     7.74 

Recruitment Expenses                                                                                0.11                     1.38 

ROC & Filing Expenses                                                                             0.23                     0.39 

Directors Sitting fees                                                                                  5.12                     5.12 

Auditors' fees and expenses                                                                        7.80                     8.88

Legal and Professional charges                                                                  77.31                  48.65 

Business Promotion expenses                                                                      6.91                    4.78 

Commission & Brokerage                                                                            2.34                   1.17 

Travelling and Conveyance                                                                        67.97                  55.52 

Insurance                                                                                                     30.27                  26.95 

Membership & Subscription fees                                                                 3.90                    2.50 

CSR Expenses                                                                                            32.67                   18.02 

Others                                                                                                         36.03                   31.76 

Total                                                                                                          424.98                 314.23 

 

 

 

 

28.1 Payment to auditors 

for statutory audit                                                                                          4.73                   4.20 

for Internal Control Over Financial Reporting                                             0.75                   0.50 

for tax audit                                                                                                   0.79                   0.40 

for Goods and Services tax audit                                                                      -                     1.69 

for other services                                                                                           1.50                   2.06 

for out of pocket expenses                                                                             0.03                   0.04 

Total                                                                                                                7.80                 8.88 
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Particulars                                                                                     Current            Non-Current              Total 
Assets
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents                                                                   19.35                        -                          19.35
Bank balance other than other than cash & cash equivalents            998.76                   3047.03               4,045.79
Derivative financial instruments                                                           -                              -                             -
Receivables
      - Trade receivables                                                                          -                              -                            - 
      - Other receivables                                                                          3.88                        -                             3.88
Loans                                                                                               4,844.03                  43,410.23            48254.26 
Investments                                                                                      7799.03                       -                        7799.03
Other Financial Assets                                                                         54.00                        71.44                 125.44 
Total financial assets                                                                   13,719.05                 46,528.70            60,247.75

Non-Financial Assets 
Current tax assets (Net)                                                                        -                               94.70                  94.70 
Deferred tax assets (Net)                                                                      -                             365.19                365.19 
Property, Plant and Equipment                                                             -                             893.45                893.45 
Other intangible assets                                                                         -                               30.41                   30.41 
Intangible assets under development                                                 33.08                          -                          33.08 
Other non-financial assets                                                                120.10                          -                        120.10 
Total Non-financial assets                                                              153.18                     1383.75                1536.93 
 
Total Assets                                                                                 13,872.23                  47,912.45             61,784.68 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
LIABILITIES 
Financial liabilities 
Derivative financial instruments                                                          -                               -                           - 
Payables 
Trade Payables 
     - total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and 
       small enterprises                                                                           1.03                         -                             1.03
     - total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro 
       enterprises and small enterprises                                               183.71                        -                          183.71 

Other Payables 
     - total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small 
       enterprises                                                                                   -                                -                              - 
     - total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro 
       enterprises and small enterprises                                                  4.29                        -                              4.29
Debt securities                                                                               1,820.53                   2,079.02               3,899.55 
Borrowings (other than debt securities)                                        7,853.47                 18,290.61              26,144.08 
Subordinated liabilities                                                                     -                                -                              - 
Other financial liabilities                                                                  650.69                      578.56                1,229.25 
Total financial liabilities                                                            10,513.72                 20,948.19              31,461.91

Non-Financial Liabilities 

Provisions                                                                                             6.89                        91.24                    98.13 
Other non - financial Liabilities                                                        374.82                         -                        374.82 
Total non-financial liabilities                                                          381.71                       91.24                  472.95 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29.   Current and non-current assets and liabilities 

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Rs. in Lakhs 
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Particulars                                                                                      Current          Non-Current             Total 
Equity                                                                                                 
Equity share capital                                                                              -                     24,951.14            24,951.14  
Other equity                                                                                          -                       4,898.68              4,898.68 
Total equity                                                                                         -                      29,849.82            29,849.82 
Total Liabilities and Equity                                                          10,895.43               50,889.25            61,784.68 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021 

Particulars                                                                                     Current            Non-Current              Total 
Assets
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents                                                                   7.32                         -                          7.32
Bank balance other than other than cash & cash equivalents           283.17                   3510.41               3,793.58
Derivative financial instruments                                                           -                              -                             -
Receivables
      - Trade receivables                                                                          -                              -                            - 
      - Other receivables                                                                       103.72                        -                         103.72
Loans                                                                                               3,623.42                40,769.54             44,392.96 
Investments                                                                                    11,413.65                       -                     11,413.65
Other Financial Assets                                                                          -                              96.75                     96.75 
Total financial assets                                                                   15,431.28                44,376.70               59,807.98 

Non-Financial Assets 

Deferred tax assets (Net)                                                                      -                             313.49                313.49 
Property, Plant and Equipment                                                             -                             385.32                385.32 
Other intangible assets                                                                         -                                  2.52                    2.52 
Intangible assets under development                                                 22.23                           -                         22.23 
Other non-financial assets                                                                120.38                          -                        120.38 
Total Non-financial assets                                                              142.61                        701.33                843.94 
 
Total Assets                                                                                 15,573.89                   45,078.03           60,651.92  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
LIABILITIES 
Financial liabilities 
Derivative financial instruments                                                          -                               -                           - 
Payables 
Trade Payables 
     - total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and 
       small enterprises                                                                           -                              -                            - 
     - total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro 
       enterprises and small enterprises                                               316.16                        -                         316.16 

Other Payables 
     - total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small 
       enterprises                                                                                   -                                -                              - 
     - total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro 
       enterprises and small enterprises                                                  4.63                        -                              4.63
Debt securities                                                                                  827.27                   3,888.21               4,715.48 
Borrowings (other than debt securities)                                                                    25,058.65 8,243.23 16,815.42 

Subordinated liabilities                                                                     -                                -                              - 
Other financial liabilities                                                                                                  1,578.58  1,333.47 245.11 
Total financial liabilities                                                             10.724.76                20,948.74             31,673.50 
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Particulars                                                                                      Current          Non-Current             Total
Non-Financial Liabilities 

14.03                        -                          14.03 Current tax liabilities (Net)                                                                
Provisions                                                                                             7.62                    106.72                  114.34 
Other non - financial Liabilities                                                        305.57                        -                       305.57 
Total non-financial liabilities                                                          327.22                   106.72                  433.94  

Equity                                                                                                 
Equity share capital                                                                              -                     24,951.14              24,951.14  
Other equity                                                                                          -                       3,593.34                3,593.34  
Total equity                                                                                         -                      28,544.48              28,544.48  
Total Liabilities and Equity                                                          11,051.98               49,599.94              60,651.92  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30. Earnings Per Share 

Particulars                                                                  Year ended March 31, 2022      Year ended March 31, 2021 
Basic 
Net profit as per statement of Profit & Loss                                1,283.01                                        1,768.27 
Profit available to equity shareholders                                        1,283.01                                         1,768.27 
Weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year (in Nos.)                                     249,986,552                                  249,986,552 
Basic earnings per share of face value of 
Rs. 10 each (Rs.)                                                                                 0.51                                               0.71 
Diluted earnings per share of face value of 
Rs. 10 each (Rs.)                                                                                 0.51                                               0.71  

There are no instruments outstanding that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future and 
were not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because they are anti-dilutive for the 
period(s) presented.
 
There were no transactions that have occurred after the reporting date that would have changed significantly 
the number of ordinary shares outstanding or potential ordinary shares outstanding at the reporting date. 

The Company is engaged in lending business. The Company provides mortgages loans (home loan, loan 
against properties, construction reality) and operates within India only. The Board of the Company reviews the 
Company's performance as a single business. There being only one segment, disclosure for segment is not 
applicable. 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA 
amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2022. The effective date for adoption of these 
amendments is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The amendments to IND AS are as below. 

The Company is not having any instruments, which are dilutive in nature. 

31. Segment Reporting 

32. Standard issued but not effective 

(i) Ind AS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment 

(ii) Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

(iii) Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework 

(iv) Ind AS 109 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) 
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33. Taxation 

Income tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss Comprises of : 

Current Tax                                                                                                     397.69                                  525.00 
Current tax - excess provision of tax for earlier year                                       (2.10)                                       - 
Total current tax expenses                                                                               395.59                                  525.00 
Deferred tax in statement of profit and loss 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary difference                         (59.22)                                  (80.00) 
Total Deferred tax expenses/(income)                                                         (59.22)                                  (80.00) 
Total Income tax expenses                                                                            336.37                                  445.00 

Particulars                                              For the year ended March 31,     
2022 2021  

The tax expense and tax assets have been computed as per applicable tax laws and generally accepted tax 
computation policies and procedures. There is no uncertain tax treatment. 

The details of income tax assets/(liabilities) and deferred tax assets/(liabilities) : 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Net Income tax assets/(liabilities)                                                        94.70                                       (14.03) 
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)                                                           365.19                                       313.49 

Particulars                                                                            As at March 31, 2022            As at March31, 2021 

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income 
tax rate to the income before income taxes is summarised below 

Particulars                                                                            Year ended 
March 31, 2022     

Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

Accounting profit before tax                                                                     1,619.38                            2,213.27 
Statutory tax rate                                                                                          25.168%                           25.168% 
Tax liability on accounting profit                                                                 407.56                              557.03 
Tax effect of 
Expenses disallowed under Income Tax Act                                                       8.43                                 5.04 
Income tax deduction including for Special Reserve available 
to financial institutions                                                                                    (74.89)                            (110.01) 
Tax expenses pertaining to previous year                                                         (2.10)                                    - 
Others                                                                                                                (2.63)                                (7.06) 
Income tax expenses as per books                                                               336.37                               445.00 
Effective income tax rate                                                                               20.77%                              20.11% 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Details of each type of recognized temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits 

Particulars                                                                            As at 
March 31, 2022     

As at
March 31, 2021 

Deferred tax related to Item recognised through profit or loss 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Unrealised gain on investments                                                                           (13.99)                           (15.49) 
Unamortised expenses for borrowings                                                                 (43.02)                          (28.59) 
Total – Deferred tax liabilities                                                                           (57.01)                          (44.08) 
Deferred tax assets 
Unamortised income/expenses (net) on loans given                                            165.76                           153.72
Expected credit losses                                                                                          203.85                            152.91 
Employee benefits                                                                                                  24.70                              28.78 
Related to Property, Plant and Equipment and leases                                            27.89                              22.16 
Total- Deferred tax assets                                                                                   422.20                           357.57 
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)                                                                           365.19                           313.49 
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Details of movement in deferred tax balances 

Unamortised income/expenses (net) on loans given                     153.72                       12.04                      165.76 
Unamortised expenses for borrowings                                          (28.59)                     (14.43)                     (43.02) 
Unrealised gain on investments                                                     (15.49)                        1.50                      (13.99) 
Expected credit losses                                                                   152.91                        50.94                     203.85 
Employee benefits                                                                           28.78                         (4.08)                     24.70 
Property, plant and equipment and leases                                       22.16                           5.73                      27.89 
Total                                                                                              313.49                         51.70                    365.19 

Particulars 
As at

April 1, 2021 

(Charge)/credit 
to profit and 
loss account 

As at 
March 31,2022 

Particulars 
As at

April 1, 2020 

(Charge)/credit 
to profit and 
loss account 

As at 
March 31,2021 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Unamortised income/expenses (net) on loans given                     125.37                       28.35                     153.72 
Unamortised expenses for borrowings                                          (22.77)                      (5.82)                     (28.59) 
Unrealised gain on investments                                                      (0.65)                     (14.84)                     (15.49) 
Expected credit losses                                                                    97.51                        55.40                      152.91 
Employee benefits                                                                          16.92                        11.86                        28.78 
Property, plant and equipment and leases                                       15.94                         6.22                        22.16 
Others                                                                                               1.17                         (1.17)                         - 
Total                                                                                              233.49                        80.00                     313.49 

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent to the business and is 
meeting the capital adequacy requirements of Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The adequacy of the Company 
capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued by regulators. The Company has 
complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported periods. 

34. Capital management 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Debt                                                                                                   30043.63                                 29,774.13 
Equity                                                                                                29849.82                                28,544.48
Debt to equity ratio                                                                                1.01                                          1.04 
 

Particulars                                                                            As at March 31, 2022            As at March31, 2021 

Loan covenants 
Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company has complied with the covenants throughout 
the reporting period. 

Management has assessed the possible obligations arising from claims against the Company in accordance 
with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 37 and based on judicial precedents, 
consultation with lawyers and/or based on its historical experiences. Accordingly, management is of the view 
that based on currently available information, no provision in addition to that already recognised in its 
financial statements is considered necessary in respect of the above. 

The Company has outstanding undrawn commitments to provide loans to customers. These loan commitments 
aggregated to Rs. 5378.03 lakhs as at March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 7,842.28 lakhs). Further, the 
commitments have fixed expiration dates and are contingent upon the borrower's ability to maintain specific 
credit standards.  

35. Contingent liabilities and commitments 

Loan commitments 
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Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars                                                                           

Particulars                                                                           

Particulars                                                                           

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022     

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022     

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022     

Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

Opening balance                                                                                                                239.93                            316.29
Addition                                                                                                                             543.29                                -
Deletion                                                                                                                               (7.84)                                -
Depreciation for the year                                                                                                 (126.84)                           (76.36) 
Closing balance                                                                                                                 648.54                            239.93 

Opening balance                                                                                                                297.15                            364.12
Addition                                                                                                                             543.29                                -
Deletion                                                                                                                               (7.74)                                -
Finance cost accrued during the period                                                                               42.49                              28.68
Payment                                                                                                                            (145.46)                           (95.65)
Closing balance                                                                                                                  729.73                           297.15
   - Current                                                                                                                           151.17                             52.02 
   - Non-current                                                                                                                    578.56                           245.13 
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Capital commitments 
The Company is obligated under various capital contracts. Capital contracts are work/purchase orders of a 
capital nature, which have been committed. Amount of contracts remaining to be executed on property, plant 
and equipment aggregated to Nil as at March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 4.76 lakhs).
 
36. Leases 
The Company has taken various office premises under lease. The lease terms in respect of such premises are on 
the basis of individual agreements entered into with the respective landlords. 

Movement in carrying value of right of use assets is given below. 

Movement in carrying value of lease liability is given below. 

Contractual maturities of lease liability on an undiscounted basis is given below. 

Less than 1 year                                                                                                               204.27                               102.70 
Between 1 and 2 years                                                                                                    185.46                                  91.93 
Between 2 and 3 years                                                                                                    156.53                                  66.43 
Between 3 and 4 years                                                                                                    144.75                                  58.28 
Between 4 and 5 years                                                                                                    101.05                                  59.12 
More than 5 years                                                                                                            116.94                                 47.80 
Total                                                                                                                                909.00                               426.26 

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are 
sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due. 

The Company does not have any variable lease payments and also has not sub-leased right of use assets. 
Further, the Company does not have any significant restrictions or covenants imposed under the leases. 



37. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) : Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars                                                                            Year ended 
March 31, 2022     

Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year                    32.67                            18.02 
Amount spent during the year on purposes other than 
construction/ acquisition of any asset                                                                32.67                             18.02 
Paid                                                                                                                        32.67                             18.02 
Yet to be paid                                                                                                             -                                    - 
Total                                                                                                                      32.67                             18.02 

Shortfall in Payment: 
There is no shortfall in the CSR amount required to be spent by the Company as per Section 135(5) of the 
Act for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 

Nature of CSR Activities: 

For the year ended March 31, 2022: 
Out of the total amount of Rs.32.67 Lakhs, the company: 
- spent Rs.6.67 lakhs towards Hunger Free Palghar, an initiative by Govardhan Annakshetra, ISKCON; 
- contributed Rs.18.00 lakhs to TATA Memorial Hospital for the treatment of the Cancer Patients; 
- contributed Rs.8.00 lakhs to Bhaktivedanta Hospital & Research Institute, a project of Sri Chaitanya Seva 
  Trust for purchase of medical equipments for treatment of patients 

For the year ended March 31, 2021: 
Out of the total amount of Rs.18.02 Lakhs, the company: 
- contributed Rs.13.02 lakhs to Tata Memorial Hospital for purchasing of necessary medical equipments for 
  the treatment of Cancer Patients, and 
- spent Rs.5.00 lakhs towards Hunger Free Palghar, an initiative by Govardhan Annakshetra, ISKCON. 

The Company has neither made any CSR contribution towards its related parties nor has recorded any 
provision for CSR expenditure during the financial years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are subject to offsetting where there is a legally enforceable right to 
set-off recognised amounts and the Company intends to either settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. As at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, there was no offsetting of 
financial assets and financial liabilities.  

Related Party Transactions & Provision

38. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 

39. Financial Risk Management 
Financial Instruments Risk management objectives and Policies 

Liquidity Risk 

The table below provide details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at March 
31, 2022 

Particulars                Upto 1 year              1-3 year                  3-5 year              Over 5 years                Total 
Borrowings                   4,416.32                 9,180.12                  6,746.72                 2,497.72                 22,840.88 
Debt securities              1,825.32                 2,074.23                        -                             -                          3,899.55 
Total                             6,241.64                11,254.35                 6,746.72                 2,497.72                 26,740.43 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars                Upto 1 year              1-3 year                  3-5 year              Over 5 years                Total 
Borrowings                   4,238.41                 7,076.97                  5,096.58                  4,631.80                21,043.76 
Debt securities                827.28                  3,888.20                       -                               -                          4715.48 
Total                             5,065.69               10,965.17                  5,096.58                  4,631.80                25,759.24 

The table below provide details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at March 
31, 2021 
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Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by 
failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk encompasses both, the direct risk of default and the risk of 
deterioration of credit worthiness. 

For the loan portfolio, an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the facts and 
circumstances existing on that date to identify expected losses on account of credit risk. For the purposes of 
this analysis, the loan portfolio is categorised into groups based on days past due. Each group is then assessed 
for impairment using the ECL model as per the provisions of Ind AS 109 - financial instruments. The 
impairment assessment is also carried out in accordance with the regulations prescribed by RBI. The provision 
for impairment is considered at higher of the amount worked out as per Ind AS 109 and as per RBI Regulations. 

The maximum exposure to the credit risk is as follows: 
Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars                                                                            As at March 31, 2022            As at March31, 2021 

Other Receivables                                                                                     3.88                                       103.72 
Loans                                                                                                48,254.26                                  44,392.96 
Other Financial Assets                                                                          125.44                                         96.75 

Reconciliation of gross carrying amount of loan portfolio 

Particulars                                                                               Stage 1            Stage 2           Stage 3             Total 
Gross carrying amount balance as at April 1, 2020          33,227.72           197.78            157.32           33,582.81 
New asset originated                                                              21,944.79             13.48                 -                21,958.27 
Assets derecognised or repaid                                              (10,376.94)          (41.66)                 -              (10,418.07) 
Transfers from Stage 1                                                              (467.67)          312.68             154.99                  - 
Transfers from Stage 2                                                                 61.39           (113.80)             52.41                  - 
Transfers from Stage 3                                                                    -                      -                      -                       - 
Gross carrying amount balance as at March 31, 2021       44,389.29           368.47            364.72          45,122.48 
New asset originated                                                               13,491.39                1.79                -               13,493.18 
Assets derecognised or repaid                                                 (9,034.00)            (93.24)         (356.94)        (9,484.18) 
Transfers from Stage 1                                                            (1,587.30)         1,174.82            412.48                - 
Transfers from Stage 2                                                                   77.28           (185.61)           108.33                - 
Transfers from Stage 3                                                                     -                     -                       -                     - 
Gross carrying amount balance as at March 31, 2022        47,336.66         1,266.23            528.59         49,131.48 

Particulars                                                                               Stage 1            Stage 2           Stage 3             Total 

Reconciliation of ECL Balance 

ECL Allowance as at April 1, 2020                                         286.47              33.24              65.07              384.77 
New assets originated                                                                227.33                2.29                  -                  229.62 
Assets derecognised or repaid                                                  (129.96)             (6.12)                 -                 (136.08) 
Due to changes in assumptions                                                (138.57)             59.00               82.75                  3.18 
Transfers from Stage 1                                                                 (4.34)               2.89                 1.45                   - 
Transfers from Stage 2                                                                10.78             (20.37)                9.59                   - 
Transfers from Stage 3                                                                    -                      -                      -                       -
ECL Allowance as at March 31, 2021                                    251.70              70.93              158.86            481.49 
New assets originated                                                                  89.70                0.36                  -                    90.06 
Assets derecognised or repaid                                                    (51.25)           (16.64)           (155.47)          (223.36) 
Due to changes in assumptions                                                    11.85            195.05             198.07             404.97 
Transfers from Stage 1                                                                (10.46)              7.66                 2.80                   - 
Transfers from Stage 2                                                                 16.28             (38.13)             21.85                   - 
Transfers from Stage 3                                                                    -                      -                      -                        - 
ECL Allowance as at March 31, 2022                                      307.82            219.23            226.11             753.16 
 

The Company is having additional provision of Rs.36 lakhs for loan losses, provision of Rs.77.37 lakhs for 
restructured loans and Rs.10.34 lakhs for loan commitments. 
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40. Fair valuation 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents                    -                     -                         19.35                         19.35                     19.35 
Bank balance other than above             -                     -                     4,045.79                   4,045.79                4,045.79 
Other receivable                                    -                     -                            3.88                          3.88                      3.88 
Loans                                                     -                     -                   48,254.26                 48,254.26             48,254.26 
Investments                                     7,799.03              -                            -                         7,799.03                7,799.03 
Other financial assets                            -                     -                        125.44                      125.44                   125.44 
Total financial assets                      7,799.03             -                    52,448.72                 60,247.75              60,247.75 
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables                                      -                     -                        184.74                       184.74                 184.74 
Other payables                                      -                     -                            4.29                           4.29                     4.29 
Debt securities                                      -                     -                     3,899.55                    3,899.55              3,899.55 
Borrowings                                           -                     -                   26,144.08                  26,144.08             26,144.08 
Other financial liabilities                      -                     -                     1,229.25                    1,229.25               1,229.25 
Total financial liabilities                    -                      -                    31,461.91                 31,461.91             31,461.91 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents                    -                      -                        7.32                           7.32                        7.32 
Bank balance other than cash 
and cash equivalents                             -                      -                   3,793.58                   3,793.58                 3,793.58 
Other receivable                                    -                     -                      103.72                      103.72                     103.72 
Loans                                                     -                     -                  44,392.96                 44,392.96               44,392.96 
Investments                                    11,413.65              -                          -                        11,413.65               11,413.65  
Other financial assets                            -                     -                         96.75                          96.75                     96.75  
Total financial assets                    11,413.65              -                  48,394.33                   59,807.98             59,807.98 
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables                                      -                     -                       316.16                        316.16                  316.16  
Other payables                                      -                     -                            4.63                           4.63                     4.63 
Debt securities                                      -                     -                      4,715.48                    4,715.48              4,715.48 
Borrowings                                           -                     -                    25,058.65                  25,058.65            25,058.65 
Other financial liabilities                      -                     -                      1,578.58                    1,578.58              1,578.58  
Total financial liabilities                    -                      -                    31,673.50                  31,673.50             31,673.50

Particulars                                      FVTPL          FVPCI        Amortised cost    Total carrying value    Fair value 

Particulars                                      FVTPL          FVPCI        Amortised cost    Total carrying value    Fair value 

Carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2021. 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Fair value measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities 

The Fair value of loan given and funds borrowed approximates the carrying value as the respective interest 
rates of the said instruments are at the prevailing market rate of interest.
 
The carrying amount of other financial assets and other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the 
financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate 
that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or 
settled. 

During financial year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Company has not reclassified any of 
financial assets from one category to another category. Hence, fair value hierarchy is not given for the same. 
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An analysis of financial instruments grouped into Level 1, 2 and 3 as at March 31, 2022. 

Particulars                                                                               Stage 1            Stage 2           Stage 3             Total 
Financial assets 
Loans                                                                                                      -                          -                 48,254.26         48,254.26 
Investments                                                                                        7,799.03                  -                        -                  7,799.03 
Total financial assets                                                                        7,799.03                  -                 48,254.26         56,053.29 
Financial liabilities 
Debt securities                                                                                        -                          -                   3,899.55           3,899.55 
Borrowings                                                                                             -                          -                 26,144.08         26,144.08 
Total financial liabilities                                                                                                                     30,043.63         30,043.63 
 

Particulars                                                                                         Stage 1            Stage 2               Stage 3             Total 
Financial assets 
Loans                                                                                                      -                          -                 44,392.96          44,392.96  
Investments                                                                                        11,413.65                   -                        -               11,413.65  
Total financial assets                                                                        11,413.65                   -              44,392.96          55,806.61 
Financial liabilities 
Debt securities                                                                                        -                          -                  4,715.48           4,715.48  
Borrowings                                                                                             -                          -                25,058.65          25,058.65  
Total financial liabilities                                                                                                                    29,774.13          29,774.13  
 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 
An analysis of financial instruments grouped into Level 1, 2 and 3 as at March 31, 2021. 

41. Related Party Disclosures: 

Related party                                                                                       Name of related parties 
Holding enterprises                                                                             KIFS International LLP 
Key Managerial person 
Managing Director                                                                                Rajesh P Khandwala 
Managing Director                                                                                Vimal P Khandwala 
Company Secretary                                                                               Tejal Gunjan Gala 
Chief Financial Officer                                                                         Deepak Kumar Ajmera (till March 21, 2022)
Enterprises over which Key Managerial person have control 
                                                                                                              KIFS Trade Capital Private Limited 
                                                                                                              Khandwala Finstock Private Limited 
                                                                                                              KIFS Financial Services Limited 
                                                                                                              Khandwala Commercial Private Limited 
                                                                                                              KIFS Motors Private Limited 
                                                                                                              Amoureux Enterprise Private Limited 
                                                                                                              Endroit Enterprise Private Limited 
                                                                                                              KIFS Bullion Private Limited 
                                                                                                              KIFS (IFSC) Private Limited 
                                                                                                              Khandwala Tradelink Co. (Partnership Firm) 
                                                                                                              KIFS Enterprise (Partnership Firm) 
                                                                                                              KIFS Commercial (Partnership Firm) 
                                                                                                              KIFS Dealers (Partnership Firm) 
                                                                                                              KIFS Infrastructure LLP 
                                                                                                              KIFS Estate LLP 
Independent / Non-executive Directors 
                                                                                                              Padmanabh Vora 
                                                                                                              Bhavna Desai 
                                                                                                              Purvi Bhavsar 
                                                                                                              Kartik Mehta 
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Particulars of transactions with related parties. The transactions are disclosed in aggregate value. 

Managerial 
remunaration#  

Tejal Gunjan Gala

Tejal Gunjan Gala

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

 - - - 

 - - - 
 - - - 
 - - - 
 - - - 
 - - - 

 - - - 
 - - - 

 - - - 
 - - 
 - - 

9.00 - 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

(7.89) 
Deepak Kumar 
Ajmera 

Deepak Kumar 
Ajmera 

61.29 

(49.40) 

Reimbursement of 
expenses 
(paid/payable) 

 0.04

4.69 

(4.48) 

Sitting Fees Padmanabh Vora 2.60 
(2.90) 

Bhavna Desai 0.90 
(0.40) 

Purvi Bhavsar 0.70 
(0.80) 

Kartik Mehta 0.50 
(0.60) 

Total Expenses 75.02 4.70 
(61.77) (4.70) 

Transactions 
Name of related 

party 
Holding 

enterprises 

Enterprises 
over which KMP 

have control 

KMP/ relatives 
of KMP 

Independent / 
Non-Executive 

Directors 

Note – Previous year figures are given in bracket. 

Note – The company has not granted any loans to promotors, directors, KMP's & related parties during 
the financial year 2021-2022 & 2020-2021. 

# For Continuing employees, expenses towards gratuity and leave encashment provisions are determined 
actuarially on overall Company basis as at the end of each year and accordingly, have not been considered in 
the above information. 

Balances outstanding at the end of the year 
Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Sr. No.     Particulars                                                               As at March 31, 2022           As at March31, 2021 
               Equity share capital 

               - KIFS International LLP                                                     24,948.58                              24,948.58 

42. Retirement Benefits 

Defined benefit plan: 

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which 
are detailed below: 

Asset volatility: 

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with references to government bond yields; this 
may carry volatility and associated risk. 
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Inflation risk: 

The present value of some of the defined benefit plan obligations are calculated with reference to the future 
salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's 
liability. The post retirement medical benefit obligation is sensitive to medical inflation and accordingly, an 
increase in medical inflation rate would increase the plan's liability. 

The present value of defined benefit plan obligation is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the 
mortality of plan participants, both during and after the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the 
plan participants will increase the plan's liability. 

Life expectancy: 

Gratuity benefit liabilities of the company are unfunded. 

The following tables set out the status of the gratuity plan as required under Ind AS 19. 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

   Particulars                                                                        

   Particulars                                                                        

Year ended 
March 31, 2022  

Year ended 
March 31, 2022  

Year ended 
March 31, 2021  

Year ended 
March 31, 2021  

Employee benefit expense recognized in Statement 
of Profit & Loss: 
Current Service Cost                                                                                      21.58                                  16.53 
Net Interest Cost                                                                                               2.67                                   1.51 
Net Benefit Expense                                                                                     24.25                                  18.04 
Employee benefit expense recognized in Other 
comprehensive income (OCI): 
Actuarial (gain)/losses on obligation for the period                                     (29.84)                                (1.15) 
Actual Returns on Plan Assets excluding Interest Income                                                                           - 
Net expense recognized in OCI for the period                                         (29.84)                                (1.15)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation are as follows: 
Opening defined benefit obligation                                                                 38.97                                22.08 
Interest cost                                                                                                       2.67                                  1.51 
Current service cost                                                                                        21.58                                16.53 
Actuarial (gains)/losses                                                                                 (29.84)                               (1.15) 
Closing defined benefit obligation                                                               33.38                                38.97 
Amount Recognised in Balance Sheet 
Defined benefit obligation                                                                               33.38                                38.97 
Fair value of plan assets                                                                                                                               - 
Plan asset/(liability)                                                                                       33.38                               38.97 
 

Discount rate per annum                                                                        7.25% p.a                              6.85% p.a
Rate of Salary increment                                                                       7.00% p.a                              7.00% p.a
Employee turnover rate 

Mortality Rate 

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the company's plans are shown 
below: 

15.00% p.a. at younger 
ages reducing to 2.00% 
p.a.% at older ages 

15.00% p.a. at younger 
ages reducing to 2.00% 
p.a.% at older ages 

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2012-14) 

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2012-14) 
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Projection Risks: 

Interest Risk - A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. 

Longevity Risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best 
estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life 
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability. 

Salary Risk -The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future 
salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's 
liability. 

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligations 
Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

   Particulars                                                                        

   Particulars                                                                        

   Particulars                                                                        

As at
March 31, 2022  

Year ended 
March 31, 2022  

March 31, 2022
(12 Months)  

As at
March 31, 2021  

Year ended 
March 31, 2021  

March 31, 2021
(12 Months)  

Maturity benefits payable in future years from the date 
of reporting 
1st following year                                                                                              0.55                                  0.09 
2nd following year                                                                                             1.43                                  1.32 
3rd following year                                                                                              1.85                                  2.33 
4th following year                                                                                              2.18                                  2.84 
5th following year                                                                                              2.34                                  3.16 
Sum of years 6 to 10                                                                                         13.06                                16.23
After 10 years                                                                                                   11.97                                 13.00 
Total                                                                                                                 33.38                                 38.97 

Cost                                                                                                                   47.89                               36.32
Discount rate used                                                                                              7.25%                              6.85%
Salary escalation rate used                                                                                  7.00%                              7.00% 

Discount Rate Sensitivity 
                 Increased by 0.5%                                                                          31.45                              36.73 
                 (% change)                                                                                   -5.78%                            -5.77% 
                 Decrease by 0.5%                                                                           35.49                              41.44 
                 (% change)                                                                                     6.32%                             6.31% 

Salary Growth Rate Sensitivity 
                 Increased by 0.5%                                                                          35.10                              40.76 
                 (% change)                                                                                     5.16%                            4.57% 
                 Decrease by 0.5%                                                                          31.70                               37.24 
                 (% change)                                                                                    -5.02%                           -4.47% 

Withdrawal Rate (W.R.) Sensitivity 
                 W.R x 110%                                                                                    32.88                             38.37 
                 (% change)                                                                                    -1.49%                          -1.57% 
                 W.R x 90%                                                                                       33.87                            39.59 
                 (% change)                                                                                     1.47%                           1.57% 

Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption 

Compensated absence 
Cost for compensated absence is included in the line item 'Employee benefits expenses' in the statement of 
profit and loss. Details for compensated absence are as given below. 
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Details of the company's contribution to defined contribution plan is given below 
Rs. in Lakhs 

   Particulars                                                                        
Year ended 

March 31, 2022  
Year ended 

March 31, 2021  
Provident fund                                                                                                     75.36                             52.46
Employee State Insurance Scheme                                                                          4.70                               5.60

43. Events after reporting date 

There have been no significant events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial 
statements. 

Disclosures as required by Reserve Bank of India 

44. Capital to Risk Assets ratio (CRAR) (Computed as per method prescribed by RBI) 
Rs. in Lakhs 

   Particulars                                                                           Sr. No.                                                                    
Year ended 

March 31, 2022  
Year ended 

March 31, 2021  
CRAR (%)[(ii) + (iii)]                                                                                      90.54%                      81.60%
CRAR- Tier I Capital (%)                                                                                89.59%                       80.87%
CRAR- Tier II Capital (%)                                                                                 0.95%                        0.73%
Amount of subordinated debt considered as Tier-II capital (In Rs)                          Nil                               Nil
Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments                                           Nil                                Nil

(ii) 
(iii) 
(iv) 
(v) 

Rs. in Lakhs 

   Particulars                                                                        
Year ended 

March 31, 2022  
Year ended 

March 31, 2021  
Percentage (%) of housing loans to total assets les 
intangibal assets                                                                                                         69.18%                      65.72%
Percentage (%) of housing loans to individuals to total 
assets less intangible assets                                                                                               69.18%                      65.72% 

45. Principal business criteria 

46. Group Structure 

KIFS International LLP 

KIFS Housing Finance Limited 

Holding 

Subsidiary 
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47. Statutory reserve 

The Company creates a reserve fund as required by section 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987, wherein 
a sum equal to twenty percent of its profits derived from eligible business (business of providing long term 
finance for the construction or purchase of houses in india for residential purposes) every year, and before any 
dividend is declared, is transferred. The Special Reserve qualifies for deduction as specified u/s 36 (1) (viii) of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 and accordingly, the Company has been availing tax benefit for such transfers. 

Rs. in Lakhs 

   Particulars                                                                        
As at

March 31, 2022  
As at

March 31, 2021  
Opening balance 
- Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of National Housing Bank, Act 1987 
- Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax 
  Act, 1961 taken into account for the purpose of Statutory 
  Reserve under section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 
Total 

Total 

Addition/withdrawal during the year 
Add: 

- Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 
- Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax 
  Act, 1961 taken into account for the purpose of Statutory 
  Reserve under section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 
Less: 
- Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the 
  NHB Act, 1987 
- Amount withdrawn from the special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of 
  Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purpose of 
  provision u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 

926.73  573.08 

83.45 - 

Closing balance 
- Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of National Housing Bank, Act 1987 
- Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax 
  Act, 1961 taken into account for the purpose of Statutory 
  Reserve under section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 

1010.18 573.08 

256.60 353.65 

40.95 83.45 

- 

- 

- 

- 

1307.73 1010.18 
1183.33 926.73 

124.40 83.45 

1307.73 1,010.18 

There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended March 31, 2022 and during the year 
ended March 31, 2021. 

48. Investments 
Rs. in Lakhs 

   Particulars                                                                        
As at

March 31, 2022  
As at

March 31, 2021  
a) Value of Investment 
I) Gross value of Investments 

a) In India 

a) In India 

a) In India 

b) Outside India 

b) Outside India 

b) Outside India 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 
- 
- 
- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 
- 
- 
- 

II) Provision for depreciation 

III) Net value of investments 

b) Movements of provisions held towards depreciation 
    in investments 
I) Opening balance 
II) Add: Provisions made during the year 
III) Less: Write off/write back of excess provisions during the year 
IV) Closing balance 

7,799.03 

7,799.03 

11,413.65 

11,413.65 
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49. Provisions and contingencies 
Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

   Particulars                                                                        

   Particulars                                                                        

   Particulars                                                                        

   Particulars                                                                        

   Particulars                                                                        

Year ended 
March 31, 2022  

As at
March 31, 2022  

As at
March 31, 2022  

As at
March 31, 2022  

Year ended
March 31, 2022  

Year ended 
March 31, 2021  

As at
March 31, 2021  

As at
March 31, 2021  

As at
March 31, 2021  

Year ended
March 31, 2021  

Provisions for depreciation on investments 

Total exposure to top ten NPA accounts 

A. Housing Loan 

(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 
(b) No. of complaints received during the year 
(c) No. of complaints resolved during the year 
(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 

(I) Net NPAs to net advances (%) 

Provisions made towards income tax (net of reversal of tax of earlier year) 
Provisions towards NPAs 
Provisions for standard assets 
Additional floating provision on loan assets 
Other provisions and contingencies 

- Gratuity 
- Compensated absences 
- Provision for expenses 

395.59 

162.51 

- - 
525.00 

155.98 

67.25 93.80 
244.11 39.43 
0.00 200.00 

(5.60) 16.89 
(10.61) 30.23 
193.80 182.91 

50. Concentration of NPAs 

51. Sector wise NPAs provisions and contingencies 

(I) Individual (out of total advances in that sector) 

(I) Individual (out of total advances in that sector) 

Individual (in %) (out of total advances in that sector) 

Individual (in %) (out of total advances in that sector) 

B. Non-Housing Loan 

187.84 

68
-

138.93 

59
2

0.44% 

68
-

0.35% 

61
-

38.27 19.93 
0.56% 0.38% 

52. Movement of NPAs 

(II) Movement of gross NPAs 
a) Opening balance 

a) Opening balance 

a) Opening balance 

b) Addition during the year 

b) Addition during the year 

b) Addition during the year 

c) Closing balance 

c) Closing balance 

c) Closing balance 

(III) Movement of net NPAs 

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on 
      standard assets) 

0.62% 0.46% 

364.72 157.32 
163.87 207.40 
528.59 364.72 

205.86 92.25 
96.62 113.61 
302.48 205.86 

158.86 65.07 
67.25 93.80 
226.11 158.86 

53. Customer complaints 

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 118



54. Concentration of public deposits 

The company is a non-deposit taking housing finance company. Hence, this disclosure is not applicable. 

55. Concentration of loans and advances 
Rs. in Lakhs 

   Particulars                                                                        
As at

March 31, 2022  
As at

March 31, 2021  
Total loans of twenty largest borrowers 
Percentage of exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers to total 
exposure of the HFC on borrowers/customers

716.26 587.60 

1.46% 1.30% 

Rs. in Lakhs 

   Particulars                                                                        
As at

March 31, 2022  
As at

March 31, 2021  
Total loans of twenty largest borrowers/customers
Percentage of exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers to total 
exposure of the HFC on borrowers/customers 

745.41 646.57 

1.37% 1.22% 

Rs. in Lakhs 

      Instruments 
                                                                                                                                     

F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21 

Long term bank facilities 
-Acuite                                                                                             A- Stable outlook                  A- Stable outlook  
Non-convertible debentures 
-Acuite                                                                                             A- Stable outlook                 A- Stable outlook 
-Brickworks                                                                                 BBB + Stable outlook          BBB + Stable outlook 

56. Concentration of all exposures (including off balance sheet exposure) 

57. Rating assigned by rating agencies during the year 

Rs. in Lakhs 

    Particulars 
 
                                                                                                                                     

Housing Loan  Non-Housing Loan 

As at March 31, 2022 
Standard assets 
Principal outstanding                                                                              41,804.35                              6,746.73 
EMI/PEMI-interest/fee debtors                                                                      -                                          51.81 
Provisions                                                                                                    491.66                                   97.54 

Sub-standard assets 
Principal outstanding                                                                                   329.08                                   83.91 
Provisions                                                                                                     151.09                                  40.79 

Doubtful assets – Category I 
Principal outstanding                                                                                    110.04                                    5.56 
Provisions                                                                                                       47.07                                    2.38 
Doubtful assets – Category II 
Principal outstanding                                                                                          -                                        - 
Provisions                                                                                                           -                                        - 
Total 
Principal outstanding                                                                              42,243.47                           6,836.20 
EMI/PEMI-interest/fee debtors                                                                      -                                       51.81 
Provisions                                                                                                       689.82                              140.71 

58. Break-up of loans and advances and provisions thereon 

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 119



Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

    Particulars 
 
                                                                                                                                     

Housing Loan  Non-Housing Loan 

As at March 31, 2021 
Standard assets 
Principal outstanding                                                                              39,525.34                              5,193.26 
EMI/PEMI-interest/fee debtors                                                                      -                                          39.68  
Provisions                                                                                                    298.57                                   63.54 

Sub-standard assets 
Principal outstanding                                                                                   204.13                                  32.65 
Provisions                                                                                                      88.91                                   14.22 

Doubtful assets – Category I 
Principal outstanding                                                                                    93.72                                     12.31 
Provisions                                                                                                      40.82                                      5.36 
Doubtful assets – Category II 
Principal outstanding                                                                                    21.12                                      0.79 
Provisions                                                                                                       9.20                                       0.34 
Total 
Principal outstanding                                                                            39,844.31                               5,239.01 
EMI/PEMI-interest/fee debtors                                                                      -                                        39.68 
Provisions                                                                                                      437.50                                  83.47 

59. Disclosure required as per Circular DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 - Implementation 
      of Indian Accounting Standards as at March 31, 2022.

Asset 
classification 
as per RBI 

norms 

Asset 
classification 

as per Ind 
AS 109 

Gross 
carrying 

amount as 
per Ind AS 

Loss 
allowances 
required 

under Ind 
AS 109 

Net 
carrying 
amount 

Provisions 
required as 
per IRACP 

norms 

Difference 
between Ind 

AS 109
provisions and

 IRACP 
norms  

Performing 
assets 

Standard                      Stage 1             47,336.67             307.82               47,028.85            128.98               178.84

Stage 2               1,266.22              219.23                 1,046.99                3.41              215.82 

Subtotal                                               48,602.89             527.05               48,075.84            132.39              394.66 

Non-performing 

assets (NPA) 

Substandard                Stage 3                  412.99              176.66                   236.33              62.80               113.86 

Doubtful - up to 

1 year                          Stage 3                  115.60                49.45                     66.15              29.30                 20.15 

1 to 3 Years                 Stage 3                       -                        -                           -                        -                       - 

More Than 3 year       Stage 3                       -                        -                           -                        -                       - 

Subtotal for 

doubtful                                                   115.60                49.45                     66.15              29.30                 20.15 

Loss                           Stage 3                        -                       -                           -                        -                        - 

Subtotal for NPA                                    528.59               226.11                  302.48               92.10               134.01 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7)=(4)-(6) 
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Asset 
classification 
as per RBI 

norms 

Asset 
classification 

as per Ind 
AS 109 

Gross 
carrying 

amount as 
per Ind AS 

Loss 
allowances 
required 

under Ind 
AS 109 

Net 
carrying 
amount 

Provisions 
required as 
per IRACP 

norms 

Difference 
between Ind 

AS 109
provisions and

 IRACP 
norms  

Other items such 
as guarantees, 
loan commitments, 
etc. which are in 
the scope of Ind 
AS 109 but not 
covered under 
current Income 
Recognition, Asset 
Classification and 
Provisioning 
(IRACP) norms 

Stage 1               5,361.22                10.34                5,350.88                  -                     10.34 

 

Stage 2                   13.49                    -                         13.49                   -                        - 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7)=(4)-(6) 

Stage 3                    3.33                     -                           3.33                  -                        - 

Subtotal                                               5,378.04                  10.34               5,367.70                 -                     10.34 

Total                          Stage 1             52,697.89                318.16             52,379.73             128.98             189.18 

                                   Stage 2               1,279.71                219.23               1,060.48                 3.41             215.82 

                                   Stage 3                  531.92                226.11                  305.81               92.10             134.01 

                                   Total                 54,509.52                763.50             53,746.02             224.49             539.01 

In addition to above, the Company has made additional provision of Rs.36.35 lakhs for loan losses and 
Rs. 77.37 lakhs for restructuring cases. 

60. Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities 

1 - 7 days                               339.97                             16.56                                -                                 7,799.03 

8 - 14 days                             187.85                                 -                                    -                                        - 

15 - 1 month                           155.34                           199.58                                -                                       - 

1 - 2 months                           364.03                            437.02                            995.63                                 - 

2 - 3 months                           365.17                            106.52                               -                                        - 

3 - 6 months                        1,102.50                         1,214.56                            829.69                                 - 

6 -1 year                             2,329.16                           2,442.08                              -                                        - 

1 - 3 years                           7,009.55                          9,180.12                         2,074.23                                 - 

3 - 5 years                           6,716.68                          6,746.72                              -                                         - 

5 years                               29,684.01                          2,497.72                             -                                        - 

Total                                  48,254.26                       22,840.88                         3,899.55                         7,799.03 

As at March 31, 2022 

Loans Bank borrowings# Market borrowings Investments 

# Excluding loans repayable on demand from banks. 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 
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1 - 7 days                               313.81                                -                                     -                               11,413.65 

8 - 14 days                             181.71                                -                                     -                                       - 

15 - 1 month                          106.54                           317.48                                 -                                      - 

1 - 2 months                           265.49                           462.88                                -                                      -

2 - 3 months                           266.45                             71.67                                -                                      - 

3 - 6 months                           805.17                        1,125.66                           827.28                                  - 

6 -1 year                              1,684.78                        2,260.72                               -                                       - 

1 - 3 years                            5,556.25                       7,076.97                         3,888.20                                 - 

3 - 5 years                            5,527.09                       5,096.58                               -                                        - 

5 years                               29,685.67                       4,631.80                               -                                        - 

Total                                  44,392.96                     21,043.76                          4,715.48                        11,413.65 

As at March 31, 2021 

Loans Bank borrowings# Market borrowings Investments 

Rs. in Lakhs 

# Excluding loans repayable on demand from banks. 
1. The Company does not have foreign currency liabilities, deposits and foreign currency assets as at March 
    31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. 
2. Classification of assets and liabilities under different maturity buckets is based on the same estimates and 
    assumptions as used by the Company for compiling the return submitted to NHB. 

61. Exposure to real estate sector 
Rs. in Lakhs 

      Particulars 

                                                                                                                                     

F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21 

Category 
a)Direct exposure 
i) Residential mortgage: 
    Lending fully secured by mortgage on residential property 
    that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented; 
Housing loan up to Rs. 15 Lakhs                                                             36,759.64                           34,862.83 
Housing loan more than Rs. 15 Lakhs                                                       5,483.83                             4,981.48 
ii) Commercial real estate: 

iii) Investment in mortgage backed securities (MBS) and 
      other securitized exposures: 
      a) Residential                                                                                             -                                        - 
      b) Commercial real estate                                                                          -                                        - 
b) Indirect exposure 
     

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates  
(Office, building, retail space, multipurpose commercial   
premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi tenanted 
premises, industrial or ware house space, hotels, land 
acquisitions, development and construction, etc.). Exposure 
would also include non-fund based (NBF) limits.  

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National 
Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies 
(HFCs) 

-                                        - 

-                                        - 

62. Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate activities 

The Company does not have any exposure to group companies engaged in real estate activities. 

63. Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Company does not have investments in any entities. Hence, the Company is not required to prepare consolidated 
financial statements. 
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64. Disclosure pursuant to circular no. RBI/2020-21/16/ DOR.No.BP.BC /3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020 
issued by RBI 

Type of 
borrower 

Number of 
accounts where 
resolution plan 

has been 
implemented 

under this 
window 

Exposure to 
accounts 

mentioned at (A) 
before 

implementation 
of the plan 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Of (B), aggregate 
amount of debt 

that was 
converted into 
other securities 

Additional 
funding 

sanctioned, if 
any, including 

between 
invocation of the 

plan and 
implementation 

Increase in 
provisions on 
account of the 

implementation 
of the resolution 

plan 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Personal loan                   40                          384.03                         -                               -                           39.49 

Total                                40                          384.03                         -                               -                           39.49 

(A) (B) (C) 

65. Disclosure as required under RBI Circular No. RBI/2021-22/31 DOR.STR.REC.11/21.04.048/2021-
22 dated May 5, 2021 in relation to the Resolution Framework 2.0 for COVID-19-related Stress of
Individuals and Small Businesses as at 30th September, 2021. 

Description Individual Borrowers 
Personal loans Business loans 

Small 
businesses 

Number of requests received for invoking resolution 
process under Part A                                                                     47                             -                            - 

Number of accounts where resolution plan has been 
implemented under this window                                                  47                             -                            - 
Exposure to accounts mentioned at (B) before 
implementation of the plan (Rs. In lakhs)                                 387.77                         -                            - 

of (C), aggregate amount of debt that was converted 
into other securities                                                                        -                              -                            - 

Additional funding sanctioned, if any, including between 
invocation of the plan and implementation                                       -                              -                            - 
Increase in provisions on account of the implementation 
of the resolution plan (Rs. In lakhs)                                            39.98                         -                           - 

A

B

C

D

E

F

66. The Company has not undertaken assignments of loans during the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and 
March 31, 2021. 

67. The Company has not undertaken securitisation of loans during the financial year ended March 31, 2022 
and March 31, 2021. The Company has not sponsored any SPVs during the current and previous year, and 
there is no outstanding amount of securitised assets as a result of any such sponsorships. 

68. The company has not disbursed any loans against security of gold. 

69. The Company has no exposure in capital market in the current financial year and previous financial year. 

70. The Company has no transactions/exposures in forward rate agreement/interest rate swap in the current 
financial year and previous financial year. 

71. The Company has no transactions/exposures in derivatives in the current financial year and previous 
financial year. 

72. The company has not witnessed/reported any instances of fraud in the current financial year and previous 
financial year. 
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73. The company has not purchased/sold non performing financial assets from other Housing Finance 
Companies in the current financial year and previous financial year. 

74. The Company has not sold any financial assets to Securitisation/Reconstruction Company for assets 
reconstruction in the current financial year and previous financial year. 

75. The Company has not exceeded single borrower limit and group borrower limit as set by regulator during 
current financial year and previous financial year. 

76. The Company has not made advances against intangible collaterals in the current financial year and 
previous financial year. 

77. The Company is not registered with any other financial regulator. 

78. There is no financing of the parent company's products during the current financial year and previous 
financial year. 

79. The Company did not have any overseas assets as at March 31, 2022 and as at March 31, 2021.

80. Penalties  

National Housing Bank, through its letter dated July 20, 2020, levied a penalty of Rs. 5,000 plus Goods and 
Service tax of Rs. 900 on the Company for non-compliance of Para 27(A) of Housing Finance Companies 
(NHB) Direction 2010. 

81. No adverse remarks were levied by National Housing Bank and Reserve Bank of India during current 
financial year and previous financial year. 

82. The accounting policies regarding key areas of operations are disclosed as note 3 to the financial 
statements. 

83. There have been no instances except for interest on non-performing loans in which revenue recognition is 
postponed pending the resolution of significant uncertainties. 

84. Details of all material transactions with related parties are disclosed in note 42 of financial statements. 

85. Refer to the Management Discussion and Analysis report for the management related disclosures. 

86. No Remuneration to Directors has been paid during the current financial year and previous financial year. 

87. There are no prior period items that have impact on the current financial year's and previous financial year's 
profit and loss. 

88. The Company does not have any benami property in its name. No proceedings have been initiated or are 
pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

89. The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank, financial institution, government, any 
government authority or any other lender during the current financial year and previous financial year. 

Rs. in Lakhs 

   Particulars                                                                        
Year ended 

March 31, 2022  
Year ended 

March 31, 2021  
National Housing Bank  - 0.06
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90. The Company has not undertaken any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of 
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956. 

91. No charges or satisfaction are pending to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 

92. Compliance with number of layers of companies is not applicable since the Company does not have any 
subsidiary. 

93. Disclosure of Ratios: 

S.No Particulars Numerator (Rs. In Lakhs) 
Particulars Particulars 2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 

Denominator (Rs. In Lakhs) Ratio 

Liquidity 
coverage 
ratio

High Liquid 
Assets 

97.96 121.43 High Liquid 
Liabilities   

43.59 62.30 2.25 1.95 

Debt –Equity 
Ratio 

Total Debt 
(Borrowing + 
Debentures) 

Total Debt 
(Borrowing + 
Debentures) 

30043.63 29774.13 Shareholder's 
Equity 

29849.82 28544.48 1.01 1.04 

Total debts 
to total 
assets 

30043.63 29774.13 Total Assets 61784.68 60651.92 0.49 0.49 

Operating 
margin 

Profit before 
tax 

1619.38 2213.27 Total Income 6535.21 5816.22 24.78% 38.05% 

Net profit 
margin 

Profit after 
tax 

1283.01 1768.27 Total Income 6535.21 5816.22 19.63% 30.40% 

Gross stage 3 
loans to gross 
loans 

Gross stage 
3 loans 

528.59 364.72 Gross Loans 
outstanding 

49131.28 45122.48 1.08% 0.81% 

Net stage 3 
loans to net 
loans

Gross NPA 
less NPA 
Provision 

302.48 205.86 Sum of Stage 
1,2,3 Loans 
Less Stage 3 
Provision 

48905.37 44964.15 0.62% 0.46% 

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

Reason for change in ratios by more than 25% : 

(a) Operating margin (% change : 34.88%) : 

(b) Net profit margin (% change : 35.43%) 

(d) Net stage 3 loans to net loans (% change : 34.78%)  

Due to prevailing COVID-19 situations & nationwide lockdown throughout the country in earlier months 
of F.Y 2021-22, there has been a temporary impact on the repayment ability of the customers which has 
impacted income. Further, due to expansion of business at several new locations (within India), there has 
been an increase in total expenses made by the company which has resulted in decrease of profit. 

Due to prevailing COVID-19 situations & nationwide lockdown throughout the country in earlier months 
of F.Y 2021-22, there has been a temporary impact on the repayment ability of the customers which has 
impacted income. Further, due to expansion of business at several new locations (within India), there has 
been an increase in total expenses made by the company which has resulted in decrease of profit. 

Due to prevailing COVID-19 situations & nationwide lockdown throughout the country in earlier months 
of F.Y 2021-22, there has been a temporary impact on the repayment ability of the customers which has 
resulted in increase of the Gross non-performing assets.  

Due to prevailing COVID-19 situations & nationwide lockdown throughout the country in earlier months 
of F.Y 2021-22, there has been a temporary impact on the repayment ability of the customers which has 
resulted in increase of the Gross non-performing assets.  
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94. No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 
237 of the Companies Act, 2013 

95. (i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share  premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities 
(intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall : 

96. There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income 
Tax Act, 1961(such as search or survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account. 

97. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto or Virtual Currency during the year. 

98. Previous financial year figures have been reclassified/regrouped/restated to conform to current financial 
year's classification. 

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
      by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
      or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 

(ii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entities (ies), including foreign entities 
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall  

As per our report of even date 
For Manubhai & Shah LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Reg. No. 106041W/W100136 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KIFS Housing Finance Limited  
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 CA. Laxminarayan P. Yekkali
 Partner
 M. No. 114753

 Rajesh P. Khandwala
 Chairman and Managing Director
 DIN: 00477673

 Padmanabh Vora
 Director
 DIN: 00003192

 Tejal Gala
 Company Secretary
 M. No. ACS-54456

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2022

sd/-

sd/-

sd/- sd/-



Annexure -1 

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of the Housing Finance Company as required under Master Direction – 
Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 

Rs. in Lakhs 

   Particulars                                                                        
   Sr. 
   No                                                                     

2)

3)

4)

a)
b)

I)

I)

I)

I)

II)

II)

II)

II)

III)

IV)

IV)

V)

V)

III)

III)

-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-

Amount 
Overdue 

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those 
included in (4) below] : 

Secured                                                                                                                                                      48,254.26 
Unsecured 
Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards 
AFC activities: 
Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors : 
     a) Financial Lease  
     b) Operating Lease  
Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors: 
     a) Assets on hire  
     b) Repossessed Assets 
Other loans counting towards AFC activities : 
     a) Loans where assets have been repossessed  
     b) Loans other than (a) above  
Break- up of Investments: 
Current Investments 
Quoted 
Shares 
    a) Equity  
    b) Preference 
Debenture and Bonds  
Units of Mutual Funds                                                                                                                                7,799.03 
Government Securities  
Others  
Unquoted 
Shares 
   c) Equity 
   d) Preference  
Debenture and Bonds  
Units of Mutual Funds  
Government Securities  
Others  

 

Liabilities side 
Rs. in Lakhs 

   Particulars                                                                        
   Sr. 
   No                                                                     

1)

a)

b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)

Total Amount 
Outstanding 

Amount 
Overdue 

Loans and Advances availed by the non- banking financial 
company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not due 
Debentures : 
     - Secured                                                                                                         3,899.55                          - 
     - Unsecured                                                                                                           -                                -  
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits*) 
Deferred Credits                                                                                                         -                                - 
Term Loans                                                                                                          22,840.88                        - 
Inter-corporate loans and borrowing                                                                          -                                - 
Commercial Paper                                                                                                      -                                -  
Loans repayable on demand from banks                                                                3,303.20                       - 
Sub ordinate debt                                                                                                       -                                -  
Working capital facility                                                                                             -                                - 

Assets side 
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Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Rs. in Lakhs 

   Particulars                                                                        
   Sr. 
   No                                                                     

I)

I)

I)

II)

II)

II)

IV)

IV)

V)

V)

III)

III)

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

Amount 
Overdue  

Long Term Investments 
Quoted 
Shares 
    e) Equity  
    f) Preference 
Debenture and Bonds  
Units of Mutual Funds  
Government Securities  
Others   
Unquoted 
Shares 
   g) Equity 
   h) Preference  
Debenture and Bonds  
Units of Mutual Funds  
Government Securities  
Others  

 Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above: 

Category Amount of Net Provision 

Secured                  Unsecured            Total 

a) Subsidiaries                                                                                       -                              -                            - 
b) Companies in the same group                                                           -                              -                            - 
c) Other Related Parties                                                                         -                             -                            - 

Other than related parties                                                                     48,254.26                      -                     48,254.26
Total                                                                                                     48,254.26                      -                     48,254.26 

Related Parties 

Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities 
(both quoted and unquoted): 

Category 

a) Subsidiaries                                                                                                      -                                         - 
b) Companies in the same group                                                                          -                                         - 
c) Other Related Parties                                                                                       -                                         - 

Other than related parties                                                                                    7,799.03                            7,799.03 
Total                                                                                                                    7,799.03                            7,799.03 
  

Related Parties 

Market Value/Break up 
or Fair Value or NAV 

Book Value (Net of 
Provisions) 

Other Information 

Gross Non- Performing Assets 
a) Related Parties                                                                                                                                                  - 
b) Other than related parties                                                                                                                             528.59 
    Net Non- Performing Assets 
c) Related Parties                                                                                                                                                 - 
d) Other than related parties                                                                                                                            302.48 
Assets acquired in satisfaction of Debts                                                                                                              - 

Particulars 
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5. To provide security by way of Pledge, Hypothecation, Mortgage, Lien and/or charge in such form or 
manner on all or any movable or immovable property of the Company under Section 180 (1) (a)

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 180 (1) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there 

under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force),the 

consent of the members of the Company is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the  Company to 

provide security by way of pledge, hypothecation, mortgage, lien and/or charge in such form and manner 

and with such ranking and at such time and on such terms as the Board of Directors may determine, on all 

or any of the immovable and/or movable properties of the Company (including but not limited to fixed 

assets, current assets, shares and other investments held by the Company, all intangible property, rights 

and benefits under all contracts and agreements entered into by the Company and the monies of, long term 

receivables of and the loans and advances made by the Company, both present and future, and/or the whole 

or substantially the whole of the undertaking or any part of the properties of the Company wheresoever 

situated, together with the power to takeover the management of the business and the concern of the 

Company, on such terms and conditions and at such time or times and in such form or manner as the Board 

of Directors may deem fit, to or in favour of national/international financial institutions or banks or 

trustees for the bond/debenture holders (in case of issue of bonds or debentures) etc. (herein after referred 

as “the Lenders” to secure any term loans or cash credit facilities or debentures or bond or such other credit 

facilities obtained/to be obtained from any of the Lenders together with interest, compound interest, 

additional interest, liquidated damage(s), commitment charges, premia on prepayment or on redemption, 

cost, charge(s), expenses and all other monies payable by the Company to such Lenders subject to 

aggregate amount of such credit facilities not exceeding Rs. 1000 crore.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors, Chief Financial Officer and Company 

SecretaryoftheCompanybeandareherebyauthorizedseverallytodoallsuchacts,deeds,mattersand things as 

may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

6. To consider and approve conversion of Loan into Equity under Section 62(3).

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(3) and other applicable provisions, if 

any,oftheCompaniesAct,2013(including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time 

being in force), the rules framed thereunder and in accordance with the Memorandum of Association and 

Articles of Association of the Company, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby 

accorded to the Lender(s) to convert all or part of outstanding amounts under the Facility to be extended, 

into fully paid-up equity shares (carrying voting rights) of the Company at a  permissions and sanctions of 

appropriate authorities, wherever required, and (iii) applicable laws subject to the approval of members 

of the Company.
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TH
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 7  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF THE 
MEMBERS OF KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED WILL BE HELD AT A SHORTER NOTICE 
ON WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 10, 2022 AT 3.30 PM AT THE CORPORATE OFFICE OF THE 
COMPANY AT C - 902, LOTUS CORPORATE PARK, GRAHAM FIRTH COMPOUND, WESTERN 
EXPRESS HIGHWAY, GOREGAON (EAST), MUMBAI – 400063., TO TRANSACT THE 
FOLLOWING BUSINESS

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
quarter and year ended March 31, 2022, including the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 
and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To consider re-appointment of Smt. Purvi Bhavsar (DIN: 02102740), Non-Executive Director who 
retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

3. To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditor of the Company for the FY 2022-23

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT, in accordance with the provisions of Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
remuneration payable to M/s. Manubhai & Shah LLP, Chartered Accountants, having Firm Registration 
No. 106041W/W100136, Statutory Auditors of the Company, for conducting the statutory audit, tax audit 
and audit of internal financial controls of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 shall be fixed by the 
Board of Directors and mutually agreed by the Statutory Auditors of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To approve borrowing limits under Section 180(1)(c ) of the Companies Act, 2013

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:-

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there 
under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), 
consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the 
Company for borrowing by way of loans or debentures (whether secured or unsecured), bonds, deposits, 
fund based, non-fund based or in any other manner for the purpose of business of the Company any sums 
or sums of money whether in Indian or foreign currency from time to time from any bank(s) or any 
financial institutions or any other institution(s), firm(s), body corporate(s) or other person(s) or from any 
other source in India or outside India whomsoever from time to time with or without security and upon 
such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors of the Company may deem fit and expedient for the 
purpose of the business of the Company, notwithstanding, that the monies to be borrowed, together with 
the monies already borrowed by the Company and remaining undischarged at any given time (apart from 
the temporary loans obtained from the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of business) may 
exceed the aggregate of the Company's paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium, 
provided that the total amount so borrowed/to be borrowed by the Company (apart from the temporary 
loans obtained from the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of business) and outstanding at any 
given time shall not at any time exceed Rs. 1000 crore (Rupees One Thousand crore Only).
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary 
of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may 
be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this Resolution."
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the board of directors (the “Board”) be and is hereby authorized to offer, 

issue and allot fully paid-up equity shares (carrying voting rights) of the Company to the Lender(s), in 

accordance with applicable laws, in furtherance of the aforesaid resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolutions and the 
conversion rights of the Lender(s) pursuant to the proposed Facility Agreement to be executed by the 
Company, the Board, be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as the 
Boardmayinitsabsolutediscretiondeemnecessary,properordesirable,tocreate,offer,issueandallot the aforesaid 
shares of the Company, to dematerialize the said shares, to convert the outstanding obligations of the Company 
into fully paid-up equity shares (carrying voting rights) of the Company, and to resolve and settle any question, 
difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard and to do all such other acts, deeds, matters and things in 
connection or incidental thereto as the Board in its absolute discretion may deem fit, without be in grequired to 
seek any further consent or approval of the members or otherwise, and to that end and intent the members shall 
be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company do file this resolution and make any other filings required 

under the Companies Act, 2013 (or Companies Act, 1956, wherever applicable), with the concerned 

Registrar of Companies and other statutory/governmental authorities as may be required within the time 

prescribed by law therefore and undertake any other registration requirements (as may be required).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT a certified true copy of this resolution be furnished to the Lender / its agents 

/ its trustee, as may be required, under the signatures of any one of the Directors of the Company, Chief 

Financial Officer or Company Secretary of the Company.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
for KIFS Housing Finance Limited,

Rajesh khandwala
Chairman & Managing director

DIN:00477673 

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 05, 2022

sd/-
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1.   The Explanatory Statement as required under section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of items of  
Special Business is annexed hereto and forms part of this notice. Further, additional information with 
respect to item no. 2 as required under Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meetings, is annexed hereto and 
forms part of this notice.

2.   Members are requested to produce/handover the enclosed attendance slip duly signed as per the specimen 
signature recorded with the Company for admission to the meeting venue. In all correspondences with the 
Company, Members are requested to quote their account/folio numbers.

3.  A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO 
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF /HERSELF 
AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. The instrument appointing 
the proxy in Form MGT-11 annexed hereto, in order to be effective, should reach the registered office of the 
Company duly filled, stamped and signed at least 48 hours before the time of commencement of the 
meeting.

4.   A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more 
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more 
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single 
person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other Member. Proxies submitted on behalf 
of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/ authority as 
applicable. The Proxy-holder shall prove his identity at the time of attending the Meeting.

5.  A member desirous of inspecting the proxies received by the Company is requested to forward his/her 
request in writing at least three days before the commencement of the meeting. The proxy register will be 
made available for inspection by the member entitled to vote, during the period beginning twenty-four 
hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the 
Meeting i.e. between 09.00 a.m. to 06.00 p.m. during such period.

6.  Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their contact details and address to the 
Company by emailing at secretarial@kifshousing.com

7.  Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding maintained under Section 
170 of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors 
are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be made available for 
inspection by the Members at AGM. 

8.   The Members will be allowed to pose questions during the course of the Meeting. The queries can also be 
given in advance at secretarial@kifshousing.com

9.  Corporate members intending to appoint their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are 
requested to submit to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their 
representatives to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM.

10. All the documents referred to the in Notice and Explanatory Statement are open for inspection by the 
members at the registered office of the Company on all working days during business hours and will also 
be available at the request by a member of the Company. 

11. The Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 
https://www.kifshousing.com/.

NOTES:  
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO 
SECTION  102  OF  THE  COMPANIES  ACT,  2013:

Agenda Item No. 4 & 5

The members of the Company at its previous Annual general Meeting held on July 01, 2021, had approved by 
way of a Special Resolution under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, borrowing limits over and 
above the aggregate of paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company provided that the total amount of 
such borrowings together with the amounts already borrowed and outstanding at any point of time shall not be 
in excess of Rs. 1000 crore (Rupees One Thousand crore) for the FY 2021-2022.

However the borrowings of the Company for the FY 2021-2022 has yet not reached the limit and the 
Company would continue to borrow funds to meet the increased business volumes and growth of the 
Company, thus it is necessary that the borrowing powers shall remain same so as to match the business 
targets.

The Board of Directors of a Company shall not, except with the consent of Company by Special Resolution 
borrow money together with the money already borrowed, if any (apart from temporary loans obtained from 
the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of business), exceeding the aggregate of the paid up capital and 
its free reserves as per the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and its rules 
thereunder.

Hence, the consent of the Members is therefore sought to pass Special Resolution under Section 180(1) (c) of 
the Act, as set out in item no. 4 of the notice, to enable the Board of Directors to borrow monies and inter alia, 
authorized the Board to secure its borrowing by way of mortgage / charge on the assets of the Company, which 
shall not exceed the maximum limit prescribed by Reserve Bank of India i.e. 12 times of Net Owned Fund or a 
sum of Rs. 1000 crore, whichever is less, subject to RBI Directions for the FY 2022 - 2023. 

In order to facilitate securing the borrowing made by the Company, it would be necessary to create charge on 
the assets or whole or part of the undertaking of the Company. Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 
provides for the power to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the whole or substantially the whole of the 
undertaking of the Company subject to the approval of members in the General Meeting.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are interested, except to the extent of their 
equity shareholding in the company or has any concern or interest in respect of the above mentioned Special 
Resolution.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution as per the accompanying Notice, for approval by the 
Members of the Company.

Agenda Item No. 6

The Company will be granted a Loan by the Lenders enabling the company run its operation besides 
restructuring the existing debt in line with the debt repayment capability of the Company.

A Facility Agreement will be executed with the lender, which, inter alia, contains a clause that in case of default 
of payment of any dues to the Lenders in accordance with the terms of the above Agreement or failure by the 
promoters for timely payment of moneys and continuance of the same, the Lenders can exercise various rights 
as a consequence of event of default including exercise of their rights of conversion of debt into equity called as 
'Conversion Right'. It is also agreed that the Lenders shall reserve the right to sell equity shares to any person 
without limitation, under applicable laws.

By Order of the Board of Directors
for KIFS Housing Finance Limited,

Rajesh khandwala
Chairman & Managing director

DIN:00477673 

sd/-

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 05, 2022
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ADDITIO

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECRETARIAL STANDARDS-2

Agenda Item No. 2

Name of the Director

Designation

Date of Birth/Age

DIN 

Date of First appointment on the Board

Qualification

Experience

Shareholding in the Company

Number of Board Meetings attended during the year

Chairperson/ Membership of Committees of other Company

Directorships held in other Company as on date

Terms and conditions of appointment/re-appointment

Smt. Purvi Bhavsar

Non-Executive Director 

09-06-1973/ 48 years

02102740

March 4, 2016 as a Non-Executive Director of the Company

Bachelor of Commerce

•    Career banker with more than 27 years of experience  

in banking and financial services,
•  Has worked across various functions including 

corporate finance, treasury management, Retail 

banking and distribution, agriculture credit and 

priority sector and microfinance during his banking 

career,
•   Has been associated as a microfinance practitioner 

and also been involved with some pioneering work 

in the banking correspondent space,
•  Chartered Accountant, Cost Accountant and a 

qualified Certified Financial Planner (CFP).

Appointed as a Non-Executive of the Company w.e.f. 
March 04, 2016, liable to retire by rotation.

Remuneration sought to be paid: Sitting fees INR 10,000/- 
Board Meeting and per Committee Meeting. 

Sitting fees for attending Board Meetings and Committee 
Meetings during the Financial Year 2021-22 - INR 70,000/-

0.10001 %

04

Pahal Financial Services Limited 

Audit Committee, Member

Finance Committee, Member

Stakeholder Relationship Committee, Member

Pahal Financial Services Private Limited

Suyash Advisory LLP

Sprinkle Advisors LLP

Not related to any Director or Key Managerial Personnel. 

Company has no Manager.
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ROUTE MAP FOR ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Address: C - 902, Lotus Corporate Park, Graham Firth Compound, Western Express Highway, 
Goregaon (East), Mumbai – 400063
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 
CIN: U65922GJ2015PLC085079

Registered office: B-81, Pariseema Complex, C. G. Road, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad – 380006, Gujarat

Registered Folio No. / DP ID No. Client ID No. : ____________________

Number of Shares held: ______________

I certify that I am a member / proxy for the member(s) of the Company.

th
I hereby record my presence at the 7 Annual General Meeting of the Company being held on 
Wednesday,August 10, 2022 at 3.30 pm at the corporate office of the Company at C - 902, Lotus 
Corporate Park, Graham Firth Compound, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai – 
400063.

th
7  Annual General Meeting

Name of the Member / Proxy Signature of the Member / Proxy
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Form No. MGT-11

Proxy form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014]

th
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 7  Annual General Meeting 
of members of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, August 10, 2022 at 3.30 pm at the corporate office of 
the Company at C - 902, Lotus Corporate Park, Graham Firth Compound, Western Express Highway, 
Goregaon (East), Mumbai – 400063 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are 
indicated below:

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
CIN: U65922GJ2015PLC085079

Registered office: B-81, Pariseema Complex, C. G. Road, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad – 380006, Gujarat

Name of the Member(s):

Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Clint Id:

DP ID:

I/ We being the member of …………, holding…..shares, hereby appoint

1. Name: ………………………,
    Address:
    E-mail Id:
    Signature: ………………………, or failing him 

2. Name: ………………………,
    Address:
    E-mail Id:
    Signature: ………………………,

Resolution No.

Sr. No         Nature of Resolutions Voting 
(Asset or Dissent)

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS 

To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2022, including the Audited 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the 
year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 
thereon.

To consider re-appointment of Smt. Purvi Bhavsar (DIN: 02102740), Non-Executive 

Director who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditor of the Company for the FY 2022-23

1.

2.

3.
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Sr. No         Nature of Resolutions Voting 
(Asset or Dissent)

To approve borrowing limits under Section 180(1)(c ) of the Companies Act, 2013.

To provide security by way of Pledge, Hypothecation, Mortgage, Lien and/or 

charge in such form or manner on all or any movable or immovable property 

of the Company under Section 180 (1) (a).

To consider and approve conversion of Loan into Equity under Section 62(3).

4.

5.

6.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS:

Signed this ………  day of……………. 2022

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: 

· This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed, signed, stamped & deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company, not later than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the 

aforesaid meeting.

· It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the 'for', 'against' and 'abstain' column blank on all/any 

resolutions, your Proxy(ies) will be entitled to vote on Poll (if taken) in the manner as he/she thinks fit.

Affix Revenue 
Stamp
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